
5 \w.i.r tuunry\pa b.krh Mr(..t@il\oc omtoF.nr M..xrD.n c.tbcbn*n.n nn

ttt t1t t' t6l {71 ttt tet irot
llunlcipEl Adhortty ot th. Ctty ot ilck..rpon

orrQMml4.n.rto6 rtmwihurl
otrr.M.hr.nrft. 1106 zmwnnu! n
otrcMrhl..ne ltDG 2mWr^0i 5r
ohr.M.nr.nrft. rrDG 2&w.tn( n
ofr.. M.trt n.ic. rtDG rmw.tnut n
ofrr. M.ht.nrr. ttDc rmwdnui t
oli.! Sht..:nc. DtDc 2t@w.t^ut n

otrr. M$r.n:n..stDc Isoow.tnetg
oft. M..trn.n.. tLre 2mwrhursr
orn{&hi.i...:troc ztmwrn!('
oftaMrhr.nrn..!106 ?ewrnlrs

oftaMrnr.^rn.. srDc zmwrhrrs

orfr4 M'nr.n.nr. Broc ?mw:hur i
ofrr. Mrht.nrE. troc G'.ts

ohr. M..r.n.nr. stDG,G.rF
oflf,.M.ntrn:ni.0rDc Grn!.
ohr. M.hl.n,nr. ttDG G,'a!.

lhFrr.tRnl !l*l Adnli
hrFrnrtn.irPhnr &h,n
nw.Fr...6r^tPbnr Adnm
ks3.rG.hrnrPl..r Admin

!w:!.I...hnitl..r Adnh
9.*r.Ir.rl@nlPl.^i dmln
t!*t!Tn.lF.nttl.nr fi mi.
t.irt.Ir{til.ttrrnr trhh
5.wra!rrxlh.nlPl.n( tomlh

tonh r@Athr.Av.tu.
&nrn road.nr.Ar.M
admrn l@Ailrih.Av.m.

r!*.r!rrotm..t Phhl
!.e.3.rraih..iPrrnt Adntn r@Ail:nil.lvril.

LqrFInil6.^tPr.i(-^dmln 1mArbnil.Av.nu
ad6rn 1@Ail,.[.^v..u'
Adhh lmAil.nnrAwe
Adhh rdA(.^ricAv.ru!

s.wr3.r'.rrn!nrPEnr Admh lmA!.nrrAv.nu.

5!w.r.Tr.'h.nr Pl.hi conr.radtdiha
5.F1. r,!:!n.d n,nr convot 8dtd.n.

t!*ra.Ir..rm{rPhnr conkordurd/n.
$*rFrrcilm.nlPh.l ft.kolsud'nt
$mr.rrc.h.nlPhnt conkorruadini

hkeIr..iNirFhnt coitrol0uaanr

s"ka.r,?.rm!nr prahr conrotsuildin.

t.wits Irriln.nr Pl.ni connor rlrd'nr

t.*:t.t,!.lh..r Pbnr cohkd suldh.



I

e

a

.'. a a z 5 r5 5 t t5 5 5 5 5 5 5 55 5tl2

EE!!!!!! EE!EEii:!;ii9jji3i3!9i::s99{{{oE!:!!t2 ttt!t!!!jjjri.. {.....:i:

r; F F i F E F 77 ? F F::: """-""! i ! ! i!! i t ii i i ii i F E E
J i ! ! E !! i i i ! !! .! €,t;;;,1 r i r,! i r 5 i i,!j .! j j j j i;
z z ii zz z z i z zzz z zz z zi z z? z z iz zaaii z Ezaaaz

;i;;;izz aiaaaiaaaaiaazazaaaza;i;i;;;ii:::::::: ::!!c::!:!!!!!:!t::!!:!3:!:!ss

r' r lt 
' 

r: rr r t tr. rtt 
' 

t r t t t I t t

E€ !!

t

eE

3a

t

==El=!5E:!

Property Record



E i3
.s=
?;;
!ai

;Ee;0!itsg
6re;5
:;c:i

-
o

'6

=i

?ts8

=::955i'5 
g

i::-;;i ; i
IEtiiii i
f !EEEE6 ; 

=EFEz.7-f E E E

zzizziz z z3!!i!!! E t
!!!!!!! r !

iiiiiii i is*t;;g; 3 i

gs5555ggg
i:iiii:i':
€:;:€:Fir
ii+;+l;;;
!!!!!!!! i

!!!!!!!i!

:::3
s sttt

: j F "!E==> >i|!E ! ! !ia!j j j ji!;
z a a iizz

! E ! !!!g

: ; ; ;;F;

--

tt

a-t
iss
9E!



&

t

=

eE

=

;;;
r n riiii i t;53d- 6' ;fii

! ! iit3
z E azzai i -':*i
Z z i-.zri E iili

I g :3c3
; ; ,ttt

;iit!tE

!!!!!!!

!E!! !t!!E!,.!E E ! E

:;:; ;:iEii:E! i i i::r :iii !i:??5€5 =,.iin g$E EEi-3-3 I I l:i: /ala taa:i
==E l|!eee€ e€eaqq€{a e € €Iai jiij i:**:;!;i;;Eji;;; ::;;i;;;i ; ; ;€€: :-:i€ !5585;:;!!EEiE;ii itiiii;i{ i i i9!e iq9i i!i::
"-"oaoii€Eii;i! iii;i!iii i ; ;!i! !-r!! !EEE€
= =; =. =;; =. = -- = -- = --:- =iiFirrSS!55F !I55!!!5€ I : ::i: :*I: 5i:55
iiii!!I!iiEE EZEEEEiEE i E ;iii EEEE ii!i!
ig!cc!.rccsig gcgissgc! c 3 srgt 3331 sr3r3itiltlltlll: tittltitt i i ittl it:t :iriittttii;tc;t; ti;;tt;t; 3 t ;rlt J;t; tl;;:

,!i! i i ii:ti : i ;!rrr : t r
attt t ! tEii: a 6 i
G666 6 6 6
zzza z E z

izaa ? z a

;F;; ; ; F

Property Record



=

=

E
!l:; n i
it?€ t ?ii-s3f;!3:,"E"Ea d 33EEE;€ii. BB"id;3"i"i"i"it"i36s"i"i"i 63Eiili ? EEEEiEiiiS t?rrrrrttrr|rrrrr zzz
lg ! I i !jji:ji !; !E =<1127 !;iE;:iZZiz-Zi 7Z=
EE:i i E-iii!r!iiii;i::i:n::i::::::aii;:::i:: ; ;::::::::i:':;;i ; ;iar!-i:,.4Fi!!ii!'iiiiiiiiiigiii..--- --*l-ili: : :ii:A;i :J333 ; SOiFATFA&FIJ}Ji!FFF"Ei;FF"'FFFFFFSiE;!;:':5 ; i:;EETETEg!"";;; ; E:gEEi; :izEi 7 iaEzzEilEizzizzzzzzzZEzEzzzi=zitiil=i i iEE:i:E!r:='
",ii: i iiIsI:"jIj*IIIIiiijiii:IiijJ::riddd.d i {ifiidii*rti";FF 5 5F55::: :zzEz z zzz??zzzzzEEiEririTEEizEi-.az;E!il!!!i i !iiiiitiltii.rlslr ,r ;lr!!"r"r! lr!;!! E !EiE;;l!!EEE|EEEIZEEEE!!i!lE!!iiilia; i :!iii::ii:'!i.! r !ri!l!!r!!r!!5r:r!i:!!rEi!!!rr'.'-:i'-it- : ai:'-:i:iaitt-;rj j ji;;iii i

;;;;;;;F;F;;F;F;;;F;;!l;5!; : :i:!;!:!i!!51iiii i iiiiFiiiiiiiFgiiiFiiiifiiiiiiiE:::::: : :;::r;::;:r:;!s ; ;:EE;F! E

t

>

t

5

t

5

,
t

t

B

i:
3l

=6?:

ri

o2

;i
!t5;
!:

]
9

c

D-^^^rfi, Dar^'l



R

a
t

6

i

s!
:

6-

.E

s(i

a?s

=
i

a{
t

i;llfEi Eiii;iii 'iii fi3,9,93,9E sr: !Eg;i;
Eit!Eii"'ninn iii"'iiii ii::;:
t€€€ E.!sE=E:EE E: 

=EE="iF"E"E "EEE 
FF :

:...<.. ..: ::!6Ei
iiiiiii;i ii=Ei eIiii;ii;; ;iiiiE!::::!:1e999! 999999
"trr"€E:!EE 

EE:5EE!-;;i:sl;e:l;:: ;"'l;r;eii; ";;i"*'*i
r i!liii!:!i;; itiii!!:ii :;::::
E;E;E5EE=EEEE 

==;=:=E==E 
:=EiF:

.E

Property Record



e!

^-

e=

=
5;;;i5

3{

::
;5;==ETP eeis9ssiEi i i-:.ii3-: ii; :=9SS:;ii

! EE.E!EEEi!

F SFFgFSFFF
i i;;;;;;;;
s ;9;iiii:s

o3 oe oa oB a o!. oE 6g 
"r !SlllaiZZZ-Ziii :-:ilii i iir5 :i"EEE E!ii:!!!:

;ii:;;iiFFFFFFF li5iiE 5 :iE; :E:!i: !i:iiii;;;;::F F: ;:? ii:ir?? ?!?
:E::::E:::::::: !;s-e:: ; ;;;; ;F:.;i3 i.:S,FaFiEEi;'d; A-i '-rr ttezit: Ei:

6iid6^iad d,es!i i biEE iEEEEE Ee rritr;;:EiEi !i ;:: EE:E::: :::
iiiiii{t;{t;;ii tiEiiE i iiiB iiiiii iiEEEi;iEEEEFF F3 3FF !!FsF!3 FFF:l:?::::glt:!!: :r;:"5! F I;5F ,F:,F;j; :,F:ii;fii!!!J! it :i? .".,..-" ."".!:::ttt!::!!:!; I::EEE E EE:l JEi'eEt EEEii!.&t ,!,!;:;;i iii:i^rFisFEiti:Fia iEdt!'s" E iiE'i E'g!-iE!'iEE!"!!-i-!EF"E"EFF :i i=i ;;ii;ii ili



:

=

=1

55:: t6A6a 6

E:-:: i!!!ieee
EE!E E':.;{gi

3 ff!,i ",!i!:r=trrrr r!!!iiii,iti t2::_-_-
sFFF F!!E!555

E iE!; ;SE5:iii! ;ii; iEsss:a33

E

oI I
5

5E!E;5

tE:-!i-!
i6F65-

!!i!P9

3t :::!!!j€; 5t5rs ;€i
""";;'; ;;!:r-i ;5Ei;G;c ir!!.6
-:= iE=E !rE;i! i!!!!!!! i!iii
;E;E;3E55 SSEFFE !JSJSi55 iJJ5,;
6E6;E; 6EEii- .
t:azat :Ett:aj1r,e2, 2t2''2E :::€:;lt :::::
;55!"E: ";;i!!q eiEaEE"FE ii?iEl::::: :::::{ E< t..Ea

E&CE&E 3EEe33 Sttttttt t33Et Ets

Property Record



Fr t4t Gt {6t r7r ttl (e, trol
Municlprl Adhodty ol lhs City ol Mckeespon

pmrnrrhmurh.d 6. e60n!

p'Dp.dY lhr.uahod In. Aurhor!
P,!p.,lyIhblrhod th. Altho@

P6p.dr lhrcuahod rh. adMdY

9rcp.^v rhbqhout ti? !urioiltY

PrcFdy lh.dqho'd rh. AuhonrY

P/op.dy lh,outhoul rh. aut[oilLy

r.op.iy rhro!8hod 6e AurhoilrY

koc.ny rhrcu.houi rk adhor!

iucr flcxuP ?m6s(vrraDo

g

)t
D

,
E
D

)
).

Dmer4 rh'odrd rh. aurhor!

tuoe.nY rhb!i.u rr 
^urh..tY



The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the City McKeesport

Appraisal Work Papers
As of September 2016

Cost Approach
Development of Original Cost

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
G reenf ield, Wisconsin 53228

Office Telephone: 41 4-529-5755
J. Weinert's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weinert's E-Mail: rr,i. i,,r,l i@;-r '--,,,''- .l

Development of Original Cost
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utilitv
September 2016

Service Area

McKeesport

Duquesne

Dravosburg

Port Vue

Summary

Treatment & Pumping Plant

Subtotal

Land

Total

OriginalCost

35,653,314.30

8,489,374.00

1,188,766.76

t,455,194.O0

46,795,649.06

51,,374,799

108,170,439.06

6L,t32

1o8,231,570.06

Summary of Cost Approach

OriginalCost
less

Depreciation

24,787,3tL
4,009,355

398,682

352,tg0

29,551,549

50,472,92t

80,024,47O

6t,L32

80,085,502

Cost New

125,338,515

57,712,54I
LL,82r,704
20,893,653

2t5,166,523

105,863,107

322,O29,530

1,110,000

323,139,530

Cost New less

Depreciation

61,595,103

22,405,247

3,719,174

4,942,794

92,762,3t9

62,652,591

t55,4L4,909

155,41.4,909

Cost New less

Depreciation

adjusted for
External

Obsolescence

61,596,103

22,405,247

3,7',J,8,L74

4,942,794

92,762,319

62,652,591,

155,414,g09

1,110,000

156,524,909
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

McKeesport Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

361

(6)(s)(4)(3)(2)(1)

NARUC

Account Pipins Size Linear Feet Service Date

KLH Input KLH Input

36I
361

361

351

361

361

Total 8"

361

361

361

361

Total 10"

Total 12"

361.

361

351

351

Total 15"

10

10

10

10

30,762

10,108

17,064
4,403

62,339

22,833

173

15 26,574

15 r,780
15 7,8t7
15 65

r3.4 5412,210.80
3t.76 5321,030.08
60.83 S1,038,003.12
74.44 5327,7s9.32

52,099,003.32

14.3 589r,447.70
33.87 5773,353.71

L29.34 522,37s.82

5t,687,L77.23

1,2

12

L2

361

36L

351

KLH Input

8 47,086
8 92,567

8 70,433

8 17,839

8 213

8 23,000

KLH Input

1959

7976

L989

1999

2008

20to

1959

1976

1989

L999

1959

r976
2008

1959

r976
1989

2008

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols.

(2) & (4))

1,2.56

29.77

57.03

69.78

113.66

L20.62

(3)*(5)

5591,400.16

52,7ss,719.59

54,016,793.99

57,244,735.64

524,209.58

52,774,260.00

s11,407,118.95

5418,540.50

566,429.60

s129,897.33

S9,405.oo

5624,212.43

15.75

37.32

7L.49

I42.5

Deve I oope;rffBj o rlg i p a I cost
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

McKeesport Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

361

(6)(s)(4)(3)(21(1)

NARUC

Account

KLH Input

Pipine Size

KLH Input

Orieinal

Cost Per

Linear Feet Service Date Foot Orieinal Cost

KLH Input

2,557

9,864

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols.

KLH Input (2) & (4)) (3)*(s)

361

361

Total 16"

361

361

Total 18"

351

351

Total 20"

351

Total 21"

361

361,

361

361

351

Total 24"

T6

L6

18

L8

8,936

2L,O90

979

31

758

24,729
1,2,932

L0,245

t,623
865

1959

7976

1959

1999

1959

2008

2008

1959

I976
1989

2008

207r

17 543,469.00
40.27 5397,223.28

5440,592.28

1,9.45 s173,805.20
L08.04 52,278,563.60

S2,452,3G8.80

21..9r

198.23
52t,449.89

S6,145.13

527,595.02

20

20

2t 209.35 S158,687,30

S158,687.30

26.83 5563,479.07
63.s7 5822,087.24

121,.77 51,,247,533.65

242.71, s393,918.33
257.47 5231,361.55

s3,359,379.94

24

24

24

24

24
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

McKeesport Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

(21 (4) (s)

Orieinal

Cost PerNARUC

Account Pipine Size Linear Feet Service Date Foot Original Cost

KLH Inpul KLH Input KLH Input

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols

KLH Input (2) & (4)) (3 )* (s)

361

(6)(3)(1)

361

351

361

361

Total 30"

351

361

361

Total 36"

Total 42"

36L

Total 48"

30

30

30

30

252 2008

48 462 2008

54 238 2011,

34.2 5402,636.50
81.04 53t9,621..75
323.1, 5743,130.00
34t 5398,629.00

s1,864,017.36

41.58 s9,355.50
376.15 5143,689.30
392.78 s6,284,480.00

s6,437,524.80

442.86 s111,600.72

5Ltt,6oo.72

509.58 5235,425.96

5235,425.96

635.11 s151,156.18

S1s1,156.18

77,773

3,944

2,300
1,169

225

382

L5,000

1959

I976
2009

201.r

1959

2008

2009

35

35

36

42361

361

Total 54"

oeve I o qggrpt oj p,{lgp a I cost
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Pennsylvania American, lnc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2015

McKeesport Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

361

(2) (4) (s)

Orisinal

Cost PerNARUC

Account Pipine Size Linear Feet Service Date Foot Orieinal Cost

(6)(3)(1)

KLH Input KLH Input

361

Total 60"
60

KLH Input

485

219
L,963

2,490

51

13

KLH lnput

2008

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols
(2) & (4)) (3)*(s)

643.02 S311,854.70

s311,864.70

361

361

Total72"

Other

3SL Manholes

351 Manholes

361 Manholes

Total Manholes

364 Flow Meters

364

Total Flow Meters

360 Collection Sewers - Force

Total Force Mains

360 Air Release Manholes

TotalAir Release

Combined Sewer Overflow

361 (CSO) Structures

72

72

2008 776.46

2011 855.69

1959 352.93

2008 3192.63

2071 3518.41

1960 588.53

2008 5089.92

201,5 45.89

2015 5354.01

sr7o,044.74

51.,679,719.47

51,949,764.21

5878,795.70

5162,824.73

s45,739.33

s1,097,359.16

s6,474.93

s8L,438.72

S8z,9t3.ss

5L,263,672.93

5t,263,672.93

Sgs,se+. ts
S85,6G4.10

LT

16

27,537

L6

27 L960 359.22 59,968.94
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

McKeesport Service Area Development of Original Cost (OCl

361
(1) (21 (3) (4) (s) (6)

Orieinal
NARUC Cost per

Account Piping Size Linear Feet Service Date Foot Orieinal Cost

Unit Cost

KLH Input KLH Input KLH Input KLH Input "lflli:;' (3)*(s)

Total CSO Structures 59,969.94

Total McKeesport S3S,G63,314.30

oeveloqggrpgrj o r1g ipa I cost
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2015

Duquesne Service Area

351

(1) (21 (3)

Development of Original Cost (OC)

Cost

(s)

Linear Feet Service Date Per Foot Cost

(6)(4)

NARUC

Account Piping Size

KLH Input KLH Input

361

351

361

361

Total 8"

36L

361

367

351

Total 10"

Total 12"

8

8

8

8

KLH Input

19,000

25,018

19,035

4,82L

8,3r4
2,732

4,612
1,190

1,6,895

6,\7r

7,200

481

491,

KLH Input

1959

r976
1989

1999

1959

1976

1989

1999

1959

1976

1959

L975

1989

U nit Cost

Lookup

1.2.56

29.77

57.03

69.78

(3)*(5)

5238,640.00

5744,78s.86

Si.,085,623.08

5336,409.38

52,4O5,459.32

10

L0

10

10

13.4 5111,407.60
37.75 586,768.32
60.83 5280,547.96
74.44 sgg,Sgg.0o

5567,307.48

s241,598.50

5209,0t1'77
s450,510.27

1.5.75 S113,400.00
37.32 5I7,950.92
7r.49 s35,101.s9

S1G0,452.51

36r
361

I2
1,2

15

15

15

351

351

36L

14.3

33.87

36r

Total 15"

16 691 1959 17 s77,747.00
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Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

Duquesne Seruice Area

351
(1) (21

Development of Original Cost (OCl

Cost

(3) (4) (s) (5)

Linear Feet Service Date Per Foot Cost

NARUC

Account Piping Size

KLH Input KLH Input

361

Total 15"

Total 18"

Total 20"

Total 24"

Total 30"

15

KLH Input

2,666

2,415
5,700

7,356
3,495

2,769

3,487

1.,066

1959

1,976

1989

1959

r976

1959

Unit Cost

KLH Input Lookup (3)*(5)

1976 40.27 s107,359.82

s119,106.82

546,97L.7s

s61s,828.00

s662,799.75

1959 21.9r s5,981.43

Ss,981.43

361

361

36L

361

351

18

18

1959 1,9.4s

1999 108.04

27320351

24

24

24

34.2

81.04

30

30

361

361

26.83 s1,97,351.48
63.57 5222,L77.1.5

r2t.77 s337,181.13

5756,7L9.76

s119,255.40

s85,388.64

5205,644.O4

S6,819.12

s5,819.12

1,64351

Total 35"

35

Develoornent of Orioinal Cost. UUOUESNP

41.58



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\OC Development-McKeesport Collection System 4-8-2017.x1sx

Pennsylvania American, lnc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2015

Duquesne Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

Cost

(4) (s)
361

tzl (6)(3)(1)

NARUC

Account

KLH Input

Piping Size Linear Feet Service Date Per Foot Cost

KLH lnput KLH Input
Unit Cost

Loo kup (3 I' (5)KLH Input

Other
361 4.5'x3'

Total Other

351 Manholes

351 Large Manholes

351 Manholes

351 Manholes

36L Manholes

TotalManholes

354 Flow Meters
Total Flow Meters

360 Collection Sewers Force

Combined Sewer Overflow

351 (CSO) Structures

Total CSO Structures

Total Duquesne

6,237

395

23

280

t28
39

1963 390.93

1963 390.93

1963 390.93

1976 836.17

1989 1607.75

1999 1960.1

201.1. 5509.3

52,438,230.4L

52,q3,g,z3o.qt

5154,808.28
s8,991.39

s234,127.60

s205,024.00

576,443.9O

5679,395.L7

522,437.2O

522,497.2o

352.93 51,,41,r.72

5t,Att.72

S8,488,374.00

1959



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\OC Development-McKeesport Collection System 4-8-2017.x1sx

Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
Wastewater
lnvestor'Owned Utility
September 2016

Dravosburg Service Area Determination of Original Cost (OC)

351

(6)(s)(4)(3)(2)(1)

NARUC

Account Piping Size Linear Feet Service Date Per Foot Cost

KLH Input KLH Input

351

361

351

351

351

361

361

361

361

361

351

361 Eggshaped 50

Total 1962

351

361

Total 8"
Other

361 Manholes

354 Flow Meters

6

8

10

t2
15

L8

20

24

60

72

50

KLH Input

1,100
2L,Lt4

7,957

7,396
320

2,376
360

7,44O

428

2,227

513

45,337

2,0r7
I,446

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols.
(2) & (4))

1.2.87

13.72

14.64

t5.62
77.21

21.25

23.94

29.3r
77.64

93.75

77.64

{3 }- (s)

Sra,rsz.oo
s289,584.08

5rt6,49O.48

5115,525.52

s5,507.20

550,490.00

s8,618.40

542,206.4O

533,229.92

5208,803.52

547,593.32

s932,305.84

KLH Input

1952

1962

7962

1.962

t962
1962

1962

1962

1962

1962

L962

1980

t984

269

I

L962

39.05 578,763.85
47.!7 568,207.82

5L46,97t.G7

38s.s1 5103,702.19

8

8

Combined Sewer Overflow
361 (CSO) Structures

360 Collection Sewers Force

Total Dravosburg

20to 5401.55 55,401.55

1962 385.51 s38s.s1

Development of Oriqinal Cost' uravosburtr

5t,t88,766.76



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\OC Development-McKeesport Collection System 4-8-2017.x|sx

Pennsylvania American, Inc.

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

Port Vue Service Area Development of Original Cost (OC)

NARUC

Account Piping Size Linear Feet Service Date Per Foot

(5)

Cost

(s)(4a)(4)(3)(21

351
(1)

Original

Cost

KLH Input

361

351

361

35L

361.

361

361

351

361

Other

361 Manholes

354 Flow Meters

350 Collection Sewers Force

Combined Sewer Overflow

360 (CSO)Structures

Total Port Vue

KLH Input KLH Input

6 1,ggg
g 72,309

10 1,4,232

t2 6,995

15 9,661

L8 1.,317

21. 3,944
24 1,650

27 661

1.r1,657

597

4

150

KLH Input

1955 L919, 1928, 1949, 1960
1955 1919, 1928, 1949, 1960
L955 1919, !928, rg4g, 1960
L955 1919, 1928, 1949, 1960
1955 1919, !928, 7949, 1960
1955 1919, 7928, L949, 1960
1955 19L9, t928, t949, 1960
1955 1919, 1928, t949, 1960
1955 L919, 1928, t949, 1960

1955

2076

1955

287.77 Stlt,lgg

6492.25 S2s,969

54e4

369.22 51.,477

S1,455,194

AUS Input

Unit Cost

Lookup f(Cols

(2) & (4))

9.6

10.25

10.93

11.66

12.84

15.85

18.87

21,.88

24.88

t?\*/qt

5r8,221
574L,L67

s155,556

S81,44s

5rr1,,zo7
S2o,8s8

Slq,q23
S3o,t02

51,6,446

$1,2ss,4s5

329

1960



The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the City McKeesport

Appraisal Work Papers
As of September 2016

Cost Approach
Unit Cost Development

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
G reenf ield, Wisconsin 53228

Off i ce Telephone z 41 4-529-57 55
J. Weineft's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weineft'S E-Mail: v,:e i1ci.i i(arr;rLr!.t!,ir._r: i ri

Develooment of Unit Costs



3ta:ss:R
::s3:33;iE

R
R

IIttR
;::5a333:5i;3:;3R

S
93:tE

glpg:e
;;;;ia!:E

rtE
4E

E
E

i:ItS
qiniE

E
$89!E

93eiE
q::l:3f; 

:E
$E

E
$38;$

__t60;;stt$959;P
gS

5*3R
ah

ggB
:S

:qIE
E

iE
E

E
E

E
N

E
E

IE
E

E
E

{E
E

E
E

$R
::iigT

E
f, 

3g3ig$:S
E

E
A

:Ii3
t o 6 d; 

s 
-^ 

^ -- 
3 G

3g;95; 
I g:: 

t ts;;l 
* 

R
3 c c c e s C

 E
 -s : g i i i : : E

 e q I h 6 E
 E

 g : ! : ! i g E
 i : i 

E
 t * a : i g x : g * : I s ; H

 s s s

d 66 
6.. 

. 
^ r 

- o I: 
i 

{ i:S
 

t 
E

g; 
tG

 
B

 $B
 h:;

i-:a9!fqnlad
----.;g;G

3gP
*:IldB

85t863

999f 3g::sH
:,9999?::iiii::isss:sgqsE

S
:I35i;39R

S
;;3:R

et3g
dd6doo 

-4-06 
j., 

j;-J

iqiii3858€33rA
5::83:R

irtte:E
::s;:;adieqiE

i;33*$J:;;
6ddjndirrdiii;d!;F

--,.;9S
5$iG

S
B

t:riR
tE

::;g:36ggH
3S

S
;;;88

dd-;6d-odo-d

;;;€:S
S

S
R

R
S

P
IR

R
R

g4
F

6dddddd6dd;

qqiiiC
nE

i!E
i;!6e883E

yB
;d83;;3185;s;*rsE

g3e.e;ecB
ilit*i

:19:I:9:99:9: 
jA

r::9:: 
j::::::IE

:;::*9*9lga 
g;;;;ig

g3s3:;ilt33e3g;::;g€:r;;t*!tt+
s3

_d^-61n66;;i:sqqi3$gi

444ii9!!!!!q!E
E

q!E
i!!?G

G
E

E
*i€ssE

rsG
ia:;R

3*3r88:H
::rs:H

^66i66^g:::!rl:i::

3, sl
$ jl 

- -..: 
e 9 R

 * * R
 e N

 &
 i i 

R
 R

 R
 R

e P
 e e R

 i t * R
 R

 iR
 K

 R
R

 3 5 g I 9 
;3 

b B
 B

 B
 B

 g i I p x
allg iE

iE
E

iE
E

E
F

$!!E
E

E
!$F

F
E

E
iF

E
E

E
E

IE
$E

;E
E

5i$E
g$E

E
E

E
F

E
gE

E
gE

gg

€!I!

t8

R
i

iipB
F

::::8;

E
l:E

b

rB
R

K
i

5e55R
3R

B
$S

E
:n:::83G

3;s*n3:S
$835C

$X
S

gR
R

S
S

ets:8:E
:n5il;*3:

=
::::tiF

:::9::R
9=

i!:{*tt:9;;s::*::59;86;b3tp;3t3;;aglg

i{i5l:qiqq!(6rxx-;;.ri88.F
3r}is65*R

i:gsttcssR
tesR

=
F

33;
:9P

=
:<

{R
R

*E
tlt:iE

R
E

pt:*tsia199;g::=
*ssngdsS

g{R
ssg;e*gs

gS
E

S
R

F
A

:S
S

:9S
r:g::::::;I:*gsF

php=
:8xgeR

;r3f 
hB

i3e34p;=
;

- - i g9 ;;s 
h; 

s_6lR
P

 :E
S

 
g C

 g

883ilG
B

S
;59tt383gS

S
::::tE

S
S

te{a$sg}$r
E

9::::9i:ittt:x{:;eS
ergtE

;s;;ssasR
ri

3S
333i!sS

S
nR

S
R

R
R

S
S

s*B
855S

R
55B

38G
G

A
rB

S
9i8iB

R
S

e8e$ag9€xr
:*9:995;9E

;;S
3S

;cI;

f;9E
E

J83S
:s;;etg:x

.:999::::r:993E
S

triE
E

*9::ns::

$sd59sa3;i8t6g;ir;
q:99::::::9E

S
aIX

E
E

F
iR

R
S

g

5555:3::iP
S

eT
rF

E
S

:el3:95tR
X

6S
R

;i6S
:!::::l:l::ln:::

3*F
;g;R

:;R
i3s55R

B
353Ia

t39R
3S

r3R
3t

rB
s!:l

i;lggB

'd-":x9:g5I*;;$;35*9F
€:

::::::::::1:II::::t::::::::iE
tiE

R
H

S
::g:gsi**:eis

-6d.-*tifi 
R

E
iS

S
C

:S
S

C
:;tF

;
I : : : I r :: 

: : : : : :: 
: 1 : I :: 

: : ::: 
: :: 

: 
E

 { I t9 I :: 
*: 

I : 
S

 : 
S

 S
 * :;

F
ii:9c8fi 

f 5g8s8aasG
ls5588s3;C

9:E
:p3N

+
89S

gF
E

;g8h1R
p:B

g5X
_ii::R

:*E
5R

;I:**:S
::

gsS
atS

f 
R

F
ibG

6ilA
393S

;q9R
E

t;i;H
p653S

R
r

::::::::R
R

:itR
rxi:*ne::ggggss;3$3D

E
g

R
IR

:gs,
t3F

:!

:R
: 

{r
a:x:
ni

*R
*B

E
S

gS
gggS

*5S
B

g:: 
g:39ilb!5:R

53X
gs*snss*

:::::l::::9:R
ili:

;33:t3X
R

R
9:E

3S
t8pE

sE
8g

:::1I:::::::::92

o:96c-

;E
;

:391;iR
:P

s!c!i!!ii!!eG
;;83:ee^*R

3r*3xB
t3;R

8s33;33{
:ll:::l::::

c:G
rF

F

5bs 
a;

;s*3G
85'l5sB

:t$5i^ 
:-ei{,

gsR
tr93s;c9s3r;9: 

seel
--- 

i!
1f 

aF
 

@
9E

o--

$:;;*9E
8:R

*fiS
;g*$ 

:gs.'
--- 

d!

-.-85G
.

see 
i:

E
g:6n-

EItga

!

- 
;E

;:i

gsP
E

i9S
S

X
S

qS
B

F
:9

:T
P

99*
isE

iE
i€;;!ggIi;;

:t

9!!P
;



g;s*rgtR
5393xtr9re:*;;xR

G
3R

;:$B
lds5*3:R

8sat8F
r3c:grt

iE
lI6E

E
iS

S
::536::*6ltB

*;ii3t$B
;93=

tF
r:{I::;c:gR

a5:F
8

1 
q 

qq 
q 

1 
- 

1{ 
all 

aq4 
o 

\qq 
q 

- 
19.-n!-6 

6-6-o-!1r 
o-

9;A
;i:1$g6l6e55S

63rA
6P

tS
3hS

F
R

l:3R
X

A
:eX

9g:tg:58C
3i338

1 
- 

a 
a 

1aq9s-t.-e 
q 

qq11 
n 

14F
 

q 
16 

qF
 

aqq6--.-1i-

e:::$9:i5d:R
*E

tetarsJE
R

6:sg3F
3cti8srstc98R

e:3:gts::3
- : 

_q : : : : f : : : 
-q : :. :. : :. -i : : 3 i i : i 

*1 i i i 
{q : : : : : : : 

.c 3. :

--^--i;$s8:s$3=
s:;K

gag!6oo6oq6-;-1

839:e:83igR
:gS

ts:5?qrS
F

S
X

;998S
P

358re8F
59r:t€8tR

E
3C

6F
8

3id36"9R
rP

S
*8rg3F

3A
t5::$S

R
S

E
X

839R
*$i5etS

6q3;S
;R

C
:58:

P
rt*eges6:g;a:8E

:*R
s953R

1E
f 

a819R
;9$S

8:B
:R

S
3=

t9i83e8R

ssggl;:*$*r9gs*g8E
:R

R
:l$ss$F

sE
685:F

s9sxt;98:e5hB
T

;E
R

9;lt;R
:{!t1i99}3:85s;t9lF

5:i99S
G

G
:333t*sF

8};S
S

:tS
is:

9t3383$8R
::S

8g::5'558$99i3;G
B

5:98;eS
E

lerS
i;3R

g::*li*

o6.o99:::a:1j999

D
evelopm

ent of U
nit C

osts



5:\water industry\PA American Mcl(e€sport\Main & Manhole Costing xlsx

Summary Main & Manhole Costing

Unit Cost

Size 2OL7 Scranton

8

10 96.64
t2 303 25 444.42

15 282.32 737 20

16 l5t.Lo

zt ZE+.LJ

z4 r5t 2)

InterceptOrs

24 539 77

30 464t5
36 557.80

38 567.80
48 622.95

52 695.27

54 696.27

60 757.14

66 830.58

7a L,L97,O8

80 1,197.08

Manholes

Scranton Interceptors
Scranton 2O02-2OO4

Sadsbury

Size Unit Cost Trend Line Growth Fitted

8 143 34 85.28 r49 52 L49.62

10 96.64 114.55 159.51 159 51

L2 209,76 143.83 170.25 L7025
18 137 16 231.65 206.65 231.65
zt 264.15 275.57 727.68 275 57
24 L37 25 319.48 250.84 319.48
30 464.L5 407 3 304.47 407 3

36 667 80 495.13 359 57 495.13

38 567.80 s24.4 39423 524.4

48 62295 670,77 544.51 670.77

52 596.27 729.32 679.59 729.32

54 59627 758 5 560 93 758,6

60 757.34 846.42 80224 846.42
55 830.58 934.25 97377 914.2s

78 1,197.08 1109.89 1434.69 1109.89

80 1,197.08 !!39.L7 1530.41 1139.17
20 250.93 220.44

Sadsbury Size

143.34 8

10

15

18
a1

Average

143.34
96 64

209 t6
15l to

264.15

q?a 77

464.L5

667.8

667.8

622.95

695 27

757.34
830 58

1 L97.08

L797 08

5,145.58
L7,559 8L

18,082.89
9,420 L4

9,496 02

5,195.00
5,442.80
3,324.80

1,532.60
3,532.60

3,381.30
4,375-80
5,L7L.4A

7,878.20

3,357.90
3,997.50

5,596.s0
3,198.00

3,083.03
3,O52.50

3,345.54
4,029 30

4,539.80

5,105.00

2,878 20

5,746 04

4,202.55

18,082.89

1800 _____ ._.

r1600 .-

7400 -- - -

1200 

- 

.._ __
Unit Cost

1000 ---
Trend Line

8oo -i--- 
Growth

6nn + 

-- 

---
'Fitted

400;-- --
200 --

0-
0 20 40 50 80 100

Min imum

Mean

Median
Maximum



Size

Year

Main Type Installed

Main & Manhole Costing.xlsx

Quantity Original Cost

Unit Quantity
LF 288 47,055.78

LF 444 67,536.20

Cost lndex
Installatio

Unit Cost n Year

153.39 404
I52.tI 404

Jefferson Ave / Route #307 / Genet St

Jefferson Ave / Route S307 / Genet St

Contract f 8

Contract fl 8

Manholes

Manholes
Contract # 11,

Contract # 11

Manholes

Contract # L9

Contract # 1.9

Manholes

12 PVC

15 PVC

t2 PVC

2T PVC

10 PVC

t-8 PVC

L5 PVC

24 PVC

2002

2002

Appraisal

Year

20L6

2016

20L6

20t6
20L6
20L6
20L6
2016

20L5
20L6
201,6

2015

Cost lndex
Appraisal

Year

7so
750

750
750

750
750
750
750
750

750
750

750

Cost

Translator

L.856

1.856

Appraisal

Data Unit
Cost

303.25

282.32

Io
o
o
!
3o
f

o

;
no

2004 LF

2004 LF

2004 EA

2004 EA

2004 LF

2004 LF

2004 EA

2004 LF

2004 LF

2004 EA

L,708 433,315.77

2,322 3s3,3L7.7r

15 Lst,726.52
10 L04,L64.07

607 33,794.62

55r- 43,532.65

7 37,984.47

695 54,924.40

3,101 245,L74.28

L s,470.O6

253.70

L52 16

10,115. 1.0

ro,41,6.4t
55.67

79.01

5,426.35

79.03

79.06

5,470.06

432

432
432
432
432
432
432
432

432

432

L.736 440.42

1..736 264.L5

r.736 r,7,559.81

I.736 1-8,082.89

L.736 96.64

t.736 t37.76
L.736 9,420.L4

1..736 L37.20

L736 L37.25

L.736 9,496.02

Scranton 2002-2004



Account

351 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury CorFEration
361 Sadsbury Corporation
351 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
361 Sadsbury Corporation
351 Sadsbury Corporation

361 Village of pomeroy (North)
351 Villate of pomeroy (Norrh)
351 VillaBe of pomeroy (North)

351 Villag€ of pomeroy (North)
161 Village of pomeroy {North)
361 Village of pomeroy (Nodhl

351 Villate of pomeroy (South)
361 Village of pomeroy (South)

361 Village of Pomeroy (South)
361 Village of pomeroy (Sourh)

361 Village of pomeroy (Sourh)
361 Village of pomeroy (South)

361 Villate of Pomeroy (South)

361 Villate of pom€roy (South)

361 Village of pomeroy (South)

161 Villate of Pomeroy (South)

361 Village of Sadsburyville (Nodh of Route 30 Bypas)
f51 Villate of Sadsburyville (North of Route 30 Bypas)
361 Village ofSadsburyville (North of Route 30 Sypas)
351 VillaSe of Sadsburyville (North ol Route 30 BypaJ)
361 Villa8e of Sadsburyville (North of Route 3O Bypas)
361 Villate of Sadsburyville (North of Route 30 Bypas)
361 Villa8e of Sadsburyville (North of Route 30 Bypas)
361 VillaBe of Sadsburyville (North of Route 3O Bypas)

361 Villaee of Sadsburyville (North of Route 3O Bypas)
161 Villate of Sadsburyville {North of Route 30 Bypas)
351 Village of Sadsburyville (Norrh of Route 30 gypas)

361 Village of Sadsburvville (North of Route 3O Bypas)
361 Village of Sadsburyville (North of Route 3O Bypas)
361 Village of Sadsburyville (Norih of Roure 30 Bypas)
361 Village of Sadsburyville (North of Route 30 Bypas)
361 Village of Sadsburyville (North of Route 30 Bypas)
361 Village of Sadsburyville (Nonh of Route lO Bypas)

Year

Installed

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

1999

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Gravity

Gravaty

Gravity

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Gravity

6ravity
Gravity

Gravity

Gravity

GravitV

Gravrty

Gravity

6ravitV

Gravity

Gravity

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Manhole

Quantity
unit Quantity
LF 2,800 361 2016

351 2016

351 2015
361 2016

361 2016

361 2016
36L ZOt6

361 2015
351 2016

361 2015

361 2016
351 2016
351 2016

177 20L6

377 2016

377 2016

377 2076

371 2016

177 2016

469 2015

459 2016
469 2015

459 2016

469 2015
469 2015

469 20t6
459 2015

469 2015
469 20t6

530 20t5
530 70t6
530 2016

530 2076

530 20L6

530 20L6
530 20L5

530 2016

6t4 2016

6L4 2016

614 2015

614 20L6

6t4 2016
514 2016

514 2076

6L4 20L6

5r4 2076

Depth Marn Type

Cost Inder Cost Inder ADoraisal
Installatio Appraisal Appraisal Cost Data Unit

Original Cost L,nit Cost n Year year year lranslator Cost

12

t2
8

10

8

8

SDR-35 PVCP

SDR-35 PVCP

SDR.35 PVCP

SOR-35 PVCP

5DR-35 PVCP

SDR.35 PVCP

SDR-35 PVCP

SDR.35 PVCP

8 0-10 Ft sDR-35 PVCP

8 10 14 Fr S0R-3s PVCP

8 Over 14 ft SDR-35 PVCP

8 0-8 fr sDR-35 PVCP

8 8,10 Fr SDR-35 PVCP

8 10-12 ft sDR 3s PVCP

8 12 14 fr 5DR-35 PVCP

8 Over 14 ft SDR-35 PVCP

8 0-8 fr sDR-15 PVCP

8 8,10 ft S0R-35 PVCP

8 10-12 ft sDR-35 PVCP

8 12-14 [r SDR-35 PVCP

8 14-16 fr SDR-35 PVCP

8 0-8 fr DtP

8 14 16 fr DtP

I Over 15 ft DIP

8 0-8 fr 5DR-3s PVCP

8 8,10 ft sDR,35 PVCP

8 10-12 ft 50R 35 PVCP

LF 1,650

LF 2,1s0

LF 2,800
LF 2,650

t-F 1,000

LF 2,500

14

5

100,632 00 35 94

34,146 00 3J 94

s5,250 00 31 48

59,574 00 32 16

79,408 00 28 35

81,594 00 30 79

32,190@ 32 t9
71,950 0O 2a7a
35,000 00 2,s00 00
10,400 00 2,500 00
6,400 00 1,600 00
8,s00 00 1,700 00

39,100 00 1,700 00

150 ZO78 74 6A

750 707A 78 84

7SO 207A 69 57

7s0 207a 61 24

7s0 207a 58 9l
750 207A 63 98

750 2078 68 14

750 2 07a 59 80
7SO 2078 5,195 00
750 2 07a 5,402 80
7s0 201a 3,324 80
1so 2 0?8 3,s32 60
750 2078 3,532 60

750 I 989 t4215
150 1 989 154 68

7S0 1 989 170 60

750 1 989 3,381 l0
150 1 989 4,375 80
750 1 989 5,77L 40

750 1 599 t49 63

7s0 1 599 154 43

750 1 599 l7S 22

750 1 599 197 @
750 I 599 221 59

7SO 1 599 2,A1820
75O 1 599 3,357 90

750 1 599 3,997 50
7qo

750 1 599 3,198 0o

750 I 415 115 04

7SO 1 415 129 19

750 1 415 141 34

150 I 41s 75607
750 1.41s 181 54

150 1 415 149 00
750 1 415 195 59

7s0 1 415 273 52

750 1227 148 55

1SO | 22L 150 70

750 L22t 93 80

750 t227 3,083 03

7so 7 227 3,052 s0
75O | 221 3,345 54

750 | 22r 4,029 30

750 | 22L 4,619 AO

750 7 221 6,105 00

EA

EA

€A

EA

EA

2000 LF

2000 LF

2000 LF

2000 EA

2000 EA

2000 EA

2005 LF

2005 tF

2005 t-F

2005 LF

2005 LF

2005 EA

2005 EA

2005 EA

2005 €A

2005 EA

2007 LF

2007 LF

2007 LF

zooT LF

2007 LF

2007 LF

2007 LF

7007 LF

2009 LF

2009 LF

2009 LF

2009 EA

2009 EA

2009 EA

2009 EA

2009 EA

2009 €A

5,620 403,348 00 7177
1,581 1i10,731 00 77 77

559 47,945 00 8577
30 51,000 00 1,700 00
9 19,800 00 2,20000
4 10,400 00 2,600 00

t7a 15,283 00 93 58

468 4s,200 00 95 58

539 10,022 00 109 58

707 25,581 00 123 58

85 11,179 00 138 58

4 J,2OO 00 1,800 00
2 4,200 00 2,100 00
1 2,s00 00 2,s00 00
z T,ooooo 3,500 00
1 2,000 00 2,000 00

1,299 105,509 00 81 30

2,940 D2,O74 N 91 30

1,705 172,818 00 101 30

2,073 22A,652OO 110 30

631 4t,727 00 r2a30
30 3,159 00 105 30

z4o 33,192 00 138 30

175 33,828 00 193 30

260 31,534 00 L2l6t
766 94,540 00 121 42

I29 9,910 00 76 A2

9 22,125OO 2,525 00

12 30,000 00 2,500 00
5 13,700 00 2,14000
7 23,100 @ 3,300 00

5 19,000 00 1,800 00
2 10,0flr 00 5,000 00



Size

Year

Main Type Installed

Main & Manhole Costing.xlsx

Quantity Original Cost

Unit Quantitv
LF 288 47,055.78

LF 444 67,536.20

Cost lndex
Installatio

Unit Cost n Year

L63.39 404
r52.tL 404

Cost Index

Appraisal Appraisal

Year Year

zoL6 750

20L6 7s0

Cost

Translator

1.855

1-.856

Appraisal
Data Unit

Cost

303.25

28?.32

LF

LF

EA

EA

LF

LF

EA

LF

LF

EA

(f
o
q
o
E'
3
lD

o
c
;'
n
o

Jefferson Ave / Route #307 / Genet St

Jefferson Ave / Route #307 / Genet St

Contract # 8

Contract # 8
Manholes
Manholes

Contract # LL

Contract # 11-

Manholes

Contract # 19

Contract # 19

Manholes

T2 PVC

15 PVC

12 PVC

2L PVC

1.0 PVC

L8 PVC

15 PVC

24 PVC

2002

zoo2

2004

2AO4

2004

2004
2004

2004

2004

2004

2004
2004

432

432
432
432
432
432

432

432

432
432

750

750

750
750

750
750

7SO

750
750

750

L,708 433,3L5.77

2,322 353,317.71

1-5 75t,726.52
10 LO4,L54.O7

607 33,794.62

551 43,532.65

7 37,984.47

595 54,924.40

3,101 245,174.28

L 5,470.06

L.736 440.42

t.736 264.L5

t.735 17,559.81

L.736 r.8,082.89

L.736 96.64

1.736 L37.t6
r.736 9,420.L4
L.736 L37.24

L.736 137.25

r.736 9,496.02

253.70

L52.t6
1-0,115.10

to,416.47

55.67

79.0L

5,425.3s
79.03

79.06

5,470.06

20L6

20L6
20L6
20L6
20L6
201,6

20L5
2076
20L6
20L6

Scranton 2002-2004



Pennsylvania-American Water Company, Inc
Scra nto n Sewer Aut h ority

PennVest Loan #71162
2O02-2OO4 Construction Costs

Otiginal
Year Unit Quantity Amounl

't:

Acct
No ltem Description

Allocate
Specific
Costs

Adjusted
Origrnal
Amount

Allocite
Costs

Adjusted
Original
Amount

Jefferson Ave / Route #307 / Genet St:
361 1 2" PVC Pipe - Route #307
361 15" PVC PiDe - Route #307

Total Contract #8

Contsact #1 1 :

10" PVC Pipe
18" PVC Pipe
Stream Crossing - Ash St
Slream Crossing - Myrtle St
lvlanholes

Total Contract #1 1

360 Boilers - Basement in the Sludge Hauling Bldg

Retired )llijrl:)r-lfilnlrc.plil(',.nrr]rtt

Relired W;rtt, Pumps

380 Bell Frller Pless - ReJrlacem€nl parls

Contracl #19
361 '15" PVC Pipe - Linden St
36'1 24" PVC Pipe
361 Manhole

2002 LF 2a8
2002 LF 444

LF 1 ,708
LF 37O
Lr z,oz1

EA 15

EA5
EA4

tor

s30,456,61
43,712 45

173,762.62

s30,456 61 $18,59S 17 947,055 78
43,712.45 23,82375 67,536 20

173,76262 94.70246 208,465 08See Note Jellerson Avc, 4 G.inei Sl \./\rrll be calculittr.r in the nirrn replrccnr..nI

Total Jefierson Ave / Route #307 / Genel St

Retired Gnt Screw Assemblies
Retired R3e Pump - Shafl & lmpeller
Retired .l.uthonlyLabor

Tolal Grit Scrt:trs E Rau Fur 
'1r

Contract t 8:
361 12'PVC Pipe
361 Relining of 18" VC Pipe
361 21'PVC Pipe
361 Relining of Pipe
361 Manholes
361 lilanholes
363 Service Laterals
363 Service Laterals
363 Service Laterals
361 Modifications to Existing Regulator Chamber

s247,931 68

$15,133 36
23,260.00

3,852 40

s0 00 s247,931.68 $13s,125 38 5383,057 06

20a2 EA 2
2002 EA 1

?oo2 LoT

$1,518 49 $16,651_85
2,333 91 25,593 91

(3,852 40) 0 oo

s16,651.85
2s,593 91

000

2004
2004
2004
2004
2004
2004
?oo4
2004
200/'
?oo4

s42,245.76

s280,461 37
95,301.71

22E,035.80
32,900 00
98,204.20
67,419 65
26,901 90
6,623.29
8,750 00

60,775 00

s0 00 942.24570

s280,461 37
d< ad4 a4

228,035,80
32,900 00
s8,204.20
67,419 65
26,901 98

o,ozJ zl
8,750 00

60,775 00

50 00

s1 52,854 40
51 ,940 44

124,281 9'l
'17,930 85
53,5223?
36,744 42
14,661 86

3,609 76
4,768 84

33,123 02

s42.245,76

!,433,3.15 77
147,242 15
352,317 71

50,830 85
151,726 52
104.164 07
41,563.84
10,233 05
1 3,51 8_84

93,898 02

2004 LF
2004 LF
zOU EA
2004 EA
2004 EA

361
361

36'l
361
361

GOA< e7t nn

607 $21,873 39
551 29,1762A

1 71,790 62
1 70,130.44
7 24,585 25

s0 00 s905,373.00 $493,437 S2 S1,398,610 82

$21,873.39 511,921 23 S33,794,62
28,176 2E 15,356 37 43,532 65
71,790 62 39,126 64 110,917 26
70,130 44 38,221 83 108.35227
24,585 25 13,399 22 37.584 47

EA2004

-)lril/l LOT

:'l)l.i,l EA 3

?ooa LOT

LU I OYf,

LOT 3,101
EAl

$21 0,s55_98

$240,403 35

s33,467 00

s20,630.00

i 17,500 c0

s35,549 53
158,697 77

3 540 47

s0 00 $216,555 98

s240,403 35

!,33,467.00

s20,630 00

t47,500,00

$35,549 53
154,6e7 77

3,540 47

91 1 8,025 29

$1 9,374 87
E6,406 51

1,929 59

$334.s81 27

s240 403 35

s33,467 00

s20,630 00

$47,500 00

$54,924.40
245,174 28

5.470 06

2004
2004
2004

Total Contract #'19

Subtotal

Costs to Allocale:
Admin Cost
Legal Fees
Interest During Construction
AJE Fees
Contingenqy
Force Account

Total Costs to Allocate

Grand Total

Subsequently retrred \"rlh ncser pro,ectt
ffrese rvere parts replaced on lhe Dress Slrll in ser vrce

$197,777 77 s0 00 s197.777 77 $107,790 97 5305.568 74

s1 ,951,884 54

s2,405 10
4,367 79

90,806 20
443,949.23
301,848'14

1 1 ,003 00

s0 00 $1 ,951,884 54 $854,379 46 52,806,264 00

s2,405 10
4,367 79

90,806 20
443,949 23
301 ,848.1 4

11 003 00

($2,405.1 0)
(4,367 7e)

(90,806 20)
(443,94s 23)
(301,848 14)

(1'1,003.00)

$0 00

000
000
000
000
000

s854 379 46 $0 00 $8s4,379 46 ($854,379.46) s0 00

$2.806.264 00 s0 00 $2.E06.264 00 $0 00 s2 806.264 00



Itelr Description Unit Quantity Amount Costs Amount

Pennsylvania-American Water Gompany, Inc.
Scnnton Sewer Authoity

PennVest Loan#71281
2002 Construction Costs - Jefferson Ave/RT #307/Genet St Sewer Line

Original Allocate

288 $2,327.17
444 3,340.04

173,762.62

Adjusted
Original

$28,129.44 $30,456.61
40,372_41 43,712.45

173.762.62

'12" PVC Pipe - Route #307
15' PVC Pipe - Route #307
Jefferson Ave & Genet St.

Subtotal

Costs to Allocate:
Contracted Labor
Authority Labor
Stone, Concrete & Miscellaneous
Paving

Total Cost to Allocate

Total

LF
LF

LOT

$179,429.83

LOT $5,427.50
LOT 46,672.32
LOT 14,932.95
LOT 1,469.08

$68,501.85 $247,931.68

($5,427.50) $0,00
(rc,672.32) 0.00
(14,932.95' 0.00
(1,469.08) 0.00

$6E,501.85 ($68,501.8s) $0.00

$0.00$247,931.68 $247.931.68

Develooment of Unit Costs



Pennsylvanla.Arnedcen Water Company, tnc.
Scnnton S ewe r Auth o rity

PennVest Loan S71281
2004 Construction Costs - Contracl #8 (Mlnmka Interceptor)

Adjust€d
Original Allocate Original

llem Description Unit Quanstv Alount Costs Amount

Parl A (Exisfno JOMH#i to New MH *1.11
21" PVC Pipe
Manholes

Sublotal

Costs to Allocate:
Mobilizadon & Closeout
Clearing & Grubting
Survey
E&S Control
Seeding & Sod
Blasting & Rock Ercavation
Stone, Concilete & MiscellarEous
Paving

Tolal Cost to Altocate

Total PartA

Part B (Davis St- & RR R/VV Sanitarv Sewers)
12 PVC PIpe
Manholes
Service Latefals

Subtotal

Costs to Allocate:
Mobilization & Closeout
E&S Conhol
Seeding
Blasdng & Rock ExcavaUon
Stone, Concrete & Mlscellaneous
Paving

Total Cost to Allocate

Total Part B

Part C (Crane St Reoulator Chamber Modiftcations)
Modiff caUons lo.Existing Regulator Chamber

Total Part C

Part D (Forest Court Sew€rs)
Relining of 18" VC Pipe
SeMce Laterals

Subtotal

costs to Allocale:
Mobilizallon & Closeout
Slone, Concrete & Miscellaneous
Paving

Totial Cost to Allocate

Total Part D

Part E (Fore€t Court Seurers)
Relinlng of Pipe
Service Laterals

Total Part E

Total Conhact #8

s141,065.00 $86,970.80 $228.035.80
60,750.00 37,454.20 98,204.20

$201.815.00 $124A2530 $326.240.00

LF 2322
EA 15

LOT
LOT
LOT
toT
tor
LOT
LOT
toT

$15,000.00 ($15,000.00)
7,500.00 (7,500.00)

2s,000.00 (25,000,00)
5,000.00 (s,000.00)

24,750.OO (24,750.00)
6,500.00 (6,500.00)

40,'175.00 (40,175.00)
500.00 (500.00)

$0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0124,425.00 (S124,425.00) $0.00

$326,240.00

1,708 $127,710.00
10 30,700.00
5 122fi.00

s0.00 $1126,240.00

$152,751.37 $280,461.37
36,719.65 67,.f19.65
14,651.98 26,901.98

LF
EA
EA

LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT

s170,660.00

$15,000.00
3,500.00

12,268.00
20,630.00
95,175.00
57,550.00

$204J23.N

($15,000.00)
(3,500.00)

(12,268.00)
(20,630.00)
(95,1 75.00)
(57,550.00)

$371,783.00

$0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$204,123.00 ($204.123.00) $0.00

s374,783.00

$60,775.00

$0.00 s374,783.00

$60,775.00

LF 370
EA4

$60,775.00

s64,750.00
4,500.00

$0.00 $a0.77s.00

$30,551.71
2,',t23.29

$95,301.71
6,623.29

LOT
LOr
LOT

$69,250.00

$15,000.00
16,875.00

800.00

$32,675.00

(s15,000.00)
(16,875.00)

(800.00)

$ 101.92s.00

$32,675.00 ($32,875.00) $0.00

s0.00
0.00
0.00

s101.925.00

$32,900.00
8,750.00

$'101 ,925.00

$32,900.00
8,750.00

$0 00

LF 122
EA1

s41,650.00 $0.00 $41,650.00



Pennsylvania-American Water Company, Inc.
Scranton Sewer Authority

PennVest Loan tt71281
2004 Construction Costs - Contract #11 (Sewer Stream Crossing Replacement)

Item Description
Original

Unit Quantitv Amount
Allocate
Costs

Adjusted
Original
Amount

10" PVC Pipe
18" PVC Pipe
Stream Crossing - Ash St
Stream Crossing - Myrtle St
Manholes

Subtotal

Costs to Allocate:
Mobilization & Closeout
Clearing & Grubbing
Survey
E&S Control
Seeding & Sod
Blasting & Rock Excavation
Stone, Concrete & Miscellaneous

Total Cost to Allocate

Total Contract #11

LF
LF
EA
EA
EA

607
551

1

I
7

$'t7,430.92
22,453.70
57,210,00
55,887.00
19,592.00

$4,442.47
5.722.58

14,580.62
14,243.44
4,993.25

$21,873.39
28,176.28
71,790.62
70,130.44
24,595.25

LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT
LOT

$172,573.62

$5,000.00
7,117.00
4,000.00

26,327.36
1,375.OO

2,010.00
(1,847.00)

$43,982.36

($5,0oo.oo)
(7,117.O0)
(4,000.00)

(26,327.36)
(1,37s.00)
(2,010.00)
1,847.00

$216,555.98

$0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$43,982 36 ($43,982.36) $0.00

$216,55s.e8 $0.00 $216,555.98

llDevelopment of Unit Costs



Pennsylvania-American Water Company, Inc.
Scranlon Sewer Authoritv

PennVest Loan #71162
2004 Construction Costs

Original
Amount

Allocate
Costs

Adjusted
Original
AmountItem Unit Qua

VI/WTP Plan Modifications - Phase 1B (Contract #4 & #5)
Blowers
Blower Controls
Blower Master Control Panel
Local Blower Control Panel
FCI Flow Transmitters
Danfoss DO Probes & Transmitters
FDC / Limitorque Valves - Blower lnlet
M&H / Limitoroue Airflow Control Valves
Slide Gates
Aeration Equipment
Weirs & Baffles
Piping (SS & Sleel) & Valves
Chlorine Injection System
Radio Telemetry
Installation of Handrail & Posts
Replacement of Grating
Replace Carbon Media in Existing Scrubber

Total WWTP Plan Modifications - Phase 1B (Contract tt4 & tts\

WWTP Plan Modifications - Phase 1B (Contract #23 & #24)
Sluice Gates EA
Bar Screen EA
Grit Piping Replacement LOT
Chlorine System Modifications LOT
Emergency Lighting LOT
High Flood Alarm EA

Total WWTP Plan Modifications - Phase 1B (Contract #23 & ll24)

Subtotal

Costs to Allocate:
Legal Fees
Interest During Construction
A/E Fees
Contingency

TotalCosts to Allocate

Grand Total

These were all replacements for existing equipment

$703.122.60 $296,623.88 $999,746.48

1

4

8
4
n

40
4
4

EA.
LOT
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA

LOT
LOT

$698,768.s0
30,495.26
61,616.05

133,700.58
84,604 79
54,578.69
45,351.92

142,623.96
219,91826
476,391.67

84,425.63
528,570 00

7,244.89
6,450.92

106,960.00
18,200.00
76 206.00

$294,786.97
12,864.93
25,993 75
56,403.80
35,691.93
23,024.92
19,132.46
60,168.27
92,776.15

200,973.70
35,616.35

222,985.99
3,056.38
2,721.43

45,122.84
7,677.97

32.148 76

$993,555.27
43,360.19
87,609.80

190,104.38
120,296.72

77,603.6.1

64,484.38
202,792.23
312,694.41
677,365.37
120,041 .98
751,55s.99

10,301.27
9,172.3s

152,O82.84
25,877 97

108,354.76

z
z

s2,776,106.92

$51,176 78
565,638.03

40.123.15
36,169.64

5,459.00
4,556.00

$1,1 71 ,146.60

$21,589 77
238,623.7s

16,926 61

15,258.76
2,302.97
1,922.02

$3,947,253.52

$72,766.55
804,261.78

57,049.76
51,428.40

7,761 97

6,478.02

$3,479,229.s2

$1 1 ,126.48
117,502.30

1,010,757.20
328,384.50

$1,467,770.48

($11,126 48)
(117,502.30)

(1,010,757.20)
(328,384.50)

$4,947,000.00

$0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$1,467,770.48 ($1,467.770.48) $0.00



Item

Scranton Sewer Authority

1972 Interceptor Mains & CSOs

Year
Installed

--- Quantity -----
Unit No

Original
Gost

Diameter
/ width

Pipe Size

36"
36"
54"

72"
84"
84"

Io
o
o
E
3
o

o

=n
+

I nterceptor Main Assets:
24"
30'
36"
39"
48"
52"
54"
60"
66"
78"
90"
Manholes - Interceptor

Total Interceptor Main Assets

CSO Assets:
Outfalls
Regulator Chambers
Diversion Manholes
Culverts

Total CSO Assets

Toial Account 361

1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972
1972

LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
EA

7,866
1,846

456
735

1,866
781

4,341
8,738
3,590
6,304

358
133

$s54,788 98
111,959.90
39,790.56
64,136.'10

151,892.40
71,055 38

394,944.18
864,712.48
389,622.70
986,07'1.68

55,998.36
106,820.28

$3,791,793.00

1 15,140.00
695,414.85

25,798,65
7,073,819 60

$7,910,173.10

$11,701,966.10

Unit Cost

$70.53
)ou.ob
s87.26
$87.26
s81.40
s90.98
$90.98
$98.96

s108.53
$156.42
s156.42
$803 16

$1,439.25
$ 10,698.69

$1 ,719.91
$557.30

24
30
36
38
48
52
54
60
66
78
80

Volume bv Volume

20.79
32.48
46.7E
52.12
83.16
97.59

105.24
129.93
157.22
219.58
230.99

1972
1972
1972
1972

EA
EA
EA
EA

80
65
15
46



Retulator
TYpe

tl

Storrle
Volume

(Mc)
0.01

Storate L972

Volume Cost Per

{Gallons) 1 gallon

8,000.0 s2.6o92
9,000,0 s2.6092

13,000.0 s2 5092
13,000.0 52.6092
14,000 0 52.5092
14,000.0 s26092
17,000.0 52.6092
17,000.0 s2.60e2
17,000.0 52.6092
4U,WU.U )2,0U>t
23,000.0 s2.5092
23,000.0 s2.6a92
42,O0O.O 52,6092
4s,000.0 52,6092
47,000 0 52.6092
59,q)0.0 s2.5092
75,000 0 50.6793
81,000.0 s0.6793
85,000.0 s0.5793
87.000 0 50.6793

117,000.0 s0.5793
134,000,0 s0,6793
158,000.0 s0.5793
150,000.0 s0.6793
182,0OO.0 50.5793
211,000 0 90 6793

245,000.0 50.5793
250,000.0 50.6793
263,000 0 50.3961
288,000.0 s0.3961
296,000.0 50.3951
300,000.0 s0.3951
302,000.0 s0.3961
360,000 0 S0.3951
372,OOO0 50.3961
466,000.0 s0 3961
482,000.0 50.1951
68s,000 0 s0.3961
7s0,000.0 50.3961
761,000.0 s0.3951
857,000 0 50.3961
897,000.0 s0 3961

tzrtuuu,u )u,5>oI
1,357,000.0 50.3961
1,350,00c.0 s0.3961
1,559,000.0 s0.396r

ScEnton I (r v.,(, r AuthoritV

CSOs & Culvert Storage

Original

Cost

s20,873 60

s23,,1 ri2.80

533,919.60

533,919 60

536,s28,80

s35,s28 80

544,356 40

544,355.40

s44,356 40

5s2,184.00

560,011.60

s60,011.60

sr.09,586 40

5L77,4r4.O0
5122,632 40

5rs3,942 80

550,947 s0

555,023 30

ss8,419.80
<qo nqq 1n

579,478.70

s91,026.2O

s107,329 40

s108,688.00

sr23,632 60

5143,332 30

s156,428 50

5169,82s.00
s1o4,774.30

s114,076.80

sLtt,24s.60
s118,830.00

5LL9,622.2O

s142,s96.0O

5747,349.20

5rB4,ssz.60

5r9o,92O.20
5271,328.50

5297,O7s 0O

s301,432.10

s343,418.70

5355,301.70
5354,808. r0
s!t17,so7.70

5s38,695.00

s517,519.90

57,O73,8L9 60 By Size

2012 Cost Width

5552,400

sss2,400

5552,400

s584,285

5s84,28s

ss84,285

s270,438 4

s429,0ss 4

s615,103

561s,103

5663,072 4

ss0s,122 4
Small Culvcrt !

s923,909

s1,05s,094

s1,0ss,094

5865,244 10
(qn, olA 1n

5851,816 10

s1,183.003
Modium Culvf rts

s1,228,s48 12

s1.791,851

s1,566,970 L2

it,Jvu,ftu rz
>t,5tt,>u
s2,928,000
s2,91,it,82 3

)5,5q,)ZO

s3,379,043 72

s4005,091
s3,364,319 12

LarCc Culverts

Depth Length

8 132

ro bo

Cost per

Gallons 1 gallon

20,000 s27.6200
20,000 S27.6200
20,000 527.5200
30,000 s19.4752
30,000 s19.4762
30,000 s19.4762
31,553 58 5709
31,553 S13.5979
40,000 s1s.3?76
40,000 s15.3776
42,071 515 7608

s3,067 59.s186
5r8 2910

150,000 s6.1.594
1s0,000 56.1594
200,000 5s.2755
200,000 ss.27ss
270,654 54.7074
212,148 52.3706
272,148 54.0152
250,000 54.7320

54.76 19

430,272 52 8553
500,000 s3 s837
s80,857 52.6916
632,500 52 5143
9s0,000 s2 9659

1,000,000 s2.9280
1,010,0m s2.9295
1,20O,0OO 52.8038
r,358,265 52 4695
1,s@,0@ s2_6701
1,581,250 S).r276

s2.7]69

d

17

77

30
40

48 100

48 135

4a a41

r18

24572

Added 20% to cost for Engineering, Etc.



Indexed Unit Costs for
Account 361 - CSO Assets - Regulator Chambers, Culverts & Outfalls

Year

1912
1913
1914
1915
1 916
I O'l'7

1918
1919
1920
1921
1922
1923
1924
1925
1926
1927
1928
1929
1 930
1 931
1932
1 933
1 934
1 935
1 936
1937
1 938
I O?O

1940
1941
1942
1943
1944
1945
1946
1947
1948
1 949
1 950
1951
1952
1 953
1 954
1 955
1 956
1957
1 958
1 959
1 960
196'1

1962
1 963
1 964

Average
w-1-34

q

10
I

11

16

19
20
22
22
20
21

22
21

21

21

20
20
20
20
18
18
19
'19

20
21

22
22
23
ZJ
24
zc
25
zo
ZY
TF

41

42
43
45
47
48
51

57
bU

OJ

65
68
AO

71

72
'12.

Regulator
Chambers

$982.53
$1,091 70

$873.36
$982.53

$1,200.87
$1,746.72
s2,074.24
$2,183,41
$2,401-75
$2,401.75
$2,183.4'1
$2,292.58
$2,401.75
$2,292.58
$2,292.58
v2,252.58
$2,183.41
$2,183.41
$2,183.41
$2,183 41

$1,965.07
$1,965.07
$2,074.24
$2,074.24
$2,1E3.41
$2,292.58
$2,44175
$2,401.75
$2,510.92
$2,510.92
$2,620.09
$2,725.26
$2,729.26
$2,838.43
$3,1 65.94
$3,820.96
$4,475.98
$4,585.15
$4,694.32
$4,912.66
$5,131.00
$5,240.17
$5,567.6s
$5,786.03
$6,222.71
$6,550.22
$6,877.73
$7,096.07
$7,423.s8
$7,532.75
$7,751 09

$7,860.26
$7,969.43

$0 2396
$0.2662
$0.2130
$0.2396
$0.2929
$0.4260
$0.5059
$0.5325
$0.5857
$0.58s7
$0.5325
$0.5591
$0.5857
$0.5591
$0.5591
$0.5591
$0.5325
$0 5325
$0.5325
$0.5325
$0.4792
$0 4792
$0.5059
$0.5059
$0.5325
$0.559'1
$0.5857
$0.s857
$0.6124
$0.6124
$0.6390
$0.6656
t,U bbCb

$0.6922
90.7721
$0.9319
$'1 0916
$1 1182
$1 1449
$1 .1 981

$1 2513
s1.2780
$1.3s78
sl .411 1

$'1.5176
$1.5975
$1.6773
$1.7306
$1.8105
$1 837'1

$1.8903
$1 9170
$1 9436

$0.0624
$0.0693
$0.0555
$0.0624
$0.0762
$0.1 1 09
$0.1 31 7
$0 1 386
$0.1 525
$0.1 525
$0.1 386
$0.1 456
$0 1 525
$0.1 456
$0 1456
$0 1456
$0.1 386
$0.1 386
$0.1386
$0.1 386
$0 1248
$0 1248
$0 1317
$01317
$0.1 386
$0.1 456
$0.1525
$0.1 525
$0.1 594
$0 '1594

$0.1 664
$0.1733
$0.1 73s
$0.1802
$0.2010
$0.2426
$0.2842
$0 291 1

$0.2981
$0.31'19
$0.3258
$0.3327
$0.3535
$0.3674
$0.3951
$0 4159
$0.4367
$0.4505
$0.4713
$0.4783
s0.4921
$0.4991
$0.5060

Laroe

$0.0364
$0.0404
$0.0323
$0.0364
$0.0445
s0.0647
$0.0768
$0.0808
$0.0889
$0.0889
$0.0808
$0.0849
90.0889
$0.0849
$0.0849
$0.0849
$0.0808
$0.0808
$0 0808
$0.0808
$0 0728
$0.0728
$0 0768
$0 0768
$0.0808
$0 0849
$0.0889
$0.0889
s0 0930
$0.0930
$0.0970
$0 1011

$0.1 01 1

$0 10s1
$0.1172
$0.1 41 5

$0.1 657
$0.1 698
$0.1 738
$0.1819
$0.1900
$0.1940
$0.2061
$0.2142
$0.2304
$0.2425
$0.2547
$0.2627
$0.2749
$0.2789
$0.2870
$0.2910
$0.2s51

Outfall

$132 18

$146.86
$117.49
$132.18
$161 .55
$234.98
$279.A4
$29372
$323.10
$323.10
$293.72
$308.41
$323.10
$308.41
$308.4'l
$30E.41
$293.72
$29s.72
$293.72
$293.72
$264 35
$264.3s
$279.04
$279.04
$253.72
$308.41
$323.1 0
$323.10
$337.78
$337.78
s352.47
$367 16

$367 16

$381.84
$425.90
$514.02
$602.14
$616.82
$631.51
$660.88
$690.25
$704.94
$749 00

$778.37
$837 12

$881 17

$925 23

$954.61
$998.66

$1,0'13.35
$1,04272
fi1,057.41
$1,072.10

Culverts (Costs per Gallon)
Small Medium

Development of Unit Costs l5



Inde>red Urrit Cosls, for
Account 361 - CSO Asseis - llegulator Charnbr:rs, Culverls It Outialls

Average llegulator
w-1-34 Cnenbeic

I $982.53
'l 0 s;1 ,091 .70
8 $873,36
9 $982.53
11 $1,200 E7
16 $1,746.72
19 $2,074.24
20 $2,1.83.41
22 $2,40175
22 52,40175
20 $2183/1
21 $2,292.58
22 $2,401.75
21 $2,292.59
21 $2,292.58
21 $2,292.58
20 $2,183.41
20 $2,183.41
20 $2,183.41
20 $2,183.41
'r8 $1,965 07
18 $1,965.07
19 $2,074 24
19 $2,074.24
20 $2,183.41
21 $2,292.58
22 $2,401.75
22 $2,4A175
23 $2,510 92
23 52,510.92
24 52,620.09
25 $2,729.26
25 $2,729.26
26 $2,838.43
29 $3,165.S4
35 $3,820.96
41 $4,475.98
42 $4,585.15
43 $4,694.32
45 $4,912.66
47 $5,131 .00
48 $5,240.17
51 $5,567.69
6? qA 7eA n2

s7 b6,222.71
60 $6,550.22
63 $6.877 73
65 $7,096.07
68 $7,423 58
69 $7,532.75
71 $7,751 os
72 $7,86A.26
73 $7,969 43

Culverts (Costs per Gallon)
Year

1912
1913
1914
1915
1916
1917
1918
1919
1920
1921
1922
1923
1924
1925
1926
1927
1928
1929
1 930
1 931
1932
I 933
1934
1 935
1 935
1937
1 938
1 939
1940
1941
1942
1943
1944
1945
1 946
1947
1948
1949
1 04n

1 951
1952
1 953
1954
1 955
1 956
1957
1 958
1 959
I vou

1 961
lYoz

1 963
19M

Small

s0.2396
$0.2662
$0.2130
s0.2396
$0.2929
$0.4260
$0.5059
$0.5325
s0.5857
$0.5857
s0.5325
s0 5591
s0 5857
50.5591
$0 5591
$0.5591
$0.5325
$0 5325
$0.5325
$0.5325
$0.4792
$0.4792
$0.5059
$0.s059
$0.5325
$0 5591

$0.5857
$0 5857
$0.6124
$0.6124
$0 6390
$0.6656
50.6656
$0.6922
$o 7721

$0.9319
$1.0916
$1 1182

$1.1449
$1 1981
t;1.2513
$1.2780
$1 3578
$1 4111

$1.5176
s1.5975
c1 477?

$1 7306
$1 8105
$1 8371

$1.8903
$1 9170
,e 1 .9436

N4cdium

$0 0624
$0.0693
$0 0555
s;0 0624
$0.0762
$0.1 1 09
$0.1317
$0 1386
$0.1 525
$0.1 525
$0.1 386
50 1456
:t0.1525

$0 1456
$0.1456
$0.1 456
$0.1 380

$0.1 386

$0 1386
$0.1 386
ti,o.1249
si1 1248
t;0.1317
$0 1317
$0 1386
$0.1 456
$0.1 52s
$0.1 525
$0.1594
$0.1 594
$0.1664
$0 1733
s,0.1733

$0.1 802
$0.2010
50.2426
$0.2842
$0.29'11
$0 2981
s0.3119
$;0.3258
$0.3327
50.3535
$0 3674
s0 3951
$0.4159
$0.4367
$0 4505
s0.4713
s0.4783
$0.4921
$0 4991
$0.5060

Larrte

$0.0364
s0.0404
s0.032s
s0 0364
$0.0445
$0.0647
$0.0768
$0.0808
s0.0889
s0.0889
[,0.0808
$0.0849
$0.0889
$0.0849
90.0849
$0.0849
$,0.0808
$0.0808
$0.0808
$0.0808
$0.0728
$0.0728
$0.0768
$0 0768
50.0808
$0.0849
$0.0889
$0 0889
$0.0930
s0.0930
r;0 0970
$0.1 01 1

1,0 101 1

$0.1 051
$o.1172
$0.1 41 5

$0 1657
$0 1698
$0.1 738

$0.1819
$0 1900
s0.1 940
s0.2061
s0 2142
i,0.2304
$0.2425
$0 2547
bv.zozl
$0.2749
$0.2789
s0.2870
$0.2910
5;0 2951

Outlall

.$132.18

$146.86
5117.49
$13218
$161.55
$234.98
$279 04
$293.72
5323 10

$323.10
$293.72
$308.41
$323.1 0

$308.41
$s08.41
$308 41

$293.72
$293.72
$293 72

$293.72
$264 35
$264 35

$279.04
$279.04
$293.72
$308.41
$323.1 0

$323.10
$337 78
$337 78
5352.47
t367.1 6
$367 16

$381.84
$425.90
$514.02
$602.14
9616.82
$631.51
$660.88
$690.25
$704.94
$749.00
$778.37
s)837 12

$881 17

oYzc-23
s954.61
$998.66

$1,013.35
$1,042.72
$1,057.41
$1,07210



New Garden Towns!,rip

Sewer System

Original Cost as of June 30, ZOt6
Account 360.72 - Conveyance Mains Force - 8,'- g,' plastic pipe

Year Original
Itern Installed Unit No. cost

conveyance Mains Farce - 6" - 8u Plastic Pipe Lg96 Ft. 0,008 S t+z,sgt

200L Ft. LI,L .O 252,775

2003 Ft. 1,000 18,090

2,0L2 Ft. 2,360 283,490

Total Account 360.12 t 697,346

----

Development of Unit Costs



New Garden Townshlp
Sewer System

Original Cost as of June 30,2A16
Account 360.11 - conveyance Mains Force - 4" & under plastic pipe

Year
lnstalled unit

Original

Cost

Conveyance Mains Force - 4'' & Under plasUc pipe

Total Account 360.1,I

L980

1989

1 qoc

L996

1999

2000

20aL

2003

2004

2006

2A07

20LA

2011.

2012

Ft,

Ft.

Ft.

Ft"

Ft"

F,C.

Ft"

Ft.

Ft-

Ft,

Ft.

Ft

Ft.

Ft.

3,965

745

1,500

L,500

2,325

2,77o

4,8OA

225

L,9L5

7,740

1,550

3,O4Q

2,954

4,970

'J.42,27t

t7,L34

17,590

19,500

29,250

70,4A0

57,330

4,O7o

15,916

L94,926

31.,434

33,293

L49,gzL

tlg,z1,g

-----
_s ,0r,143



I{ew Garden Township
Sewer System

Original Cost as of June 30, 2016
Account 360'13'conveyance Mains Force - 10" - 12" plastic pipe

Year Original
Item lnstalled Unit No" Cost

conveyance Mains Force - 70" - t2" plastic pipe 2oos Ft. 1,,zso $ sr,q6z

Total Account 360.13

Development of Unit Costs t9



New Garden Township
Sewer System

Original Cost as of June 30, 2016
Account 360.21- Conveyance Mains Force - 4,' & Under AC pipe

Year Original
Item Installed Unit No. Cost

Conveyance Mains Force - 4" & Under AC Pipe 1960 Ft. I,J7g $ fZ,ffS

S tz,tts

Total Account 360.21



New Garden Towns!rip
Sewer System

OriginalCostas of June 30,20!6
Account 360.22 - Conveyance Mains Force - 6', - B" AC pipe

Year Original
Installed unit No. cost

Conveyance Mains Force - 6" - 8u AC pipe 1960 Ft. 16,956 S ZtO,SgD

Total Accou nt 36A.22

Development of Unit Costs



hlew Garden T'ownrship

Sewer System

OriginalCost as of June 30, ZO16

Account 360,31 - Air Release

Year

Installed Unit
Original

Cost

Air Release

TotalAccount 360.31

1996

z0a7

2006

20LA

2AL7

20L2

EE.

Ea.

Ea.

Ea,

Ea,

Ea,

5

5

I

l"

2

L,300

9,22:g

16,500

5,425

1.4"325

Dcvelonmant nf I ln it f n<+<



New Garden Townslrip
Sewer System

OriginalCost as of June 30, 2016
Account 354.00 - Flow Meters

Itern
Yeer

Installed Unit
Original

CostNo.

Flow Meters

Total Account 364"00

2001

2006

2007

2008

207r

Develooment of Unit Costs

Ea.

Ea.

Ea"

Ea.

Ea"

t

L

1

1

2,655

5,395

6,730

8,916

S ze,zL6

-

23



The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the City McKeesport

Appraisal Work Papers
As of September 2016

Income Approach

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
Greenfield, Wisconsin 53228

Off ice Telephone: 41 4-529-5755
J. Weineil's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weineft's E-Mail:

lncome Approach



Discount Rate:

Capitalization Rate:

S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\Water Industry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-2017 xlsx

Pennsylvania American, Inc.
The Municipal Authority of th6 City of McKeesport

Wastewater
Inve8tor-Owned Utility
As of September 2016

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

7 00%

3.84%

lncome from
Period Age Operations

Non Cash
Expense Capital

(depreciation) Expenditures

Period
Present
Worth

Net Cash Factor
Flows (PW)

PW of Accumulated PW
Cashflow of Cashflows

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

10

IL
L2

15

I4
l)

15

L7

18

19

20 and

beyond

(2rs,7L4l
829,216

704,924

572,460

2,753,936

2,924,37r
2,97r,836
4,359,854
4,422,57L

5,880,304

5,960,477

6,038,753

6,1L5,245

6,190,048
7,925,t37
8,O23,379

8,120,558

8,2L6,725

8,3rr,916

ro,382,4L3

3,451,139

3,490,323

3,529,9s8

3,570,O47

3,610,599

3,65 1,615

3,593,103

3,735,059

3,777,5L7

3,820,454

3,863,884

3,907,8L4

3,952,249
3,997,L95

4,O42,560

4,O48,646

4,L35,L54

4,r82,2t5
4,229,809

4,277,951

t,322,243
r,337,205
1,352,338

r,367,644
7,383,L26

1,398,785

L,4L4,624
1,430,645
L,446,848
I,453,237

t,479,8L4
t,496,582
I,5L3,542
L,530,697

r,548,O47

1,s65,598

1,583,349

1,60L,304

r,6t9,455

I,637,836

Change in
Working
Capital

(79,75r\

I,145,667
(s,s18)

(s,e27)

520,2L4

L2,295
12,272

3 13,829

17,o43
330,734

22,744

22,260
22,374

22,484

395,570
28,666

28,864

29,06r
29,256

472,978

19.5

o.251

26 042

5.951

1,833,43L

4,L28,O2L

2,877,026

2,768,936

5,501,523

5,t89,491
5,262,587
6,978,LO7

5,770,283

8,558,255

8,366,691

8,472,245

8,576,326

8,579,030
10,815,320

10,575,093

LO,70I,237

LO,826,697

10,95 1,515

13,495,506

t,772,928
5,500,531

1,928,74r
to,t13,432
L4,t73,630

L7,749,t93
2t,L38,299

25,339,119

29,r50,788
33,657,590

37,765,735

4L,654,495
45,331,719

48,814,030

52,869,775

55,571,058

60,070,352

63,383,331

66,515,455

L60,457,682

0.5

1.5

z.)
3.5

4.5

5.5

6.5

t.5
8.5

9.5

105
11.5

L2.S

15. )

L4.5

15.5

15.5

t7.5
rat.)

19.5

0.967 r,772,928
0 903 3,727,603

0.844 2,428,2tO

0.789 2,L84,69L

0.738 4,050,198

0.589 3,575,563

o 644 3,389,106

0.602 4,200,820
0.553 3,aLr,569
0.525 4,506,902

0.491 4,108,045

0.459 3,888,760

0.429 3,679,244

0.401 3,480,29L

0.375 4,055,745

0.350 3,70L,283
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PW(Aee) = 1/(1+Discount Ratel(ae"t

PW to Perpetuity = 1/Capitalization Rate

Pwlzoana seyonal = PW to Perpetuity + PW Factorlrs sy
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AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
G reenf ield, Wiscons in 53228

Office Telephone : 41 4-529-57 55
J. Weined's Gell: 414-698-8371

J. Weinert's E-Mail: r,,reIrre i'ti@'rsr,:vyc.::, i t'ii i
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S;\water industry\PA American McK€esport\Water Industry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-20j.7 Xlsx

Pennsylvania Ameri€n, lnc.
Th€ Municipal Authority ot th6 City ot McKesspoit
Wasl€watea

Inveslor-Owned l,nility
Ssptsmber 2016

DCF Forectsl Pardmelars
Forecat Base Forecast Parameters for Periods

1-5 6-beyond
Revenue Base 13,504519 Use 1 03458453 1.035
2015 to 2016 12428606 12751000 1 025939675

2016 ro 2017 L2446927 12985000 1.043229385

Revenue Forecast

Annual Subscriber Growth f,I% 7,6% 7 6%

Periodic Subscriber Growth
GroMh 1O%

Peliod every ? years 5

Rate Adjustment
Rate Ad.justment Periods 5

Rate Adjustment based on Rate Case Based on Authorized Return on Rate Base

Operatitrg ExDenses

Personnel Cost 4,726,40A 3% 3%

Professional Services 328,759 6% -LO%

sewage Plant costs 1,789,156 6% 3%

Other General and Administrative 192,040 6% 3%

Intergovernmental Agreement Fee

Bad Debt Expense 230,865 2% I%
Depreciation 2,368,937 Based on Plant and Depreciation Parameters
Totafoperatingexpenses 9,236,f65 Calculated

Net Operatlng Income before Non-
opemting Revenue and Expensds 3,817,6'19

Non-Operating Income lExpenses)
lnterest lncome

lnterest Rate oh lnvestments 2% 2%

Long term Debt Interest

Interest Rate on Long term Debt -4 M% -4,44%

Depreciation

Property Taxes

ofAssessed {Seginning Net Book Value) Value ofTaxable Propertv
Taxes

Federa I

State

State & Federal Tax Rate

35 00% of Pretax lncome

9.99% of Pretax Income

47.49%

='ValueLine Data'lAP30

=!ValueLine DatallAP32

='ValueLine Data'!AP33

calculated based on Plant
2oao%

Income Approach 17



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\Water Industry Valuatioh Summary Created 4-8-2017.xlsx

Pennsylvania Amedcan, Inc.

Tha Municipal Authority ol the City of McKe€port
Waslgwalei
Investor-Owned Utility
September 2016

DCF Foreest ParamOiErs

Cost of CaDital Reouiied Return

Return on Rate
Cost of Capital (Debt- Base Cost of

Cost of Capital free) CapitalValuation Cost of Capital

Debt - Market

Capital Structure Debt

Cost of Debt

Tdx Rate

Wtd Cost ol Debt

Eqully - Market

Capital Struoture Equity

Cosl of Equity

Wtd Cost ol Equity

Required Return

Capital Structure Total

Cosl ot Capital Totai

Growth Rate (inflation)

Cost ot Capital without growth

3I%
4.44%

37.0"/"

4,M%
4!%

4.80%
41 49% Not ADD|icable

7 38% 0.8ll/6,

69%

I 97%

6 19%

IOO%

7 57%

3 04%

4 AO%

t 97%

59%

I 97%

!.97%

rco%
7 26%

69%

a 97%

6 30P/"

too%
7 00%

3 04% Not Applicable
3U% 7.26v"



5:\water industry\PA Americah McKe€sport\Water tndustry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-2017.x|sx

PsnnsylvaniaAmsrien, Inc.

Thq Munlclpsl Authority ottho City ol McK@spod
Was16walgr

lnvestor-Ownsd (nility
S6pienbsr 2016

DCF Forust Prram6ldg

Working Capital

Current Assets

Cash initial balance

Csh Additlons % of rsvenus 2.O0%

Cash Decreases % of revenuas -1 75% Sign (-)

Accounls Rsievable lnitial Balance

Accounts Recievable Addilims as % of Reven 2.OO%

Accounts Flecievable Deductions as 7. of Fevr -775% 5j9n (-l

Curenl Uabilities

Notes PalFble Cutreni Portion Initial Balance

Additions Notes Payable From debt schedule

D€creases Notes Payable as % ol Additions 100 00%
Accounts Payabte Initial Balane
Accounts Payable Additions as % of Revenue! 2.Do%

Accounls Payable Deductions as yo of RavenL -1.75% Sign (-)

Use OCLD (1) or RCNLD (2) 1

7234557
Note 3-Property, Plant, and Equipment Financials AoDraisal

Plant OC Depreciation OC OC LD RCN Depreciafion RCNLD
Land 100 51,132 . 67,t32 1,110,000 _ 1,110,000
lnfrastructure 200 f3,487,62o 6.59,904 32,a:.7,7r6 275,!66,521 1722,404,205] 92,762318
Building 300 33,723,580 S4B,G10 33,tt4,s71 106,863,107 (44,210,51ir) 62,652,591
Plant Machinery & Equipment 400 22,627,4tO 611,G68 22,Ot5,j42
Office Machinery and Equipment 500 t26,6I5 1O,9OO 709,7fs
Vehicles and Equipment 500 r,4O9;44O 138,187 7,271,253
Total Plant in seruic€ 700 9L,43s,797 r7,4a5,!67 73,950,530 323,139,630 1L65,6r4,7271 156,524,909
COnstruction in Progress 800
Total Plant 9r,43s,797 17,485,rq 73,950,630 323,139,630 1166,614,721]| 156,s24,909

Income Approach
naE E^ia...i D:.rhar6..

t9



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\Water Industry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-2017,xlsx

Pennsylvrnia Amerlcln, lnc.
The Municlprl AuthoTity ot tho City ol McKssBport
Waslewaler
Investorowned Utilily
Septmbsr 2016

DCF Foreest P6ramoierg

Forecast Base Forecast Parameters for Peri.ods

Asset

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents as % of Revenues

Account Receivables -

Account Receivables as % of Revenues

Total Current Assets

lnvestments

Liabilties

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable a5 % of Revenues

Current Portion of Debt

Long Term Debt

Proportion of Acquistion & CapX

Acquistion

Current Portion Retired

Equity

605,230

7,757,902

6,967,248

343,445

2,479,r74

1-5 5-beydnd

s% 5%

!3y" 73%

4% 4%

2% 2%

31%

155.000,000 48,350,000
2% 2%

Prooortion of Acouistion 69%

Acquistion 155,000,000 707,640,000



S:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\Water Indurtry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-2017 xlsx

Pennsylv|nia Arnerican, Inc.

The Municlpal Authority ot,the City ot McKsesporl

Wastgwatet
Inv$tor-Owned lnility
SepternbEr ?016

DCF For€st Paramet€rs

Use OCLD (1 ) or RCNLD (2)

Plant

Land

Begin Balahce

Additions
Addition Rate

Retirements

Retitement Rate

End Belance - calculated
Inffastructure

Begin Balance

Additions
Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Balance - Calculated

Buildings

Begin Balance

Add itions

Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Balance - calculated
Plant Machinery & Equipment

Begin Balance

Additions
Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Balance - Calculated

oftic€ Machinery and Equipment

Begin Balance

Additions
Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Balance - Calculated

Vehicles and Equipment
Begin Ealance

Additions

Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Ealance - Calculated

Construction in Progress

Begin Balance

Additions
Addition Rate

Retirements

Retirement Rate

End Balance - Calculated

100

o%

o%

1,1 10,000

200

o.75%

o5%
92,762,3!8

300

r.o%

o%

62,652,s97
400

-54/.

500

-7%

500

-s%

800

L5%

Income Approach
hf F F^,-...f Dr.rF6t6..

21



5:\water industry\PA American McKeesport\Water Industry Valuation Summary Created 4-8-2017 xlsx

Pennsylvania Amarican, Inc.

Tho Munlcipal Authority ol ihe City ol McKeesport
Waslewglel
Investor-Ownad Utility
Septgmber 2O16

DCF Fileest Pafamelerg

DepHiation
La nd

Begin B!lance
Depreciation

Depreciation Rate 0%

Retirements Calculated in Plant

End Balance - Calculated

Infrastructure
Begin Balance

Depreciation

Depreciation Rate -2'A

Retirements Calculated in Plant

End galance - calculated
Buildings

Begin Ealance

Depreciation

D€preciation Rate -2 5%

Retirements calculated in Plant

End Balance - Calculated

Plaht Machinerv & Equipment

Begin Balance

Depreciation

Depreciation Rate -4,Q%

Retirements Calculated in Plant

End Balance - calculated
Office Machinery and Equipment

Begin Balance

Depreciation

Depreciation Rate -12s%
Retirements Calculated in Plant

End Ealance - Calculated

Vehicles and Equipment

Begin Balance

Depreciation

Depreciation Rate -LOO%

Retiiements Calculated in Plant

End Balance - Calculated

Construction an Progress

Begin Balance

Depreciation

Depreciation Rate O O%

Retirements Calculated in Plant

End galance - Calculated

lnrnmc Annrnarh



The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the Gity McKeesport

Appraisal Work Papers
As of September 2016

Income Approach
Analysis of McKeespoft Municipal Authority's

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Position

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
G reenf ield, Wisconsin 53228

Off ice Telephone 
= 

41 4-529-57 55
J. Weinert's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weineft's E-Mail: v.''einei.'ii@'aLtsi'vc:-i i,r,-.i

Income Approach 23
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P.nGylEnbAh.rbh, h.
ft. hnkh.lAurhdvdtu gty otM.X*S

r.Errd.tund udt!
Ar ef s.&d.. 20 16

au5
Account nel.rcne 200f, 2@ 2010 2011 tltz zol! 2014 zo15

2030

2012

1040

2102 nput
2110 npll

Average Use Penod
2003-2015 2Ql3-2015 1-5 s,beydnd

Statement of Revenues. Expenses
and Changes in Net position

OEr.ttu i4hkr 2ooo Header
SewiC€Trc.henr sefrice! 2010 tnoul

sludte Haul.t

I.p Fee!.nd P€rm[t
WellW.ter P.ft*sing

ftrloFr.thg R.Enwr

O*r.tlru Eehses

Othe. Gene.al and Admintn.rive

Inlergovernmental Agre€menr f ee

S:se on X ofR.ve.uee

Baee on daDt and &p.ecrarion par.m€reR

Tobl oF.aht .rFn!3
OpX at% olRerenues
opx l?st D.pre.i.tion rsr otRevenues
NdOF?.INV lftoh.bd* trry.ndry I*s@

P..nveit Gr.ntP.oceedi
FIMA Gr.nt Pro@.dt
Inb4overnhe^t.l Ag.eement Fee3
lollrei on Long-Term Oebr
Bondl$w Con {Aru^[arion ot Bo.d k3!€ con)
G.in {lo$) on oupoi.l olFircd AstEb
Td.l ilon-op.hdq N*.@.nd AF3!

h@.3. lrcF*.| i(i.t PGfron

Net Porilion - lanuary 1,

PilorPeriod Adjunhent

Nd Porfron - D€G.hbd!1.

120r0-2040

r,9@,570 1,oas,472 8.939,124 10,644,558
41tr 26% t9*

59,t80 59,950 105,115 93,639
-l4x 15% Lt%

145,2$ 5,250 5,350
s2,466 678,670 t,820,@ ,99.521
51.526 21,69 1,7!O 26J70

-4ax -93% 
'404%4 419,192 7,851,101 10,871,269 lt 56t Sl8

86r aB% 6%

1,513,022 2,043,551 2,404,579 I,076,96t
77X 18% 2a%

75,47\ 111,825 209,56? !53,750
623A al% 21%

9l!,808 1,62A,276 1,545,2a7 Lat.447
14X -s% 18%

21r,925 Zi4,EO4 277,5a4 t59,686
1l% l3% 30*

500,1q L085,625 \,L6a,7O2 t.1O2,177
Lt7% 7X lza

1,274,5:0 5104,0q1 5h01,619 6fi10,215
1ex 65x 57% 59%
66% s1a 41% 48%

944,66) 2,147,Otn 5,269 650 4 /5!612

126,064 t2,679 48,921 37,254

10,676,796 10,861,475 13,068,Ilt 12,901,104
w 2% 2OX 1*

97,501 97.750 110,5E3 tol,8ll
4% ox Bx -a%

30,800 r1,25Q 8O,5OO 12,250

53,375 99,{71 54,729 32,577
r37% 57% -45% -4W

!0,868 472_ 11 081 949 13 J14 or9 i3,tr7,844
-6% 2% 2lU -rX

3,654,m 4,051,839 4,071,979 4,126,40!
19% 1lX 1* 3*

290,693 308,553 t55,492 328,759
15* 6% -L7X 29%

1,&2,61t 1,851,63 
',*7,267 

1,739.155
t% 7* -9X 6X

340,150 39a,879 175,446 39t,0@
-5% 77* -6X 4*

1@@0

r95*

20m Herder
,O1O r.pul

tOS Inpur

2l@ Input
L2%

Zl2O Input

2110 ,)lilo-2v-o

2140 :2050,2130

2150 Header
I1tr Inpo\
,L7O loput
2140 Inpui
2190 l.pur
22m lnpul
2210 Inpul
2220 Input
2230 L27il-r22'

2240 :2140,22JO

2250 Input

27& l^put

2210 >))4D 2)50,2161) 1,535 tu7 1 929 Sl

287,21a 210,865

z&
2% 2%

,,377,t24 l,l!t,547 2,a6a,917
l% ffi 79%

7,947 91j 7,95t 9i{ 9,216,165
72% @% 7!%
60x s% 51%

1442 6J6 I 1-34036 5 t6r,085 J 811,679

45,536 1t,64 12,119 12,309
1r,456,371 2.59a,772 211,828 753,291

468,438

{1,010,@, (1,020.1@) 11,030,3011

1,298,i10

ffi
B,125 79h

7EX

66%

2M
1% 7% 7%

l7%

67%

54%

-20%

2%

1\%

65%

52%

15re,838) {2,110,727} (2,624,5s1 {3,501,941) 13,481,r98) 11,507,21r} (1,568,1141 11,149,718)
l16,o7el 27,s27|, {lo,s26) {6t.6rsl l1@,Or2l (416,110} l2t4,64lt

{10,1611 t1,190
(529 85ll (2,t)5 579) (2,606 rO7) lt,t28,t66l / 914 O$7 (2 37h,716) t4 557,820) {l r45 999t

4143tD 64i all 2,661 5(f r 211,t56 r0 356,76t /57 lto

t,358,955 1,535,607 I 929 S3 d 616 77C t BJ9,89l 16 196,656 l4 619 669 15 44t 914

(238,1s7) 1241,9151 74 164 {8,133J

5,3it,391

12,t14,1o71 (24,190,7011

16 F)6 6_56 14,639 669 15 4nr,934 (8,082,087)



The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the City McKeesport

Appraisal Work Papers
As of September 2016

Income Approach
Analysis of McKeesport Municipal Authority's
Statement of Net Position - Balance Statement

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
G reenf ield, Wisconsin 53228

Off ice Telephone : 41 4-529-57 55
J. Weinert's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weineft's E-Mail: ,-ur'ir..ef ii@'ar-lsvve :i.r're i

Income Approach 25
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The City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania
And

The Municipal Authority of the City McKeesport

AppraisalWork Papers
As of September 2016

Income Approach
Analysis of McKeesport Municipal Authority's

Statement of Net Position - Cash Flows

AUS Consultants
Suite 201

8555 West Forest Home Avenue
Greenfield, Wisconsin 53228

Off i ce Tele phone : 41 4-529-57 55
J. Weineft's Cell: 414-698-8371

J. Weinert's E-Mail: vt'ci r. J'f ',.: ;.r (--i

Income Approach 27
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Ps5ylv.nia Ah.ilen, t.c
fte Mu.l.ip.lAuSoilVot tn€ftyo,tr(..tpon

rtrctoron.d Ullty
A ol S.Fl.hk 2015

Statement of Net position

c-h Fb6 fpn oar:rin' AcUSti.s
c.ih R.ceiwd hoh S.w.8. siilines
Cilh P.id ro Ehployees torS.t.riei.nd Benetib
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Mark C. Turnley
Ceftified Public Accountant 2919 Duss Avenue

Ambridge, Pennsylvania 1 5003
(724) 266-2669

FAX (724) 266-4124

To the Board of Directors
The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

Independent Audito/s Report

I have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Municipal Authority of the Cig of
McKeesport, a component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. My
responsibili$ is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis
for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformig with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages iii-xi be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statement, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Pennsylvania lnstitute of Ceftified Public Accountants



My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport. The supplemental schedule listed in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole

.r%ale-%,27*-AV
Mark C. Turnley, CPA

June 10,2010
Ambridge, Pennsylvania



THE MT]NICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Authority's annual financial report represents our discussion and
analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Authority's basic financial statements. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the information provided in the Authority's financial
statements.

OPERATING AGREEMENTS

The Authority owns and operates a wastewater treatment facility pursuant to Agreements
with each of the ten communities its serves. The Authority has Agreements to provide
wastewater treatment services with the City of McKeesport, the Borough of Liberty, the
Borough of Port Vue, the Borough of East McKeesport, the Township of Elizabeth, the
Borough of Glassport, the Borough of White Oak, the Borough of Versailles, the
Borough of Lincoln and the Township of North Versailles. The Authority's Board of
Directors establishes a rate which is designed to recover the cost of providing services.
The rate is based upon the gallons of water used by the community. The Authority bills
the municipalities, with certain exceptions, on a quarterly basis for services provided to
the communities' residents at the established rate. The municipalities are responsible for
setting a rate for customers within their municipalities and for billing and collecting from
those customers.

The City of McKeesport sold its Collection System to the Authority effective January l,
2009. On that date the Authority began maintaining the system and in March of 2009
began billing the rate payers of McKeesport for water consumed in the previous month. It
should be noted that the City of McKeesport billed for water consumed in January 2009
as paft of its 4th quarter 2008 statements for the City of McKeesport & Versailles
Borough. The Authority began conducting billing services for Versailles Borough in
March of 2009.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include only those of the Authority which is a
component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania. The financial statements are
presented using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. They are designed to provide a broad overview of the Authority's finances,
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the Authority's activities are
reported in the statements except for activities associated with the pension fund because
those funds are not available to support the Authority's own programs.

nl



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Authority's assets and
liabilities, with the difference of the two reported as net assets. Net assets are reported as

one ofthree categories: invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt; restricted; or
unrestricted.

The Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Chanees in Net Assets presents information
showing how the Authority's net assets changed during the year. All of the changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows
until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected rates and earned but unused vacation leave).

These two financial statements report the Authority's net assets and the changes in the net
assets. Net assets, which represent the difference between assets and liabilities, are one
measure of the Authority's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Authority's net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information proved in these financial statements. The financial
statements and accompanying notes can be found in the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2009, the Authority adopted a general rate increase of $0.86/ 1,000 gallons consumed
to create a new rate of $5.30/1000 gallons consumed. This increase was assessed to
finance the debt service of the twenty (20) million dollar 2009 bond borrowed for an
anticipated sixty (60) million dollar expansion project as required under the Act 537 Plan.
This Plan was projected to go out for bids in early 2010 however; it has been delayed as a
result of a prolonged permit review process by the PA Department of Environmental
Protection.

lv



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

The Tapping Fee (Capacity fee) remained unchanged in 2009 at a rate of $ 1,750 per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit ("EDU").An EDU, equivalent dwelling unit, is the average
amount of wastewater that each household in the service area discharges each day. The
Authority calculates an EDU to be 236 gallons per day. During 2009 there were no new
residential or commercial taps purchased within the Authority's service area. This lack of
activity was indicative of what was happening all over the country during the financial
crisis that swept the country in 2009. The Authority borrowed funds from this account in
the Fall of 2009 in order to purchase delinquent sewage accounts from the City of
McKeesport. (As of the writing of this report the borrowed funds have been repaid in
full.) The balance of cash accumulated from tapping fees (The Tapping Fee Account),
reserved by the Board for capital projects, on December 3l , 2009 was $123,832.21 .

On December 3 I , 2009, total assets were $56,483, I I 7 and total liabilities were
$54,554,054 yielding a net asset of $l ,929,063. This resulted in an increase in the total
net assets of$641,431 over last year's totals.

For the year 2009,3.75 billion gallons of wastewater were treated at the wastewater
facility. Approximatelyl.l6 billion gallons of waterwere consumed in 2009 by the
Authority's customers and paid for by their user fees. The remaining 2.59 billion gallons
of wastewater, up 180 million gallons from 2008, entered the sewer system from
rainwater, groundwater, streams and rivers, water line breaks, fire fighting efforts, etc.
This increase in flow is thought to be due to the sewage systems increased ability to
convey water to the treatment facility. During 2009 the newly formed collection system
crew successfully cleared many clogged catch basins and sewer lines which allowed the
rain water to flow unimpeded to the sewage plant. This occurred even though the annual
rainfall in the area dropped from 38.76 inches in 2008 to 32.10 inches in 2009. By
comparison,30.gyo of the wastewater treated was billable, down from 33.4Yo in 2008.

Sewage Treatment Revenues per 1,000 gallons consumed - $6.1I
Operating expenses per 1,000 gallons consumed - $4.40



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF MoKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Operating Revenues were $7,851,101, an increase of $3,631,909, or 86Yo over 2008,
primarily caused by the addition of the collection system revenue from the City of
McKeesport. This revenue was collected and used by the City prior to 2009 to maintain
their system. With the purchase of this system in2009, this revenue now belongs to the
Authority.

Operating Expenses were $5,104,091, an increase of $1,829,561, or 55.9yo over 2008.
The largest increase came from the addition of the collection system maintenance costs,
pension costs, and depreciation.

FINANCIAL ANALYSN

The following condensed financial statements and other selected information serve as

financial data and indicators to help the Authority manage, monitor, and plan.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets-net of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

Current and other liabilities

Net Assets

Dec.31,2009

18,223,978
38,259,139

56,483,717

54,554,054

1,929,063

Dec. 31, 2008

9,894,831
10,806,844

20,701,675

19,r66,068

1,535,607

% Change

84.2%
254.0%

172.8%

l84.6Yo

25.6%

VI



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Dec. 31, 2009 Dec. 31, 2008 o/o Change

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Operating income

Interest and grant income
Interest expense
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

Change in Net Assets

Total operating revenues
Net cash provided by operations
Operating cash as a percentage of
operating revenues

2009
$7,85 1,1 0l
$2,125,197

27.1Yo

7,851,101
5,lo4,og1

2,747,070

32,675
(2,110,727)

(27,527)

641,431

4,219,192 86.1%
3,274,530 55.9%

944,662 190.8%

126,064 -74.tyo
(63e,838) 229.9%
(16,079) 71.2%

414,809 54.6%

2008 Variance
s 4,219,192 $3,631,909
$1,230,946 $994,351

Overall, the Authority's financial condition remained strong in 2009. Most of the ten
service communities are up to date with their payments with the exception of East
McKeesport which continues to lag one quarter behind due to the length of time it takes
to get their consumption numbers from the water authority. The addition of the
McKeesport Collection System has made the Authority even stronger and the acquisition
of other systems and neighboring facilities are currently being explored.

The following table shows the Authority's ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash
provided by operating activities is shown both in total dollars and as a percentage of
operating revenues.

VI

29.20 -7.2%



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Contin ued)

CAPITAL ASSET AT\D DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

At December 3 I , 2009, the Authority had $3 8,25 9,139 invested in capital assets,
including land, infrastructure, buildings, plant and office machinery and equipment, and
vehicles net of depreciation. This amount represents a net increase (including additions,
deletions and depreciation) of $27,452,295, or approximately 254%o from last year.

The Authority had approximately $28,785,895 in capital additions during the 2009 year,
mainly comprised of 1) the purchase of lines from the City of McKeesport for
$27,000,000, 2) costs incurred of $ l,l 57,228 for the Act 537 system improvements and
upgrades, and 3) construction costs for the Marshall Drive Project totaling $300,572.

A summary of the Authority's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation for the past
two years is as follows:

2008
INCREASE

<DECREASE>

$ 23.296
27,397,819

432,923
(974,447)

10.786
474,479 400,633 73,846

$ 46,814,534 $ 19,850,311 $ 26,964,223
(11,283,196) (10,313,468) (969,728)

$ 35,531,338 $ 9,536,843 $ 25,994,495
2,727,801 1,270,001 1,457,800

$ 38,259,139 $ 10,806,844 $ 27,452,295

Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery & Equipment
Office Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

2009
$ 56,332

32,820,000
5,628,676
7,749,428

85,619

$ 33,036
5,422,181
5,195,753
8,723,875

74,833

vll



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31,2009, the Authority had total long-term debt outstanding of
$54,694,804. The Authority's debt obligations are comprised of l) three sewer revenue
bonds and 2) two capital lease obligations with the City of McKeesport and one capital
lease with Bank Capital Services as follows:

In October of 2006, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006, in the
amount of $6,140,000 to for l) the design and construction of capital project acquisition of
facilities required for the proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater
conveyance and treatment system and 2) refund an existing bank loan. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 3.6 and 4.5%o on
June 15 and December 15 each yearthrough maturity. The bonds are scheduledto mature
on December 15, 2036. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December
31,2009 is $5,905,000.

In October of 2008, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008, in the
amount of $10,000,000 for the initial stages of an anticipated sixty (60) million dollar
expansion project as required under the Act 537 Plan. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 2.5 and 5.45% on June l5
and December 15 each year through maturity. The bonds are scheduled to mature on
December 15,2039. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31,
2009 is $9.995.000.

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2009 in the amount of $10,000,000 for the purpose of 1) the design and construction of
capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper operation and maintenance
of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3) funding a debt service
reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June l5 and December l5
at rates ranging between 3.0 and 5.75%. The bonds are scheduled to mature December
| 5 , 2039 . The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 3 I , 2009 is

$10.000.000.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In 1997, the Authority entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport
to finance $3.5 million in capital improvements. Under this Cooperation Agreement, the
Authority leases from the City the improvements and the lease payments made by the
Authority are to be utilized in connection with the debt service on bonds issued by the City
to finance the project. The Cooperation Agreement calls for the quarterly payment of
$86,000 to the City during the term of the bond issue. The lease is being amortized over a
Zl-year period. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of December 31, 2009 is
$2,665,270.

In 2009, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with the Bank Capital Services
for the purchase of two F-I50 2009 Ford truck vehicles totaling $45,231. The terms of the
lease call for three annual payments of $ 15,952.92 at an interest rate of 5.9%o. The remaining
principal balance on the lease as of December 3l , 2009 is $29,286.

Effective January 1,2009, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the
City of McKeesport for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system for
$30,000,000. The terms of the agreement call for the monthly payment of $163,614.69
(principal and interest) at the annual rate of 4Yo for a period of 240 months. The lease is
scheduled to expire in December of 2028. The remaining principal balance on the lease as

of December 31, 2009 is $26,100,247 .

The Authority is scheduled to make principal and interest payments on their total debt of
approximately $3,924,947 duringthe 2010 calendar year.

GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Population in the Authority's service area continues to remain fairly constant, with a
decrease in the population of the City of McKeesport being offset by increases in other
communities such as White Oak Borough, North Versailles Township and Elizabeth
Township. [t has been estimated that the population in the service area will increase at a
rate of90 persons per year for the next five years.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Throughout the year the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to develop its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined
Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July of
2007. The project design work was completed and submitted to the PA Department of
Environmental Protection for review in July of 2009 with the hopes of construction being
finished by the end of 2012 or Spring of 2013. (As of the writing of this report, the PA
DEP has not completed its review process.) These Plans will require significant new
treatment processes, pumping stations & interceptor lines with an associated capital cost
of approximately sixty (60) million dollars. In order to prevent a huge increase in the
sewer rates the Authority has chosen to issue a series of $10 million bonds at a rate of one
per year. By doing this the Authority will be able to step the necessary rate increases over
a period of several years. To this end a ten (10) million dollar bond was issued in 2008
and the rates were increased by $0.7411000 gallons, or 20.5%o and a second ten million
dof lar bond was issued in 2009 which increased the rates $0.86/1000 gallons, or 19.4%o.

The US Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level
in the Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine
Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall structures. As a result the federal government funded the
relocation of most of the CSO structures. Construction for Phase I of the project was
completed in2007. Phase II of the project has been bid and the construction began in
May of 2010. When all of the construction is completed, the Authority will have new
outfall structures that will greatly reduce the amount of river water that flows back
through the pipes and into the sewer lines. This in return will reduce the costs associated
with treating unnecessary water.

As was noted earlier in this report, in January of 2009, the Authority acquired the sewage
collection system from the City of McKeesport. The acquisition of the sewer system
included more than 550,000 feet of sewer lines ranging in size from 6" to 42" and two
pumping stations. In order to maintain this vast system, eight new employees were hired
to complete a l3 man crew dedicated to maintaining and repairing the lines, manholes,
catch basins and pumping stations.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGI\-IFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

With the acquisition of the above mentioned collection system, the Authority also
assumed the sewage billing responsibilities from the City. A staff of three billing
personnel was hired to perform this task. To house the billing department, along with the
collection system crew, the Authority purchased a building in the Christy Park area of
McKeesport. This structure was previously used by the local water authority to house
their billing department and line maintenance crew.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Board of Directors'
accountability for the money they administer on behalf of the customers of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport. If you have questions about this report or wish to
request additional financial information, please contact the Authority offices at 100
Atlantic Avenue, McKeesport, PA I 5 132, (412)-673-827 6.

XI



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMEglll

2009

EXHIBIT A

2008
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Sewage Service Receivable
Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport
Other Accounts Receivable
Unbilled Sewage Service:

City of McKeesport
Other Governmental U nits

Deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Investments

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

3,000
124.198

$ 13,475,342 $ 5,741,339
$ 13,475,342 $ 5,741,339

1,381,231
918,335
591,463
148,733

467,640
613,796

$ 56,332
32,820,000

5,628,676
7,749,428

85,619

$ 46,814,534
(11,283,196)

$ 35,531,338
2,727,801

2,477,510
59,988

394,530
674,470

$ 33,036
5,422,181
5,195,753
8,723,875

74,833

$ 19,850,311
(10,313,468)

$ 9,536,843
1,270,001

$ 10,806,944

474,479 400,633

$ 624,438 $ 543,994
$ 624,438 $ 543,994
$ 56,483,117 $ 20,701,675

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
1



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31.
(coNTTNUED)

2009

EXHIBIT A

2008

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Due to City of McKeesport
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Taxes
Sewage Service Deposits
Accrued Interest
Capital Lease - Current Portion
Current Portion of Bonds Payable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES :

Capital Leases - Long Term Portion
Bonds Payable - Long Term Portion
Discount on Bonds Payable
Compensated Absences

TOTAL LONG.TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

290,000 125,000
$ 1,652,759 $ 745,913

$ 27,727,794 $ 2,719,815
25,610,000 15,900,000

(523,632) (26e,568)
87,133 69,908

$ 52,901,295 $ 18,420,155$ 52,901,295
$ 54,554,054 $ 19,166,068

$ (4,221,305) $ (3,473,987)
1,7U,614 1,432,695
4,365,754 3,576,899

$ 1,929,063 $ 1,535,607

$$
188,865
45,283
6,950

54,651
1,067,010

35,1 61

260,728
58,893

153,479
112,652

$ 56,483,117 $ 20,701,675

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
2



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

EXHIBIT B

20082009
OPERATING REVENUES

Sewage Treatment Services
Sludge Hauling
Tap Fees and Permits
WellWater Processing
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

PersonnelCosts
Professional Services
Sewage Plant Costs
Other General and Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPEMTING INCOME BEFORE NON.OPERATING
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NON.OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSE}

Interest Income
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL NON-OPERATTNG REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

INCREASE <DECREASE> IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1.

Prior Period Adjustments

NET ASSETS. DECEMBER 31,

7,085,472
59,950

678,670
27.009

$ 7,851,101

$ 3,900,570
69,380

145,250
52,466
51,526

$ 4,219,192

$ 2,043,561
111,825

1,628,276
234,804

1,085,625

$ 5,104,091

$ 2,747,010

$ 1,613,022
15,471

933,808
211,925
500,304

$ 3,274,530

$ 944,662

$ 32,675
(2,110,727)

(27,527\
$ (2,105,579)

$ 641,431

1,535,607

(247,975)

$ 1,929,063

$ 126,064
(63e,838)

(16,079)

$ (529,853)

$ 414,809

1,358,955

(238,157)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2009

EXHIBIT C

2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Sewage Billings
Cash Paid to Employees for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Gash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(lncrease) Decrease in Restricted Assets
Proceeds from Bond lssues
Proceeds from Capital Lease
Bond Closing Costs
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
Purchase of Property and Equipment (Net of Refund)

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income Received

Net Gash Provided By Investing Activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. DECEMBER 31

$ 6,995,805
(2,03e,946)
(2,830,662)

$ 2,125,197

$ (7,734,003)
10,000,000
27,029,287

(3s1,782)
(1,1s1,951)
(2,179,807\

(28,785,895)

$ (3,254,151)

$ 4,056.302
(1,604,9s3)
(1,220,503)

$ 1,230,946

$ (3,953,705)
10,000,000

(649,346)
(1e5,845)
(549,143)

(5,436,903)

$ (784,942)

$ 32,67s $ 126,064
$ 32,675 $ 126,064

$ (1,096,27e) $ s71,968
2,477 ,510 1,905,542

$ 1,381,231 $ 2,477,510

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Change in Gurrent Assets and Liabilities:

(lncrease) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Sewage Service Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated Compensated Absences

Net Gash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 2,747,010 $ 944.662

1,085,625

(1 ,610,e7e)
(107,024)

(13,610)
6,950

17,225

500,304

(162,8e0)
(5e,2ss)

9,558

$ 2,125,197 $ 1,230,846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2009 AND 2OO8

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTITY

DESCRIPTION

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport (the Authority) is a public corporation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, organized and existing under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 (as
amended). The Council of the City of McKeesport (the City) created the Authority on November 29, 1949
under an order from the Sanitary Water Board of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority was
created for a period of 50 years to end December 5, 1999, and was subsequently extended through
December 5,2026 pursuant to a Cooperation Agreement between the Authority and the City. The Authority
was created for the purpose of acquiring, holding, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating,
owning and leasing (either in capacity as lessor or lessee) certain projects. These projects include sewers,
sewer systems or parts thereof, sewage treatment works, also including the acquisition of land for sewage
treatment works and pumping stations, and all other necessary facilities and apparatus that the Board of
Directors may authorize as necessary for the project. The Authority provides waste collection and treatment
services, under agreement, for the following municipalities:

City of McKeesport
Port Vue Borough
East McKeesport Borough
Glassport Borough
Versailles Borough

White Oak Borough
Liberty Borough
Elizabeth Township
Lincoln Borough
North Versailles Borough

Per the terms of these agreements, the Authority is the sole and exclusive provider of sewage treatment and
disposal service to the above municipalities, and these municipalities have agreed to construct and maintain
such sewers, interceptors and pumping stations as is necessary to bring the sewage and industrial waste to
a point where it flows into the interceptors of the Authority.

The five-members of the Authority Board of Directors are appointed by the members of Council of the City of
McKeesport. The Authority has no stockholders nor equity holders, and revenue or other cash received
must be disbursed in accordance with provisions of the Trust Indentures dated October 1,2006, the First
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of October 2, 2008, and the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated as of December 1, 2009, by and between the Authority and the Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company as trustee (formerly through M&T Investment Group), securing the Sewer Revenue Bonds Series
of 2006, 2008 and 2009 respectively.

REPORTING ENTITY

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not
legally separate from the Authority.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Authority in that the
Authority approves their budget, approves and/or guarantees the issuance of their debt, or otherwise can
impose its will in a significant manner.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE I - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

The management of the Municipal Authority of the Ci$ of McKeesport applies the criteria set forth in the
'Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards' for defining the scope of its
reporting entity. Based on the application of these criteria, the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
has no component units, but is considered a component unit of the City of McKeesport. These financial
statements include only the activity of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport have been prepared in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units, The
GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided

they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The most significant of the Authority's
accounting policies are as follows:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund since its operations are financed and operated in a
manner similar to the private sector. The Authority utilizes the accrual method of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when earned rather than when cash is received, and expenses are
recognized when an obligation is incurred rather than when cash is actually paid.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
deposit accounts, and any other short-term highly liquid assets with original maturity terms of less than three
months.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are made pursuant to Section 7.1 of the Municipal Authorities Act and can include the following:

L U.S. Treasury Bills
ll. Obligations of the U.S. Government and FederalAgencies
lll. Certificates of Deposit, Checking and Savings Accounts insured by

the FDIC or National Credit Union Share lnsurance Fund (NCUSIF)

lV. General obligation bonds of the federal government, Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania or any state agency

V. Shares of Mutual Funds whose investments are restricted to the
aforementioned investments



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL|C|ES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In addition, the Board of Directors can invest the Authority's sinking funds as authorized for local
governments in the Local government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. 8224. Investment of the Authority's
restricted assets are made pursuant to and restricted by the aforementioned Trust lndentures securing the
Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008 and 2009. Investments for 2008 and 2009 (See Restricted
Assets) include Dreyfus Government cash management agency fund shares, fixed income investments with
the Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage
Association, and U.S. Treasury Bills. Investments are stated at fair value. The Authority is in compliance
with these restrictions as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Indentures, dated October 1, 2006, October 2,2008 and
December 1, 2009 by and between the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company and the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport, which secure the Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008 and
2009, the Authority is obligated to restrict certain funds to pay for construction related expenditures and to
meet debt service requirements. The total of these funds is reflected in Exhibit A as 'restric{ed assets' and
detailed in Note 3.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Receivables are mainly comprised of billed and
unbilled sewage services rendered to the participating municipalities as described in Note 1. The Authorig
does not maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts, as management estimates that uncollectible amounts
at year-end, if any, would not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

INVENTORY

The Authority does not maintain a physical inventory of materials, chemicals, and other supplies.
Management estimates that inventory values during the year are minimal for cost control purposes.
Accordingly, management is of the opinion that any value that existed at December 31, 20Og and 2008 would
not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The Authority records proper$, plant and equipment purchases at cost. Property, plant and equipment
include major betterments that extend the economic useful life of the assets affected. The Authority
maintains a capitalization threshold of $500. Routine repair and maintenance costs are charged to
operations as incurred. Depreciation expense is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of the asset as follows:

Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Software

50 Years
40 Years

7-20 Years
7-10 Years

3 Years



NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $1,085,625 and $500,304
respectively. Construction in progress represents funds paid toward the following Authority projects:

12J31t2009 12t31t2008

Act 537 System lmprovements Project
Marshall Drive project

$ 2,427,229 $ 1,270,001
300,572

$ 2,727,801 $ 1,270,001

NET ASSETS

GASB Statement No. 34 requires equity in the statement of net assets to be reported as 'Net Assets'.
Net assets are classified into four categories according to external donor or legal restrictions or availability
of assets to satisfy Authority obligations. Net assets are classified as follows:

o Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This component of net assets consists of capital
assets net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that is
attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of the capital assets.

o Restricted-Nonexpendable - Net assets subject to externally imposed restrictions which are
required to be maintained in perpetuity.

r Restricted-Expendable - Net assets whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that
can be fulfilled by the actions of the Authority or by the passage of time.

o Unrestricted - Consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of 'restricted' or 'invested in
capital assets, net of related debt'.

The Authority applies restricted resources first, when available, before using unrestricted resources, to
pay expenditures that can be paid from either source

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the Authority's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2009 AND 2OO8

NOTE 3. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CASH DEPOSITS:

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Authority had the following carrying value on its'cash and cash
equivalent accounts held with PNC Bank:

-- December 31, 2008 -- -- December 31, 2008 --Bank Carrying
Balance Value

Bank Carrying
Balance Value

Cash and Cash
Equivalents $ 1,416,562 $ 1,381,231 $2,425,221

Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds $ 8,412,899
U.S Treasury Bills 249,395
U.S. Agency Fixed Income 4,813,048

$ 2,477,510

0-l Years

249,395
4,813,048

The difference between the bank balance and the carrying value represents reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. The first $250,000 held at PNC Bank is insured through the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

CustodialCredit Risk:

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2009 and
2008, $1,166,562 and $2,175,221 respectively of the Authorrty's bank balance totals are exposed to
custodial credit risk as these amounts represent uninsured deposits collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority's name. In
accordance with Act Number 72-1971 Session of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the aforementioned
deposits, in excess of $250,000, are collateralized by securities pledged to a pooled public funds account
with the FederalReserve System.

INVESTMENTS:

The fair value and maturity term of the Authority's investments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as
follows:

--- December 31. 2009

Fair Value
No Stated
Maturity

$ 8,412,899

$ 13,475,342 $ 8,412,899 $ 5,062,443



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENTS: (Continued)

December 31, 2008
No Stated

Fair Value Maturity 0-l Years
Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds $ 1,2Te9-39 -5'@ TT
U.S. Agency Fixed Income 4,488,400 - 4,488,400

$ 5,741,339 $ 1,252,939 $ 4,488,400

lnvestments classified as U.S. Agencies are securities of agencies of the U.S. Government that have an
implied but not explicit guarantee. Management does not anticipate any problems with these securities.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Authority has no formal investment policy that limits its investment choices based on credit ratings by
nationally recognized rating organizations. As of December 31, 2009, investments in U.S. Agencies have
received a'A/M' rating from Standards & Poors.

Custodial Credit Risk:

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's investments in money market mutual funds and the
guaranteed income contract are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The Authority does not have a formal
investment policy for custodial credit risk.

lnterest Rate Risk:

The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

10



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENE (Continued)

INVESTMENTS: (Continued)

The Authority's restricted assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are comprised of the following:

12J31t2009 12J31t2008

Construction Funds
Clearing Fund
Debt Service Funds

$ 11,690,728

1,784,614
$13,475,342

$ 4,307,068
1,576

1,432,695
$ 5,741,339

NOTE 4. PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The following comprises the changes to the Authority's property, plant, and equipment account during 2009
and 2008:

Additions
Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehciles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

Land
I nfrastructu re

Buildings
Plant Machinery ard Equipment
Ofiice Machnery and Equipment
Vehciles and Equipment

Les s : Accumu lated Depreciati on

Construclion i n Progress

$ 33,036
5,671,267
5,537,977
7,788,730

73J72
382,257

$ 19,486,439
(10,197 ,57 1\

$ 9,288,868
1,270,001

$ 10,558,869

Balance
1nt0,3

$ 33,036
2,422,181
5,195,753
6,685,017

s8,682
400,633

$ 14,795,3U2
(9,813,164)

$ 4,982,138
888.1 07

$ 5,870,245

$ 23,296
27,148,733

90,699
(3e,302)
12,447
92,222

$ 27,328,095
(1,085,625)

$ 26,242,470
1,457,800

$ 27,700270

Additions
$

3,000,000

2,038,858
1 6,1 51

$

Deletions

Balance
12t31t09

$ 56,332
32,820,000

5,628,676
7,749,428

85,619
474,479

$ 46,814,534
(1 1 ,283,196)

$ 35,531,338
2,727,801

$ 38,2s9,139

Balance
12t31t08

Balance
1t1tog

$ 33,036
5,422,181
5,195,753
8.723.875

74,833
400.633

$ 1 9,850,311
(10,313,468)

$ 9,536,843
1.270.001

$ 10,806,844

Fixed asset balances and related accumulated depreciation have been re-stated in 2009 and 2008 to
reflect changes in the fixed asset appraisal report (Note 8).
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE5-LONG.TERMDEBT

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2006

In October of 2006, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006 under the terms of a
Trust Indenture dated October 1,2006, by and between the Authority and M&T Investment Group
(formerly through First Commonwealth Bank), as Trustee, in the amount of $6,140,000. The purpose of
the bond issue was for 1)the design and construction of capital projects acquisition facilities required for
the proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 2)
refund an existing bank loan, and 3) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging
between 3.6 and 4.5%. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2036.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2OO8

In October of 2008, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008 under the terms of a
First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated October 2,2008, by and between the Authority and the Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $10,000,000. The purpose of the bond
issue was for 1) the design and construction of capital projects, 2) acquisition facilities required for the
proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3)
funding of a debt service reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates
ranging between 2.5 and 5.45o/o. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the
officialstatement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2039

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2OO9

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2009 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2009, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $10,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1)the design and construction of capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper
operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3) funding a
debt service reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging
between 3.0 and 5.75o/o. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15, 2039.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The following summarizes the debt service obligations of the Authority as of December 31, 2009:

2006
Year Principal
zoio -5-=1-25"0-06"-

20't1 130,000

2009
Principal lnterest Total

$ - $1,311,618 $ 1,601,618

2014 145,000 190,000
2015-2019 805,000 1,050,000
2020-2024 985,000 1,320,000
2025-2029 1.225.000 1.695.000

- 1.282.039
- 1,272,227

165,000 1,426,545
170,000 1,415,269
960,000 5,923,184

1,210,000 5,233,595
1,550,000 4,281,850

2012
2013

135,000
140,000

170,000
175,000
180,000

1,582,039
1,582,227
1,91 1 ,545
1,920,269
8,738,184
8,748,595
8,751,8s0

2030-2034 1 ,510,000 2,195,000 2,045,000 2,995,290 8,745.290
2035-2039 705,000 2,855,000 3,900,000 1,291,80s 8,751,805

$ 5,905,000 $ 9,99s,000 $10,000,000 $26,433,422 $ 52,333,422

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

In connection with the Authority's Series of 2006, 2008 and 2009 bond issues, the Authority paid
approximately $684,605 in bond issuance costs. These costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis
over the life of the bond issues. The unamortized amount of bond issuance costs at December 31, 2009
and 2008 totaling $624,438 and $543,994 respectively, is reflected in Exhibit A as part of other assets.
Amortization expense was$27,527 and $16,079 for 2009 and 2008 respectively. ln addition, the original
issue discount and underwriters discount in connection with these bond issues was $573,410. This amount
is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the bond issues and is charged as a component of
interest expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The unamortized
amount of bond discount at December 31, 2009 and 2008 totaling $523,632 and $269,568 respectively, is
reflected in Exhibit A as a reduction in long-term liabilities. The amount of discount charged to interest
expense was $29,747 and $10,804 for 2009 and 2008 respectively.

CAPITAL LEASE - CITY OF MCKEESPORT

In 1997, the Authority entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport to finance $3.5
million in capital improvements. Under this Cooperation Agreement, the Authority leases the improvements
from the City, and the lease payments made by the Authority to the City are used to pay the debt service on
bonds issued by the City to finance the project. The Cooperation Agreement calls for the Authority to make
quarterly payments of $86,000 to the City during the term of the City's bond issue. The lease is being
amortized over a 25-year period commencing with calendar year 1998.

13



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

CAPITAL LEASE - CITY OF MCKEESPORT SANITARY COLLECTION SYSTEM

Effective January 1, 2009, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the City of
McKeesport for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system for $30,000,000. The terms of the
agreement call for the monthly payment of $1 63,614.69 (principal and interest) at the annual rate of 4Vo lor a
period of 240 months. The lease is scheduled to expire in December of 2028.

CAPITAL LEASE - BANK CAPITAL SERVICES

In March of 2009, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with Bank Capital Services for the
purchase of (2) F-150 2009 Ford Truck vehicles for $45,231. The terms of the lease call for 3 annual
paymentsof $15,952.92atan annual interestrateof 5.9%witha$1 buy-outoptionatthecompletionof
the lease term. The lease is scheduled to expire in May of 2011.

A schedule of the future minimum lease rental payments as of December 31, 2009 is as follows:

Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2015-2019
2020-2024
2025-2028

$ 1,256,319
1,206,897
1,154,930
1,101,216
1,044,710
4,265,668
2,376,306

607,201

$ 2,323,329
2,323,329
2,307,376
2,307,376
2,307,376

11,536,880
10,848,880
7,853,504

1997 2009
City Lease City Lease Bank Capital
Principal Principal Principal

$ 116,375 $ 936,410 $ 14,225
126,810 974,561 15,061
138,180 1 ,014,266
150,571 1,055,589
164,071 1,098,595

1,069,256 6,201,956
900,007 7,572,567

- 7,246,303

Interest Total

Bonds
Capital Leases

Bonds
Capital Leases

$ 16,025,000
2,832,467

$ 18,857,467

Balance
111toB

Balance Due Within
12J311O9 One Year

$ 25,900,000 $ 290,000

Balance Due Within
12l31l0g One Year

$ 16,025,000 $ 125,000$ 10,000,000 $ (115,000)
(80,845) 2,832,467 112,652

$ 10,000,000 $ (195,845) $ 18,857,467 $ 237,652

-

$ 2,665,270 $ 26,100,247 $ 29,286 $ 13,013,247 $ 41,808,050

The following represents the changes in the Authority's long-term debt obligations during 2009 and 2008:

Bafance 1l1l09 Additions Deletions
$ 10,000,000 $ (12s,000)

27 ,029,287 (1 ,066,950) 28,794,804 1,067,010
$ 37,029,287 $ (1,191,950) $ 54,694,804 $ 1,357,010

Additions Deletions
6,140,000
2,913,312
9,053,312

14



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 6 - LEASE RENTAL EXPENSE

On October 17,2008, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the City of McKeesport,
effective January 1, 2009, for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system (Note 5). In connection
with that agreement, the Authority agreed to also pay, on a monthly basis, the outstanding balance due on
two (2) loans the City has with the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) related to
improvements made to the collection system. The monthly payments total $25,307. During the calendar
year 2009, the Authority reimbursed the City $303,689 in total for these PENNVEST loans. The remaining
amounts due on these loans, per amortization schedules received from the City, total approximately
$4,678,519 at December 31, 2009. The following represents the minimum lease rental payments remaining
on this obligation as of December 31, 2009:

Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2015-2019
2020-2024
2025-2028

AMOUNT
$ 303,689

303,689
303,689
303,689
303,689

1,518,445
1,518,445
1,316,670

$ 5,872,005

NOTE 7 -ACCUMULATED COMPENSATED ABENCES

In accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between the Authority and the Utility
Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, all regular full-time employees are entitled to receive payment for the
value of all unused vacation days upon separation of service from the Authority at the employee's regular
daily rate. This practice also applies to administrative personnel not covered under the terms of the
bargaining agreement. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the value of accumulated compensated
absences totaled $87,133 and $69,908 respectively.

NOTE 8 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The prior period adjustment of $247,975 and $238,157 to the January 1,2009 and January 1, 2008 net
assets of the Authority respectively represents adjustments to the calculation of the Authority's prior year
fixed asset and accumulated depreciation totals based on updated appraisal information.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2009 AND 2OO8

NOTE 9 -TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT

The Authority entered into an agreement with the City of McKeesport dated December 29, 1949, as
amended June 2, 1992, to provide sewage treatment services to the City and to pay the City $30,000
annually for the maintenance cost of the sewers located within the City. In addition, during 2008, the
Authority was responsible for paying the City a quarterly administrative fee, based on water usage, for the
Cily to bill and collect certain fees from its customers within the City. Effective February 1, 2009, the
Authority began billing and collecting these fees directly to the customers within the City of McKeesport. In

addition, the Authority paid the City of McKeesport $600,000 for the estimated value of collectible delinquent
sewage fees outstanding. This amount, less delinquent collections in 2009, is reflected in the statement of
net assets totaling $591,463. The Authority incurred billing and collection fees to the City for 2008 of
$69,156. As of December 31, 2008, the Authority owed the City $35,161 for these billing services.
Amounts due from the City for sewage treatment services totaled $394,530 at December 31, 2008.
Approximately 58% and 40To of the Authority's sewage treatment services revenue for 2009 and 2008
respectively was generated from the City of McKeesport.

NOTE 10. AUTHORITY PENSION PLAN

The Authority established a single-employer defined benefit pension plan on March 1, 1964, as amended, to
provide retirement benefits to eligible employees of the Authority.

Plan membership as of January 1,2007 was comprised of:

Active employees
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits

but not yet receiving them
Total

A summary of the plan's provisions is as follows:

24
16

1T

PARTICIPANTS -

ELIGIBILITY -

VESTING -

BENEFITS -

All employees of the Authority who customarily work at least 20
hours per week and at least 5 months per year.

All participants are eligible for retirement benefits provided that
they have attained the age of 62 and have completed 10 years
of continuous service. Participants are eligible for early
retirement at age 55 with 20 years of continuous service.

Vesting occurs on a sliding scale with full vesting occurring after
20 years of service.

50% of Average Compensation multiplied by participants short
service percentage (effective 1 11 I2OOB).
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 10 - AUTHORITY PENIQ!-|!!! (Continued)

DEATH BENEFIT - The plan provides for beneficiary benefits named by the
participant under options as detailed in the retirement plan.

FUNDING - Member contributions equal 2.5o/o of compensation. This rate
increases to 2.75o/o if the Authority's Minimum Municipal
Obligation (MMO) exceeds $65,000 and 3% if the MMO exceeds
$90,000. Members contributed $42,108 and $30,663 to the plan
during 2009 and 2008 respectively. Pension expense of the
Authority totaled $17,202 for 2009 and $7,166 for 2008.

The investment income of the plan was used to fund administrative costs. There are no long-term contracts
for contributions as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. In addition, there are no assets legally reserved for
purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits. The plan does not issue a stand-alone report.

The significant assumptions employed in the most recent actuarialvaluation (dated 11112007) to determine
funding included the use of an 8% interest rate and a salary projection of 4.5o/o. The pension plan uses the
Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method. Net assets available for benefits as of January 1,2007 were
$5,105,407.

A schedule of the Authority's annual required contributions (ARC) to the plan is as follows:

Year ARC % Contributed
17,202
7,166

83,326
98,910
92,823
79,697
49,541
48,792
31,288
28,998

Historical trend information, designed to provide information about the plan's progress made accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, is as follows:

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
200'l
2000

10Oo/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
100%
100%
100%
100o/o

100o/o

100%

(B)(A) (B.A)
(UAAL)

UNFUNDED
ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED
LIABILITY

(A/B)

FUNDED
RATIO

104o/o

103o/o

105o/o

120o/o

(c) (B-Ayc

UAAL AS A
YoOF

COVERED COVERED
PAYROLL PAYROLL

ACTUARIAL
VALUATION

DATE

1t1t01
1t1t03
1t1t05
1t1t07

ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL
VALUEOF ACCRUED
ASSETS LIABILITY

$ 3,725,1 13 $ 3,573,948
3,877,556 3,780,883
4,264,511 4,049,779
5J05,407 4,262,176

$ (1s1,165)
(e6,673)

(214,732)
(843,231',)

$ 872,199
796,600

1,065,402
1,063,399

-17o/o

-12o/o

-20o/o

-79%

Additional trend information regarding net pension obligations (NPO) is available from the Authority's
actuary.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OO9 AND 2OO8

NOTE 11 - POST EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFIT OTHER THAN PENSION

In accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between the Authority and the Utility
Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, the Authority will purchase hospitalization coverage and pay the
premium cost at any one time for a maximum of two retired union employees between the ages of 62 and
'65, 

subject to the same deductibles that apply for regular employees. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
two union retirees were receiving post-retirement health care benefits from the Authority. The Authority
finances these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Amounts paid for these benefits for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 were deemed immaterial.

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims for these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years. The risk of loss retained by the
Authority is limited to deductibles under each of the policies which can range between $2,500 and $10,000
per item.

For its workers compensation insurance coverage, the Authority participates in the Municipal Risk
Management Worker's Compensation Pooled Trust (Trust), which is a public entity risk pool comprised of
approximately 200 governmentalorganizations. Trust underwriting and rate-setting policies are established
after consultation with an independent actuary and certain approvals from the Pennsylvania Department of
Labor and Industry. All Trust participants may be subject to a supplemental assessmenUdividend based on
overall experience of the participants. Each participant of the Trust agrees to jointly and severally assume
and discharge the liabilities arising under the Workers Compensation Act and Occupational Disease Act of
each and every participant of the Trust.

The Trust purchases excess insurance coverage within statutory limits. The retention for this coverage is

$750,000 per occurrence. Political subdivisions joining the Trust must remain members for a minimum of
four years. Members may withdraw from the Trust after that time by giving ninety days notice, subject to
approval by the Trust actuary under specified circumstances related to the continued fiscal stability of the
pool. At the time of withdraw, the participant is responsible for their share of assessments but has no claim
on any assets of the Trust.

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

LEGAL MATTERS

The Authority, on occasion, can be party to various legal actions arising from normal business operations.
As of December 31, 2009, the Authority is unaware of any pending litigation.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2009 AND 2OO8

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

PENNSYLVANTA SEWAGE FACtLtTtES ACT (ACT 537)

Act 537 requires municipalities in Pennsylvania to develop and implement official sewage plans that address
existing sewage disposal needs, account for future land development and provide for future sewage
disposal needs. During 2008 and 2009, the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to develop its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined Sewer Overflow
(CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July ol20O7 and the Authority has begun
the project design work. These Plans will require significant new treatment processes, pumping stations
and interceptor lines with an associated capital cost of approximately $50 million. To finance the project,
the Authority has chosen to issue a series of $10 million bonds (see Note 5) at a rate of one per year,
thereby enabling the Authority to step the necessary sewage rate increases over the next four to five
years as opposed to a significant rate increase in any one year.

u.s. ARMY CORPS OF ENGTNEERS (COE)

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level in the
Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall
structures. As a result, the federal government is funding the relocation of most of the CSO structures.
Construction for Phase 1 of the project was completed in 2007. Phase ll began in the second half of
2009 and is scheduled to be completed in 2010. When all of the construction is completed, the Authority
will have new outfall structures that will greatly reduce the amount of river water that flows back through
the pipes and into the sewer lines. This in return will reduce the costs associated with treating
unnecessary water.

NOTE 14 - PENDING AND EXISTING GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June of 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45,
'Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions'.
This statement provides the accounting and reporting requirements for benefit plans, as well as, requires
that public sector employers accrue the cost of any postretirement healthcare or similar benefits (OPEB)
they may offer to employees. The Authority currently recognizes the costs of post-employment benefits on
a pay-as-you-go basis (Note 11). GASB Statement No. 45 stipulates that governments account for and
report the annual cost of OPEB, and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB, in the
same manner as they cunently do for pensions. This change to the accrued retiree healthcare provision, as
detailed in Note 10, may require the performance of an actuarial valuation. Management is of the opinion,
based on the language in the collective bargaining agreement, and the limitation in participants, that the
effect of this valuation on the Authority's financial position would be immaterial. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements contain no provision for this net pension obligation, if any.

In addition, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, 'Accounting and Financial Reporting for lmpairment of
CapitalAssets and for Insurance Recoveries'which is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2005. In connection with the approved Act 537 plan (Note 12), the Authority is evaluating whether
significant impairments to its capital assets will occur and the potential impairment loss that would be
required to be recognized in the financial statements. The Authority has not as yet determined the amount
of any such loss, and accordingly no provision for an impairment loss is provided for in the accompanying
financial statements.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF DETAIL OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

SCHEDULE 1

2008

$ 1,406,773 $ 1,038,098
191,356 163,958
121,726 93,728
17,202 7,276

306,504 309,962
$ 2,0#t,561 $ 1,613,022

PERSONNEL COSTS
Plant Salaries
Administrative Salaries
PayrollTaxes
Pension
Employee Benefits

TOTAL PERSONNEL

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Engineering (Net of COE Reimbursements)
Audit
Legal
Other Professional Services (Accounting/Payroll)

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

SEWAGE PLANT COSTS
Utilities
Repair and Maintenance
Lease Rental Expense
Chemicals
Lab Supplies and Analysis
Safety Program
Vehicle Expense
Sludge Hauling
Sewer Rental
Computers
Uniforms
CSO Study
Miscellaneous

TOTAL SEWAGE PLANT COSTS

OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
lnsurance
Office Supplies
Telephone
Billing and Collecting
Traveland Education
Advertising
Bond and Asset Management Fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

DEPRECIATION

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$ 111,825 $ 15,471

$ 56,888 $
14,610
29,U2
10,485

$ 418,111 $
340J29
303,689

69,929
60,808
4,646

48,535
248,587

25,856
45,542
5,747

37,000

$ 86,765
18,214
26,516
37,251
21,453

833
20,636
23,1 36

19,697 7 ,382
$ 1,629,276 $ g33,g0g

(21,e47)
8,300

20,419
8,699

360,677
157,362

46,090
41,168
2,779

20,563
218,025

25,856
13,835
4,021

36,050

66,122
4,333

12,U0
69,2U
32,761
2,999
9,334

14,452
211,925

$ 1,08s,625 $ 500,304

$ 3,274,530
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Operatine Data 2010
2O1O LARGEST CUSTOMERS

2010 Annual % ofTotal 2010

UPMC Health System #11

McKeesport Housing Auth (2341 Cravvford Village)
McKeesport Housing Auth (1-14 Harrison Village)

Guy Deluca (Kane Hospital)
Midtown Plaza Apts./71 05
Camp HillCorp
McKeesport Housing Auth (64 Crawford Village)

McKeesport Housing Auth (lsbir - Harrison Village)

McKeesport Housing Auth (6th st and Huey st)

25,856
8,868
7,008

6,665
5,344
4,312
3,572

3,400

3,072

$2s2,162.00
$86,529.00
$68,394.00

$65,049.75
$52,170.00
$42,108.00
$34,893.00

$33,216.00

$30,018.00

4.6%
1.60/o

1.3o/o

1.2Yo

1.0o/o

0.8%
0.6%

0.6%

0.6%

$25,747.50

70,731 $690,287.25 12.80/o

SEWER SYSTEM RATES
Sewage Seruice Rates Per Quafter
Size Charge/l,000 Consumed Gallons allowed for min.
2007 1,000 $3.16
2008 1,000 $3.70
2009 1,000 $4.44
2010 1,000 $5.30
2011 1.000 $6.10

Trends in Customer Breakdown - Sewer System
Year
Historical Number of Customerc
2001 19,987*
200219,987*
2003 19,987.
200419,142"
2005 19.070.
2006 19,180.
2007 19,225*
200819,225*
200919,225.
201018,985-
* Number provided by the communities in their annual waste load
-Number provided by Service Community billing departments
Source: Authority Officials

management report
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Mark C. Turnley
Certified P u b I ic Ac co u ntant 2919 Duss Avenue

Ambidge, Pennsylvania 1 5003
(724) 266-266e

FAX (724) 266-4124

To the Board of Directors
The Municipal Authority of the Gity of McKeesport

Independent Auditor's Reooft

I have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Municipal Authority of the Cig of
McKeesport, a component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania as of December 31,2010 and 2009,
and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authorig's management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis
for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
posttion of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages iii-xi be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statement, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have apptieO
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries ol
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Pennsylvania lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants



My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport. The supplemental schedule listed in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

fu/4-%,1A
Mark C. Turnley, CPA

June 30, 201 1

Ambridge, Pennsylvania



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Authority's annual financial report represents our discussion and
analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Authority's basic financial statements. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the information provided in the Authority's financial
statements.

OPERATING AGREEMENTS

The Authority owns and operates a wastewater treatment facility pursuant to Agreements
with each of the ten communities it serves. The Authority has Agreements to provide
wastewater treatment services with the City of McKeespoft, the Borough of Liberty, the
Borough of Port Vue, the Borough of East McKeesport, the Township of Elizabeth, the
Borough of Glassport, the Borough of White Oak, the Borough of Versailles, the
Borough of Lincoln and the Township of North Versailles. The Authority's Board of
Directors establishes a rate which is designed to recover the cost of providing services.
The rate is based upon the gallons of water used by the community. The Authority bills
the municipalities on a quarterly basis for services provided to the communities' residents
at the established rate. The municipalities are responsible for setting a rate for customers
within their municipalities and for billing and collecting from those customers. The
Authority began conducting billing services for Versailles Borough in March of 2009.

The City of McKeesport sold its Collection System to the Authority effective January l,
2009 under a lease purchase agreement. Since that date Authority personnel have
performed routine maintenance and repairs to the system.

On November 8, 2010 the City of Duquesne sold its wastewater treatment plant and
collection system to the Authority for $3.8 million. Under the terms of the agreement the
City of Duquesne used the vast portion of the funds to pay off the balance of the sewage
plant's $3.2 million bond. The rate payers from the City of Duquesne will continue to pay
all expenses and debt service incured by the system. A combined sewer overflow long
term control plan will be developed over the next three or four years. Once the plan has
been approved by the PA DEP, a new permit will be issued to the facility.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include only those of the Authority which is a
component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania. The financial statements are
presented using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. They are designed to provide a broad overview of the Authority's finances,

nl



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the Authority's activities are

reported in the statements except for activities associated with the pension fund because
those funds are not available to support the Authority's own programs.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Authority's assets and

liabilities, with the difference of the two reported as net assets. Net assets are reported as

one ofthree categories: invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt; restricted; or
unrestricted.

The Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Net Assets presents information
showing how the Authority's net assets changed during the year. All of the changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows
until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected rates and earned but unused vacation leave).

These two financial statements report the Authority's net assets and the changes in the net
assets. Net assets, which represent the difference between assets and liabilities, are one
measure of the Authority's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Authority's net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information proved in these financial statements. The financial
statements and accompanying notes can be found in the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2010, the Authority adopted a general rate increase of $0.80/ 1,000 gallons consumed

to create a new rate of $6.10/1000 gallons consumed. This increase was assessed to
finance the debt service of the twenty-five (25) million dollar 2010 bond borrowed for a

fifty-four (54) million dollar expansion project as required under the Act 537 Plan. Bids
for this project were opened on March 7 ,2011 and fifteen (15) contracts were awarded on
Mav 26.2011.

lv



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

The Authority was awarded PennVest funding on April 20,201l. The funding consisted
of $18,412,500 in the form of a grant and an equal amount in the form of a one (1.0)
percent thirty (30) year loan. These funds are to apply only to the two contracts pertaining
to the construction relating to the upgrade of the wastewater treatment facility itself. It
cannot be used for the upgrades to the pump stations or lines.

The Tapping Fee (Capacity fee) remained unchanged in 201 0 at a rate of $ I ,750 per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit ("EDU"). An EDU, equivalent dwelling unit, is the average
amount of wastewater that each household in the service area discharges each day. The
Authority calculates an EDU to be 236 gallons per day. During 201 0 there were two (2)
new residential taps and two (2) new commercial taps purchased within the Authority's
service area. The balance of cash accumulated from tapping fees (The Tapping Fee
Account), reserved by the Board for capital projects, on December 31,2010 was
s748,496.36.

On December 3 | , 2010, total assets were $81,588,050 and total liabilities were
976,971,280 yielding a net asset of $4,616,770. This resulted in an increase in the total
net assets of $2,687,707 over last year's totals.

For the year 2010,3.62 billion gallons of wastewater were treated at the wastewater
facility. Approximately L 15 billion gallons of water were consumed in 201 0 by the
Authority's customers and paid for by their user fees. By comparison ,3l.\yo of the
wastewater treated was billable, slightly up from 30.9% in 2009.The remaining2.47
billion gallons of wastewater, down 120 million gallons from 2009, entered the sewer
system from rainwater, groundwater, streams and rivers, water line breaks, firefighting
efforts, etc. The 2010 annualrainfall in the area remained relativelv stable from the
previous year; 32.1 0 inches in 2009 to 32.90 inches in 201 0.

In 2010 the Authority continued to treat wastewater from gas well drilling operations.
During the year the facility treated 14,626,358 gallons of this wastewater and received
payment of $1,526,877.72. Due to the changes that the gas companies have made with
the way that they recycle and dispose of this wastewater, this revenue stream will be
greatly reduced in 201 I and thereafler.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

The City of Duquesne sold its wastewater treatment facility and associated sanitary and
combined sewer lines to the Authority for $3.8 million on November 8, 2010. These
funds were used by the City to pay off the facility's $3.2 million bond. The Authority will
continue to use the revenue generated by the Duquesne System to pay for its expenses,
thus keeping the finances separate from the rest of the MACM system. As part of the
purchase agreement rates will be frozen through 2012.

Revenues generated by Sewage Treatment per 1,000 gallons consumed - $7.77
Operating expenses per 1,000 gallons consumed - $4.87

Total Operating Revenues were $10,871,269, an increase of $3,020,168, or 387o over
2009, primarily caused by the increase in volume of the gas well water that was treated
and the $0.86i 1000 gallons rate increase that occurred in 2010.

Operating Expenses were $5,601,619, an increase of $497,528 , or 9.7o/o over 2009. The
largest increases came from depreciation and the additional personnel.

FINANCIAL AITALYSIS

The following condensed financial statements and other selected information serve as

financial data and indicators to help the Authority manage, monitor, and plan.

Gondensed Statement of Net Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets-net of accumulated depreciation

TotalAssets

Cunent and other liabilities

Net Assets

Dec.31,2010

39,806,046
41,782,004

8l ,588,050

76,971,280

4,616,770

Dec.31,2009

18,223,978
38,259,139

56,483,117

54,554,054

1,929,063

% Change

1r8.4%
9.2%

44.4%

4t.t%

1393%

vl



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINAIICIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Dec.31,2010 Dec.31,2009 7o Change

0perating revenues

Operating expenses

Operating income

Interest income

lnterest expense
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

Change in Net Assets

Total operating revenues
Net cash provided by operations
Operating cash as a percentage of
operating revenues

2010
$10,871,269

$7,414,211

68.2%

10,871,269
5,601,619

5,269,650

48,923 32,675
(2,624,504) (2,110,727)

(30,526) (27,527)

7,851,101 39.5%
5,104,091 9.7%

2,747,070 91.8%

49.7%
24.3%
10.9%

Variance
$3,020,169
$5,289,014

4r.t%

2,663,543 641,431 315.3%

Overall, the Authority's financial condition remained strong in 2010. Most of the ten
service communities are up to date with their payments with the exception of East
McKeesport which continues to lag one quarter behind due to the length of time it takes
to get their consumption numbers from the water authority. The addition of the
McKeesport Collection System in2009 and the Duquesne Wastewater Treatment Plant
and System in 2010 has greatly expanded the scope of the Authority's influence and
responsibilities. The purchase of the Borough of Dravosburg's plant and system in20ll,
as well as, the expressed interest of at least three of the Authority's service communities
to sell their systems to the Authority bodes well for the future success of the Authority.

The following table shows the Authority's ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash
provided by operating activities is shown both in total dollars and as a percentage of
operating revenues.

2009
$ 7,851,101

s2,125,197

27.r%

vl



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AIID DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

On December 31, 2010, the Authority had $41 ,782,004 invested in capital assets,

including land, infrastructure, buildings, plant and office machinery and equipment, and
vehicles net of depreciation. This amount represents a net increase (including additions,
deletions and depreciation) of $3,522,865, or approximately 9Yo from last year.

The Authority had approximately $4,661 .340 in capital additions during the 20l 0 year,
mainly comprised of l) the purchase of lines from the City of Duquesne for $3,800,000,
2) costs incurred of $169,618 for the Act 537 system improvements and upgrades, 3)
construction costs for additions to the administration and laboratory buildings totaling
$204,999 and 4) the purchase of a Vactor 2100 on a 2009 international cab and chassis
totaling $356,691.

A summary of the Authority's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation forthe past
two years is as follows:

INCREASE
2OO9 <DECREASE>2010

Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery & Equipment
Office Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

$ 56,332 $ 56,332
36,959,918 32,820,000
5,637,354 5,628,676
7,838,347 7,749,428

86,566 85,619
845,670 474,479 371,191

$ 51,424,187 $ 46,814,534 $ 4,609,653
(12,449,395) (11,283,196) (1,166,199)

$ 38,974,792 $ 35,531,338 $ 3,443,4s4
2,807,212 2,727,801 79,411

$ 41,782,004 $ 38,259,139 $ 3,522,865

$
4,139,918

8,678
88,919

947

vil



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 37,2010, the Authority had total long-term debt outstanding of
$76,815,222. The Authority's debt obligations are comprised of l) four sewer revenue
bonds and2) two capital lease obligations with the City of McKeesport, one capital lease
with Bank Capital Services, and one capital lease with PNC Equipment Finance as

follows:

In October of 2006, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006, in the
amount of $6,140,000 for l) the design and construction of capital project acquisition of
facilities required for the proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater
conveyance and treatment system and 2) refund an existing bank loan. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 3.6 and 4.5o/o on
June 15 and December I 5 each year through maturity. The bonds are scheduled to mature
on December 15, 2036. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December
31,2010 is $5,780,000.

In October of 2008, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008, in the
amount of $10,000,000 for the initial stages of an anticipated sixty (60) million dollar
expansion project as required under the Act 537 Plan. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 2.5 and 5.45% on June l5
and December 15 each year through maturity. The bonds are scheduled to mature on
December 15,2039. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31,
2010 is $9,830,000.

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2009 in the amount of $10,000,000 for the purpose of I ) the design and construction of
capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper operation and maintenance
of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system,3) funding a debt service
reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June l5 and Decernber 15

at rates ranging between 3.0 and 5.75%. The bonds are scheduled to mature December
15,2039. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31, 2010 is

$10,000,000.

vlll



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In December of 2010, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series

of 2010 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 28, 2010, by and between
the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the
amount of $25,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) the design and

construction ofcapital projects, 2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3) paying the
costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with
interest payable semi-annually June l5 and December l5 at rates ranging between 2.0
and 5.16Yo. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15, 2040. The remaining
principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31, 2010 is $25,000,000.

In 1997, the Authority entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport
to finance $3.5 million in capital improvements. Under this Cooperation Agreement, the

Authority leases from the City the improvements and the lease payments made by the

Authority are to be utilized in connection with the debt service on bonds issued by the City
to finance the project. The Cooperation Agreement calls for the quarterly payment of
$86,000 to the City during the term of the bond issue. The lease is being amortized over a
Zl-year period. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of December 31,2010 is

$2,548,895.

ln 2009, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with the Bank Capital Services
for the purchase of two F-150 2009 Ford truck vehicles totaling 545,231. The terms of the

lease calf for three annual payments of $15,952.92 at an interest rate of 5.9Yo. The remaining
principaf balance on the lease as of December3l,2010 is $15,062.

Effective January 1,2009, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the

City of McKeesport for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system for
$30,000,000. The terms of the agreement call for the monthly payment of $163,614.69
(principal and interest) at the annual rate of 4Yo for a period of 240 months. The lease is
scheduled to expire in March of 2027. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of
December 31,2010 is $23,384,475.

lx



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF MoKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In July of 2010, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC
Equipment Finance forthe purchase of a Vactor 2100 on a200g lnternational Cab and
Chassis for $328,368. The terms of the lease call for 5 annual payments of $71 ,578.41 at
an annuaf interest rate of 4.5o/o with a $l buy-out option at the completion of the lease
term. The lease is scheduled to expire in August of 2014. The remaining principal
balance on the lease as of December 31,2010 is $256,789.

The Authority is scheduled to make principal and interest payments on their total debt of
approximately $5,1 65,661during the 201 I calendar year.

GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGMFICANT EVENTS

Population in the Authority's service area continues to remain fairly constant, with a
decrease in the population of the City of McKeesport being offset by increases in other
communities such as White Oak Borough, North Versailles Township and Elizabeth
Township. It has been estimated that the population in the service area will increase at a
rate of90 persons per year for the next five years.

Throughout the year the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to develop its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined
Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July of
2007. The project design work was completed and submitted to the PA Department of
Environmental Protection for review in July of 2009 and approved in July of 2010.
Fifteen construction projects were put out for bid in February of 201I and awarded in
May. The completion date for these projects is the summer of 2013. The project involves
significant new treatment processes, pumping stations & interceptor lines with an
associated capital cost of approximately fifty-four (54) million dollars. In order to prevent
a huge increase in the sewer rates the Authority has chosen to issue a series of $ l0
million bonds at arate of one per year. By doing this the Authority will be able to step the
necessary rate increases over a period of several years. To this end a ten (10) million
dollar bond was issued in 2008 and the rates were increased by $0.7411000 gallons, or
20.5yo, a second ten million dollar bond was issued in 2009 which increased the rates
$0.86/1000 gallons, or 19.4%o, and a final twenty-five (25) million dollar bond was issued
in 2010 raising the rates $0.80/1000 gallons, or 15.1o/o.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGII"IFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

The US Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level
in the Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine
Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall structures. As a result the federal government funded the
relocation of most of the CSO structures. Construction for Phase I of the project was
completed in2007 and the final phase (ll) of the project was completed in 2010. The
Authority's new outfall structures should greatly reduce the amount of river water that
flows back through the pipes and into the sewer lines. This in return will reduce the costs
associated with treating unnecessary water.

As was noted earlier in this report, in2009, the Authority acquired the sewage collection
system from the City of McKeesport. The acquisition of the sewer system included more
than 550,000 feet of sewer lines ranging in size from 6" to 42" and two
pumping stations. The acquisition of the Duquesne plant and system in 2010 added an
additional 157,880 feet of sewer lines and 557 manholes to the Authority's care. In order
to maintain this vast system, eight new employees were hired in2010 to complete a 13

man crew dedicated to maintaining and repairing the lines, manholes, catch basins and
pumping stations.

With the acquisition of the Duquesne system, the Authority also assumed the
corresponding sewage billing responsibilities. Two additional employees were hired in
2010 to assist the initial staff in order to perform this task.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Board of Directors'
accountability for the money they administer on behalf of the customers of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport. tf you have questions about this report or wish to
request additional financial information, please contact the Authority offices at 100

Atlantic Avenue, McKeesport, PA 15132, (412)-673-8276.
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EXHIBIT A

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DEcEMgEgLL

2010 2009
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Sewage Service Receivable
Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport
Other Accounts Receivable
Accrued Sewage Service (Unbilled)
Deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Investments

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

3,000 3,000
$ 7,107,885 $ 4,124,199

$31 413.728

$ 4,688,620
957,473
241,161

1,217,631

1,381,231
918,335
591,463
148,733

1,081,436

$ 31,413,728 $ 13,475,342

$ 56,332
32,820,000

5,628,676
7,749,428

85,619

$ 56,332
36,959,918

5,637,354
7,838,347

86,566
845,670 474,479

$ sr ,424,187 $ 46,814,534
(12,M9,395) (11,283,196)

g 38,974,792 $ 35,531,338
2,807,212 2,727,801

$ 41,782,004 $ 39,259,139

$ 1,284,433 $ 624,438
$ 1,284,433 $ 624,439
$ 81,588,050 $ 56,493,117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
1



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Taxes
Sewage Service Deposits
Accrued Interest
Capital Lease - Current Portion
Current Portion of Bonds Payable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES :

Capital Leases - Long Term Portion
Bonds Payable - Long Term Portion
Discount on Bonds Payable
Compensated Absences

TOTAL LONG.TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in CapitalAssets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31.
(coNTrNuED)

EXHIBIT A

2010 2009

$ 854,450 $ 188,865
47,704 45,283
13,050 6,950

102,948 54,651
1,248,949 1,067,010
300,000 290,000

$ 2,567,101 $ 1,652,759

$ 24,956,273 $ 27,727,794
50,310,000 25,610,000

(s6s,486) (523,632)
103,392 87,133

$ 74,404,179 $ 52,901,295
$ 76,971,280 $ 54,554,054

$ (6,130,544) $ (4,221,305)
3,435,456 1,784,614
7,311,858 4,365,754

$ 4,616,770 $ 1,929,063
$ 81,588,050 $ 56,1183,117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
2



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2010

EXHIBIT B

2009
OPEMTING REVENUES

Sewage Treatment Services
Sludge Hauling
Tap Fees and Permits
WellWater Processing
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

PersonnelCosts
Professional Services
Sewage Plant Costs
Other General and Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE NON.OPERATING
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NON.OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSE}

Interest Income
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL NON-OPERAT|NG REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

INCREASE <DECREASE> IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1,

Prior Period Adjustments

NET ASSETS. DECEMBER 31,

$ 10,871,269 $ 7,851,101

$ 8,939,124
105,115

5,250
1,820,000

1,780

$ 7,085,472
59,950

678,670
27,009

2,404,579
209,567

1,5/,6,237
277,534

1,163.702

$ 5,601,619

$ 5,269,650

$ 2,043,561
111,825

1,628,276
234,804

1,085,625

$ 5,104,091

$ 2,747,010

48,923
(2,624,504)

$ 32,675
(2,110,727)

(27,527)
$ (2,105,579)

$ 641,431

1,535,607

(247,975\24.164

4,616,770

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
3
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2010

EXHIBIT C

2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Sewage Billings
Cash Paid to Employees for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Gash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(lncrease) Decrease in Restricted Assets
Proceeds from Bond lssues
Proceeds from Capital Lease
Bond Closing Costs
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
Purchase of Property and Equipment (Net of Refund)

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income Received

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Gash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31

$ 11,201,071
(2,402,158)
('t,384,702)

$ 7,414,211

$ (17,e38,386)
25,000,000

328,364
(1,137,857)
(3,207,950)
(2,538,576)
(4,661,340)

$ (4,155,745)

$ 48,923

$ 6,995,805
(2,03e,e46)
(2,830,662)

$ 2,125,197

$ (7,734,003)
10,000,000
27,029,287

(391,782)
(1,1e1 ,951)
(2,179,807)

(28,785,895)

$ (3,254,151)

$ 32,675
$ 48,923 $ 32,675

$ 3,307,389 $ (1,096,279)
1,381,231 2,477,s10

$ 4,688,620 $ 1,381,231

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Change in Current Assets and Liabilities:

(lncrease) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Sewage Service Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated Compensated Absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
16,259 17,225

$ 7,414,211 $ 2,125,197

$ 5,269,650 $ 2,747.010

1,163,702

323,702
632,377

2,421
6,100

1,085,625

(1,610,979)
(107,024)

(13,61 0)
6,950

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTIW

DESCRIPTION

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport (the Authority) is a public corporation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, organized and existing under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 (as
amended). The Council of the City of McKeesport (the City) created the Authority on November 29, 1949
under an order from the Sanitary Water Board of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority was
created for a period of 50 years to end December 5, 1999, and was subsequently extended through
December 5,2026 pursuant to a Cooperation Agreement between the Authority and the City. The Authority
was created for the purpose of acquiring, holding, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating,
owning and leasing (either in capacity as lessor or lessee) certain projects. These projects include sewers,
sewer systems or parts thereof, sewage treatment works, also including the acquisition of land for sewage
treatment works and pumping stations, and all other necessary facilities and apparatus that the Board of
Directors may authorize as necessary for the project. The Authority provides waste collection and treatment
services, under agreement, for the following municipalities:

City of McKeesport
Port Vue Borough
East McKeesport Borough
Glassport Borough
Versailles Borough

White Oak Borough
Liberty Borough
Elizabeth Township
Lincoln Borough
North Versailles Borough

Per the terms of these agreements, the Authority is the sole and exclusive provider of sewage treatment and
disposal service to the above municipalities, and these municipalities have agreed to construct and maintain
such sewers, interceptors and pumping stations as is necessary to bring the sewage and industrial waste to
a point where it flows into the interceptors of the Authority.

The five-members of the Authority Board of Directors are appointed by the members of Council of the City of
McKeesport. The Authority has no stockholders nor equity holders, and revenue or other cash received
must be disbursed in accordance with provisions of the Trust Indentures dated October 1,2006, the First
Suppfemental Trust Indenture dated as of October 2, 2008, and the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated as of December 1, 2009, and the Third Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of December 28, 2010
by and between the Authority and the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company as trustee, securing the
Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008, 2009, and 2010 respectively.

REPORTING ENTITY

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not
legally separate from the Authority.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Authority in that the
Authority approves their budget, approves and/or guarantees the issuance of their debt, or otherwise can
impose its will in a significant manner.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

The management of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport applies the criteria set forth in the
'Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards' for defining the scope of its
reporting entity. Based on the application of these criteria, the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
has no component units, but is considered a component unit of the City of McKeesport. These financial
statements include only the activity of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport have been prepared in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided
they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The most significant of the Authority's
accounting policies are as follows:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund since its operations are financed and operated in a
manner similar to the private sector. The Authority utilizes the accrual method of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when earned rather than when cash is received, and expenses are
recognized when an obligation is incurred rather than when cash is actually paid.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
deposit accounts, and any other short-term highly liquid assets with original maturity terms of less than three
months.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are made pursuant to Section 7.1 of the MunicipalAuthorities Act and can include the following:

l. U.S. Treasury Bills
ll. Obligations of the U.S. Government and Federal Agencies
lll. Certificates of Deposit, Checking and Savings Accounts insured by

the FDIC or NationalCredit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF)
lV. General obligation bonds of the federal government, Commonwealth

of Pennsylvania or any state agency
V. Shares of Mutual Funds whose investments are restricted to the

aforementioned investments



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OE ]HE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In addition, the Board of Directors can invest the Authority's sinking funds as authorized for local
governments in the Local government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. 8224. Investment of the Authority's
restricted assets are made pursuant to and restricted by the aforementioned Trust Indentures securing the
Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008, 2009, and 2009. Investments for 2009 and 2010 (See
Restricted Assets) include Dreyfus Government cash management agency fund shares, certificates of
deposit, corporate notes, fixed income investments with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation,
Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association, and U.S. Treasury Bills. Investments are
stated at fair value. The Authority is in compliance with these restrictions as of December 31, 2010 and
2009.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

f n accordance with the provisions of the Trust Indentures, dated October 1, 2006, October 2. 2008.
December 1, 2009, and December 28, 2010 by and between the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company
and the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport, which secure the Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of
2006, 2008, 2009, and 2010, the Authority is obligated to restrict certain funds to pay for construction related
expenditures and to meet debt service requirements. The total of these funds is reflected in Exhibit A as
'restricted assets'and detailed in Note 3.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Receivables are mainly comprised of billed and
unbilled sewage services rendered to the participating municipalities as described in Note 1. The Authority
does not maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts, as management estimates that uncollectible amounts
at year-end, if any, would not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

INVENTORY

The Authority does not maintain a physical inventory of materials, chemicals, and other supplies.
Management estimates that inventory values during the year are minimal for cost control purposes.
Accordingly, management is of the opinion that any value that existed at Decembe r 31 , 2010 and 2009 would
not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The Authority records property, plant and equipment purchases at cost. Property, plant and equipment
include major betterments that extend the economic useful life of the assets affected. The Authority
maintains a capitalization threshold of $500. Routine repair and maintenance costs are charged to
operations as incurred. Depreciation expense is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of the asset as follows:

lnfrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Software

50 Years
40 Years

7-20 Years
7-10 Years

3 Years



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT (Gontinued)

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $1,163,702 and 1,085,625
respectively. Construction in progress represents funds paid toward the following Authority projects:

1431t2010 12t31t2009

Act 537 System lmprovements Project
MarshallDrive project
Administration and Lab Buildings

$ 2,602,213

204,999
$ 2,807,2'12

$ 2,427,229
300,572

$ 2,727,801

NET ASSETS

GASB Statement No. 34 requires equity in the statement of net assets to be reported as 'Net Assets'.
Net assets are classified into four categories according to external donor or legal restrictions or availability
of assets to satisfy Authority obligations. Net assets are classified as follows:

. Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This component of net assets consists of capital
assets net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that is
attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of the capital assets.

. Restricted-Nonexpendable - Net assets subject to externally imposed restrictions which are
required to be maintained in perpetuity.

o Restricted-Expendable - Net assets whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that
can be fulfilled by the actions of the Authority or by the passage of time.

. Unrestricted - Consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of 'restricted' or'invested in
capital assets, net of related debt'.

The Authority applies restricted resources first, when available, before using unrestricted resources, to
pay expenditures that can be paid from either source

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the Authority's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 3. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CASH DEPOSITS:

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Authority had the following carrying value on its'cash and cash
equivalent accounts held with PNC Bank:

-- December 31,2010 --Bank Carrying
Balance Value

-- December 31, 2009 --
Bank

Balance
Carrying
Value

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit
(Shown as part of

Restricted Assets) 2,792,814 2,792,814

Fair Value

914,020
2,997,932

$ 4,678,260 $ 4,688,620 $ 1,416,562 $ 1,381,231

$ 7,471,074 $ 7,481,434 $ 1,416,562 $ 1,381,231

The difference between the bank balance and the carrying value represents reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. Effective December 3'1,2010, all funds in a'noninterest-
bearing transaction account' are insured in full by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
through December 31, 2012. This temporary unlimited coverage is in addition to, and separate from, the
coverage of at least $250,000 available to depositors under the FDIC's general deposit insurance rules.

CustodialCredit Risk:

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2010 and
2009, $486,356 and $1,166,562 respectively of the Authority's bank balance totals are exposed to custodial
credit risk as these amounts represent uninsured deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority's name. In accordance with
Act Number 72-1971 Session of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the aforementioned deposits, in
excess of $250,000, are collateralized by securities pledged to a pooled public funds account with the
Federal Reserve System.

INVESTMENTS:

The fair value and maturity term of the Authority's investments as of December 3'1, 2010 and 2009 is as
follows:

--- December 31,2010
No Stated
Maturity 0-l Years

Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds
Corporate Notes
U.S. Agency Fixed Income

$ 24,708,962 $ 24,708,962 $
- 914,020
- 2,997,932

$ 28,620,914 $ 24,708,962 $ 3,911,952



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENTS: (Continued)

Fair Value

December 31, 2009
No Stated
Maturity

$ 8,412,899 $
249,395

4,813,048

0-1 Yearc
Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds
U.S Treasury Bills
U.S. Agency Fixed Income

$ 8,412,899
249.395

4,813,048
$ 13,475,342 $ 8,412,899 $ 5,062,443

Investments classified as U.S. Agencies are securities of agencies of the U.S. Government that have an
implied but not explicit guarantee. Management does not anticipate any problems with these securities.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Authority has no formal investment policy that limits its investment choices based on credit ratings by
nationally recognized rating organizations. As of December 31, 2010, investments in U S. Agencies and
Corporate Notes have received a'fuAA'rating from Standards & Poors.

Custodial Credit Risk:

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's investments in Dreyfus Cash Management Agency Funds
are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The Authority does not have a formal investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk:

The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority's
certificate of deposit, corporate note, and U.S, Agency Fixed Income security investments have maturity
terms of less than 1 year.

Goncentration of Credit Risk:

The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

'10



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2010 AND 2OO9

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENTS: (Continued)

The Authority's restricted assets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are comprised of the following:

Construction Funds
Clearing Fund
Debt Service Funds

12i31t2010
$ 27,937,188

41,0U

12t31t2009
$ 11,690,728

Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

$ 56,332
32,820,000

5,637,354
7,780,484

73,609

$ 33,036
5,671,267
5,537,977
7,788,730

73,172
382,257

$ 19,486,439
(10,197,571)

$ 9,288,868
1,270,001

$ 10,558,869

(1,875)

(1,875)
1,063

$

$

Balance
12t31t10

$ 56,332
36,959,918

5,637,354
7,838,347

86,566
845,670

$ 51,424,187
(12,449,395)

$ 38,974,792
2,807,212

$ 41,782,004

Balance
12t31t09

$ 56,332
32,820,000

5,628,676
7.749.428

85,6'19

474,479
$ 46,814,534

(1 1,283,196)

$ 35,531,338
2,727,801

$ 38,259,139

Balance
1t1t10

4,139,918

59,738
12,957

474,479 371,191
$ 46,842,258 $ 4,583,804

(11,286,756) (1,163,702)
$ 35,555,502 $ 3,420,102 $ (812)

2,727,801 379,983 (300,572)
$ 38,283,303 $ 3,800,085 $ (301,384)

Balance
1t1t09 Additions Deletions

$ 23,296 $
27,148,733

90,699
(3e,302)
12,447
92,222

$ 27,328,095
(1,085,625)

$ 26,242,470
1,457,800

$ 27,700,270 $

Fixed asset balances and related accumulated depreciation have been re-stated in 2010 and 2009 to
reflect changes in the fixed asset appraisal report (Note 8).

3,435,456 1,7U,614
$ 31,413,728 $ 13,475,342

Additions

NOTE 4. PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The following comprises the changes to the Authority's property, plant, and equipment account during 2010
and 2009:
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTEs-LONG.TERMDEBT

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2006

In October of 2006, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006 under the terms of a
Trust Indenture dated October 1,2006, by and between the Authority and M&T Investment Group
(formerly through First Commonwealth Bank), as Trustee, in the amount of $6,140,000. The purpose of
the bond issue was for 1)the design and construction of capital projects acquisition facilities required for
the proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 2)
refund an existing bank loan, and 3) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging
between 3.6 and 4.5%. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2036.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2OO8

In October of 2008, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008 under the terms of a
First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated October 2,2008, by and between the Authority and the Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $10,000,000. The purpose of the bond
issue was for'1) the design and construction of capital projects, 2) acquisition facilities required for the
proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3)
funding of a debt service reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates
ranging between 2.5 and 5.45Yo. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the
officialstatement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15, 2039.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2OO9

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2009 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2009, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $10,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1)the design and construction of capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper
operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3) funding a
debt service reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging
between 3.0 and 5.75o/o. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2039.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2O1O

f n December of 2010, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2010 under the
terms of a Trust lndenture dated December 28,2010, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $25,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1)the design and construction of capital projects, 2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3)
pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest
payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 2.0 and 5.16%. The bonds
provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are
schedufed to mature December 15.2040.

12



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The fof lowing summarizes the debt service obligations of the Authority as of December 31,2010:

Year
2011
2012
20't3
2014
2015

2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

2041

2006 2008
Principal . Principal

$ 130,000 $ 170,000
135,000 175,000
140,000 180,000
145,000 190,000
150,000 195,000
835,000 1,095,000

1,030,000 1,385,000
1,275,000 1,785,000
1 ,580,000 2,310,000
360,000 2,345,000

165,000 435,000
170,000 44s,000
175,000 460,000

1,005,000 2,545,000
1,270,000 3,140,000
1,635,000 4,035,000
2,165,000 5,270,000
3,415,000 7,005,000

- 1,660,000

Total
$ 2,770,752

2,792,682
3,551,926
3,563,037
3,395,796

17,024,526
17,096,508
17,191,969
17,284,304
15,665,214
1,751,632

Interest
$ 2,470,752

2,477,682
2,631,926
2,613,037
2,415,796

11,U4,526
10,271,508
8,461,969
5,959,304
2,540,214

91,632
$ 5,78o,OOO $ e,83o,ooo $ 1o,O0o,OOO $ 25,Ooo,ooo T5fitr34-6- -T'T020-8fu4-6-

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

In connection with the Authority's currently outstanding bond issues, the Authority paid approximately
$1,375,126 in bond issuance costs. These costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life
of the bond issues. The unamortized amount of bond issuance costs at December 31, 2010 and 2009
totaling $1,2U,433 and $624,438 respectively, is reflected in Exhibit A as part of other assets. Amortization
expense was $30,526 and $27,527 for 2010 and 2009 respectively. In addition, the original issue discount
and undenruriters discount in connection with these bond issues was $1,052,895. This amount is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the bond issues and is charged as a component of interest
expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The unamortized amount of
bond discount at December 31, 2010 and 2009 totaling $965,486 and $523,632 respectively, is reflected in
Exhibit A as a reduction in long-term liabilities. The amount of discount charged to interest expense was
$37,631 and $29,747 for 2010 and 2009 respectively.

CAPITAL LEASE - CITY OF MCKEESPORT

In 1997, the Authority entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport to finance $3.5
million in capital improvements. Under this Cooperation Agreement, the Authority leases the improvements
from the City, and the lease payments made by the Authority to the City are used to pay the debt service on
bonds issued by the City to finance the project. The Cooperation Agreement calls for the Authority to make
quarterly payments of $86,000 to the City during the term of the City's bond issue. The lease is being
amortized over a 25-year period commencing with calendar year 1998.

13



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

CAPITAL LEASE - CITY OF MCKEESPORT SANITARY COLLECTION SYSTEM

Effective January 1, 2009, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the City of
McKeesport for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system for $30,000,000. The terms of the
agreement call for the monthly payment of $163,614.69 (principal and interest) at the annual rate of 4o/olor a
period of 240 months. The Authority made an advance payment against this debt obligation of $1,750,000 in
August of 2010. The lease is scheduled to expire in March of 2027.

CAPITAL LEASE - BANK CAPITAL SERVICES

In March of 2009, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with Bank Capital Services for the
purchase of (2) F-150 2009 Ford Truck vehicles for $45,231. The terms of the lease call for 3 annual
payments of $15,952.92 at an annual interest rate of 5.9% with a $1 buy-out option at the completion of
the lease term. The lease is scheduled to expire in May of 2011.

CAPITAL LEASE - PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

In July of 2010, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for the
purchase of a Vactor 2100 on a 2009 International Cab and Chassis for $328,368. The terms of the
lease call for 5 annual payments of $71,578.41 at an annual interest rate of 4.5% with a $1 buy-out option
at the completion of the lease term. The lease is scheduled to expire in August of 2014.

A schedule of the future minimum lease rental payments as of December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

2016-2020
202't-2025
2026-2027

1997 2009
City Lease City Lease Bank Capital PNC
Principal Principal Principal Principal

$ 126,810 $ 1,047,054 $ 15,062 $ 60,023
138,180 1,089,714 - 62,724
150,571 1,134,110 - 65,547
164,071 1,180,315 - 68,495
't78,784 1,228,404

1,165,132 6,934,769
625,347 8,467,329

- 2,302,780

$ 1,145,960
1,088,336
1,028,727

966,072
900,188

3,436,979
1,412,204

59,764

Total
$ 2,394,909

2,378,954
2,378,955
2,378,953
2,307,376

1 1,536,880
10,504,880
2,362,&4

Interest

$ 2,548,895 $23,384,475 $ 1s,062 $ 256,789 $10,038,230 $36,243,451

The following represents the changes in the Authority's long-term debt obligations during 2010 and 2009:

Bafance 111l0g
$ 25,900,000

Additions
$ 2s,000,000

Balance Due Within
1A31lOg One Year

$ 50,610,000 $ 300,000
26,205,222 1,248,949

Deletions
Bonds
Capital Leases

(290,000)
28,794,804 328,368 (2,917,9s0)

$ 25,328,368 $ (3,207,950)54 694.804
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Balance
1A31tog

Due Within
One YearBafance 1l1l0g Additions Deletions

Bonds
Capital Leases

$ 25,900,000 $ 290,000

NOTE 6 - LEASE RENTAL EXPENSE

On October 17, 2008, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the City of McKeesport,
effective January 1,2009, for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system (Note 5). In connection
with that agreement, the Authority agreed to also pay, on a monthly basis, the outstanding balance due on
two (2) loans the City has with the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) related to
improvements made to the collection system. The monthly payments total $25,307. During the calendar
year 2010, the Authority reimbursed the City $303,689 in total for these PENNVEST loans. The remaining
amounts due on these loans, per amortization schedules received from the City, total approximately
V,451,024 at December 31,2010. The following represents the minimum lease rental payments remaining
on this obligation as of December 31, 2010

Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2028

AMOUNT
$ 303,689

303,689
303,689
303,689
303,689

1,518,445
1,518,445
1,012,981

$ 5,568,316

NOTE 7 - ACCUMULATED COMPENSATED ABENCES

In accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between the Authority and the Utility
Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, all regular full-time employees are entitled to receive payment for the
value of all unused vacation days upon separation of service from the Authority at the employee's regular
daily rate. This practice also applies to administrative personnel not covered under the terms of the
bargaining agreement. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the value of accumulated compensated
absences totaled $103,392 and $87,133 respectively.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 8 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The prior period adjustment of $24,164 and <$247,975> to the January 1,2010 and January 1, 2009 net
assets of the Authority respectively represents adjustments to the calculation of the Authority's prior year
fixed asset and accumulated depreciation totals based on updated appraisal information.

NOTE 9 - TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT

The Authority entered into an agreement with the Cily of McKeesport dated December 29, 1949, as
amended June 2, 1992, to provide sewage treatment services to the City and to pay the City $30,000
annually for the maintenance cost of the sewers located within the City. In addition, during 2008, the
Authority was responsible for paying the City a quarterly administrative fee, based on water usage, for the
City to bill and collect certain fees from its customers within the City. Effective February 1, 2009, the
Authority began billing and collecting these fees directly to the customers within the City of McKeesport. In
addition, the Authority paid the City of McKeesport $600,000 for the estimated value of collectible delinquent
sewage fees outstanding. This amount, less delinquent collections in 2010 and 2009, is reflected in the
statement of net assets as 'Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport' totaling $241,161
and $591,463 respectively. Approximately 63% and 58% of the Authority's sewage treatment services
revenue for 2010 and 2009 respectively was generated from the City of McKeesport.

NOTE 10. AUTHORITY PENSION PLAN

The Authority established a single-employer defined benefit pension plan on March '1, 1964, as amended, to
provide retirement benefits to eligible employees of the Authority.

Pfan membership as of January 1,2011 was comprised of:

Active employees
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits

but not yet receiving them
Total

A summary of the plan's provisions is as follows:

37
16

1

il

PARTICIPANTS -

ELIGIBILITY -

All employees of the Authority who customarily work at least 20
hours per week and at least 5 months per year.

All participants are eligible for retirement benefits provided that
they have attained the age of 62 and have completed 10 years
of continuous service. Participants are eligible for early
retirement at age 55 with 20 years of continuous service.

Vesting occurs on a sliding scale with full vesting occurring after
20 years of service.

VESTING -
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 10 - AUTHORIW PENSION PLAN (Continued)

BENEFITS - 50% of Average Compensation multiplied by participants short
service percentage (effective 1 I 1 l20}g).

DEATH BENEFIT - The plan provides for beneficiary benefits named by the
participant under options as detailed in the retirement plan.

FUNDING - Member contributions equal 2.5% (3% for 2011\ of
compensation. This rate increases to 2.75o/o if the Authority's
Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO) exceeds $65,000 and 3%
if the MMO exceeds $90,000. Members contributed $44,536
and $42,108 to the plan during 20'10 and 2009 respectively.
Pension expense of the Authority totaled $40,052 for 2010 and
$17.202 for 2009.

The investment income of the plan was used to fund administrative costs. There are no long-term contracts
for contributions as of December 31 , 2010 and 2009. In addition, there are no assets legally reserved for
purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits. The plan does not issue a stand-alone report.

The significant assumptions employed in the most recent actuarial valuation (dated 11112011) to determine
funding included the use of an 8o/o interest rate and a salary projection of 4.5o/o. The pension plan uses the
Entry Age NormalActuarialCost Method. Net assets available for benefits as of December 31, 2010 were
$3,822,068.

A schedule of the Authority's annual required contributions (ARC) to the plan is as follows:

Year ARC % Contributed
40,052 100%o2010 $

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

17,202 100o/o

7,166 100o/o

83,326 1000/o

98,910 100%
92,823 100o/o

79,697 1000/o

49,541 100%
48.792 100%
31,288 100o/o

Historical trend information, designed to provide information about the plan's progress made accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, is as follows:
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 10 - AUTHORITY PENIQELIIN (Gontinued)

ACTUARIAL
VALUATION

DATE
'U1t01

(A)

ACTUARIAL
VALUE OF
ASSETS

(B)

ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED
LIABILITY

(B.A)
(UAAL)

UNFUNDED
ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED
LIABILITY

$ (151,165)
(e6,673)

(214,732)
(843,231)
536,489

1,246,874

(A/B)

FUNDED COVERED
RATIO PAYROLL
104% $ 872,199
103Yo 796,600
105o/o 1,065,402
120o/o 1,063,399
89o/o 1,312,812
78o/o 1,804,894

(c) (B-Ayc

UAAL AS A
%oF

COVERED
PAYROLL

1t1t03
1t1t05
1t1t07
1rU09
1t1t11

Additional trend
actuary.

$ 3,725,1',t3
3,877,556
4,264,511
5,105,407
4,528,958
4,331,884

$ 3,573,948
3,780,883
4,049,779
4,262,176
5,065,447
5,578,758

-17o/o

-12%
-20o/o

-79%
41Yo

690/o

Authority'sinformation regarding net pension obligations (NPO) is available from the

NOTE 11 - POST EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFIT OTHER THAN PENSION

In accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between the Authority and the Utility
Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, the Authority will purchase hospitalization coverage and pay the
premium cost at any one time for a maximum of two retired union employees between the ages of 62 and
65, subject to the same deductibles that apply for regular employees. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
two union retirees were receiving post-retirement health care benefits from the Authority, The Authority
finances these benefils on a pay-as-you-go basis. Amounts paid for these benefits for the years ended
December 31,2010 and 2009 were deemed immaterial.

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims for these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years. The risk of loss retained by the
Authority is limiled to deductibles under each of the policies which can range between $2,500 and $10,000
per item.

For its workers compensation insurance coverage, the Authority participates in the Municipal Risk
Management Worker's Compensation Pooled Trust (Trust), which is a public entlty risk pool comprised of
approximately 200 governmental organizations. Trust underwriting and rate-sefting policies are established
after consultation with an independent actuary and certain approvals from the Pennsylvania Department of
Labor and lndustry. All Trust participants may be subject to a supplemental assessmenUdividend based on
overall experience of the participants. Each participant of the Trust agrees to jointly and severally assume
and discharge the liabilities arising under the Workers Compensation Act and Occupational Disease Act of
each and every participant of the Trust.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE l2 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Trust purchases excess insurance coverage within statutory limits. The retention for this coverage is

$750,000 per occurence. Political subdivisions joining the Trust must remain members for a minimum of
four years. Members may withdraw from the Trust after that time by giving ninety days notice, subject to
approval by the Trust actuary under specified circumstances related to the continued fiscal stability of the
pool. At the time of withdraw, the participant is responsible for their share of assessments but has no claim
on any assets of the Trust.

NOTE 13 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

LEGAL MATTERS

The Authority, on occasion, can be party to various legal actions arising from normal business operations.
As of December 31, 2010, the Authority is unaware of any pending litigation.

PENNSYLVAN|A SEWAGE FACtLtTtES ACT (ACT 537)

Act 537 requires municipalities in Pennsylvania to develop and implement official sewage plans that address
existing sewage disposal needs, account for future land development and provide for future sewage
disposal needs. During 2009 and 2010, the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to develop its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined Sewer Overflow
(CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July of 2007 and the Authority has begun
the project design work. These Plans will require significant new treatment processes, pumping stations
and interceptor lines with an associated capital cost of approximately $SO million. To finance the project,
the Authority has chosen to issue a series of bonds (see Note 5) at a rate of one per year, thereby
enabling the Authority to step the necessary sewage rate increases over the next four to five years as
opposed to a significant rate increase in any one year.

u.s. ARMY CORPS OF ENGTNEERS (COE)

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level in the
Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall
structures. As a result, the federal government is funding the relocation of most of the CSO structures.
Construction for Phase 1 of the p@ect was completed in 2007. Phase ll began in the second half of
2009. When all of the construction is completed, the Authority will have new outfall structures that will
greatly reduce the amount of river water that flows back through the pipes and into the sewer lines. This
in return will reduce the costs associated with treating unnecessary water.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2O1O AND 2OO9

NOTE 14 - PENDING AND EXISTING GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

ln June ot 2004, the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No, 45,
'Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions'.
This statement provides the accounting and reporting requirements for benefit plans, as well as, requires
that public sector employers accrue the cost of any postretirement healthcare or similar benefits (OPEB)
they may offer to employees. The Authority currently recognizes the costs of post-employment benefits on
a pay-as-yougo basis (Note 11). GASB Statement No. 45 stipulates that governments account for and
report the annual cost of OPEB, and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB, in the
same manner as they currently do for pensions. This change to the accrued retiree healthcare provision, if
any, may require the performance of an actuarial valuation. Management is of the opinion, based on the
language in the collective bargaining agreement, and the limitation in participants, that the effect of this
valuation on the Authority's financial posilion would be immaterial. Accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements contain no provision for this net pension obligation.

In addition, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, 'Accounting and Financial Reporting for lmpairment of
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries' which is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2005. In connection with the approved Act 537 plan (Note 13), the Authority is evaluating whether
significant impairments to its capital assets will occur and the potential impairment loss that would be
required to be recognized in the financial statements. The Authority has not as yet determined the amount
of any such loss, and accordingly no provision for an impairment loss is provided for in the accompanying
financial statements.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective January 1,2011, the Authority and the City of Dravosburg entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement for the sale, transfer and conveyance of the Dravosburg sanitary sewer system and
wastewater treatment plant, including a 2000 Ford 350 1 ton dump truck.

Management has determined that there are no additional events subsequent to December 31,2010
through the date of the 'lndependent Audit Report', which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued, that require additional disclosure.
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SCHEDULE 1

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF DETAIL OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2010
PERSONNEL COSTS

Plant Salaries
Adm inistrative Salaries
PayrollTaxes
Pension
Employee Benefits

TOTAL PERSONNEL

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Engineering (Net of COE Reimbursements)
Audit
Legal
Accounting
Pension Services
Oxford Solutions/Delta Development
PayrollServices

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

SEWAGE PLANT COSTS
Utilities
Repair and Maintenance
Lease Rental Expense
Chemicals
Lab Supplies and Analysis
Safety Program
Vehicle Expense
Sludge Hauling
Sewer Rental
Computers
Uniforms
CSO Study
Miscellaneous

TOTAL SEWAGE PLANT COSTS

OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Insurance
Office Supplies
Telephone
Billing and Collecting
Traveland Education
Advertising
Bond and Asset Management Fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

DEPRECIATION
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$ 1 ,614,571
204,830
142,918
40,052

y2,208

$ 1,406,773
191,356
121,726

17,202
306,504

$ 2,404,579 2,043,561

88,983
6,000

28,560
4,800

24,023
51,594

5,607

56,888
14,610
29,842
4,800

418,111
340J29
303,689

69,929
60,808

4,646
48,535

248,587
25,856
45,542
5,747

37,000
19,697

441,201 $
189,717
303,689

52,291
59,674
15,895
82,162

292,305
25,856
21,929

7,337
44,985
9,196

$ 234,804

$ r,163,702 $ 1,085,625
$ 5,601,619 $ 5,104,091

$ 1,U6,237 $ 1,628,276

97,216
13,745
29,217
37,165
28,243

1,973
31,447
38,528

86,765
18,214
26,516
37,251
21,453

833
20,636
23,136
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OperatinP Data 2011
2011 LARGESTCUSTOMERS

2011 Annual % otTotal2011

UPMC Health System #11

Dravosburg Housing Auth (250 Scott Dr)

McKeesport Housing Auth (23-41 CraMord Village)

McKeesport Housing Auth (1-l4Harrison Village)
Midtown Plaza Apts./71 05
McKeesport Housing Auth (64 Ciawford Village)
Guy Deluca 1 (Kane Hospital)

McKeesport Housing Auth (6th St & Huey St)

Camp HillCorp

26,251
1 1,150

8,331

7,018
6,605
4,057
3,730

3,087

3,076

$276,249.10
$89,222.00
$87,439.20

$75,575.15
$70,322.80
$42,954.55
$39,300.70

$33,383.10

$32,1 73.80

5.00h

1.6%

1,6%

1.4%
1.3%
0.8%
0.7%

0.6%

0.6%

76,142 $776,866.35 14.0o/o

SEWER SYSTEM RATES
Sewage Seruice Rates Per Quarter
Size Charge/1,000 Consumed Gallons allowed for min.
2007 1,000 $3.16
2008 1,000 $3.70
2009 1,000 $4.44
2010 1,000 $5.30
2011 1,000 $6.10
2012 1.000 $6.10

Trends in Customer Breakdown - Sewer System
Year
Historical Number of Gustomers
2001 19,987*
200219.987',
2003 19,987.
200419,142*
2005 19,070-
2006 19,180*
2007 19,225"
200819,225*
200919,225*
2010 18,985-
2011 18,985-
* Number provided by the communities in their annual waste load management report
-Number provided by Service Community billing departments
Source: Authority Officials
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Mark C. Turnley
Ce rtifi ed P u b I i c Acco u ntant 2919 Duss Avenue

Ambridge, Pennsylvania 1 5003
(724) 266_2669

FAX (724) 266_4124

To the Board of Directors
The MunicipalAuthority of the City of McKeespo

I ndependent Auditor's Reoort

I have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Municipal Authority of the Cig of
McKeesport, a component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. My
responsibili$ is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally arcepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis
for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
positionof theMunicipalAuthorityof theCityof McKeesportasof December31,2011 and20lO,andthe
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages iii-xiv be presented to supplement the basic financial statemenis. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statement, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have apptieO
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries oi
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

American lnstitute of Ceftified Public Accountants
Pennsylvania lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants



My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Municipal Authority of the Ci$ of McKeesport. The supplemental schedule listed in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

%/z-ry1t
Mark C. Turnley, CPA

June 30, 2012
Ambridge, Pennsylvania



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Authority's annual financial report represents our discussion and
analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the years ended December 31,
201I and 2010. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Authority's basic financial statements. We encourage readers to consider the information
presentei here in conjunction with the information"provided in the Authority's financial
statements.

OPERATING AGREEMENTS

The Authority owns and operates three wastewater treatment facilities pursuant to
Agreements with each of the twelve communities it serves. The Authority has

Agreements to provide wastewater treatment services with the City of McKeesport, the
City of Duquesne, the Borough of Liberty, the Borough of Port Vue, the Borough of East
McKeesport, the Township of Elizabeth, the Borough of Glassport, the Borough of White
Oak, the Borough of Versailles, the Borough of Lincoln, the Borough of Dravosburg, and

the Township of North Versailles. The Authority's Board of Directors establishes rates
which are designed to recover the cost of providing services. The rates are based upon
the gallons of water used by the communities. The Authority bills the municipalities on a
quarterly basis for services provided to the communities' residents at the established rate.
The municipalities are responsible for setting a rate for customers within their
municipalities and for billing and collecting from those customers. The Authority began
conducting billing services for Versailles Borough in March of 2009 in addition to the
systems that it owns; McKeesport, Duquesne & Dravosburg.

The City of McKeesport sold its Collection System to the Authority effective January I,
2009 under a lease purchase agreement. Since that date Authority personnel have
performed routine maintenance and repairs to the system.

On November 8, 2010 the City of Duquesne sold its wastewater treatment plant and

collection system to the Authority for $3.8 million. Under the terms of the agreement the
City of Duquesne used the vastportion of the funds to pay off the balance of the sewage
plant's $3.2 million bond. The rate payers from the City of Duquesne will continue to pay
all expenses and debt service incurred by the system. The Authority will continue to use
the revenue generated by the Duquesne System to pay for its expenses, thus keeping the
finances separate from the rest of the MACM system. As part of the purchase agreement
rates will be frozen through 2012. A combined sewer overflow (CSO) long term control
plan will be developed over the next three or four years. Once the plan has been approved
by the PA DEP, a new permit will be issued to the facility.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In January of 2011 the Authority purchased the Dravosburg Wastewater Treatment
Facility along with it corresponding collection system from the Borough of Dravosburg
for $330,000. As with the Duquesne system, the ratepayers of Dravosburg will continue
to pay all expenses and debt service incurred by the system. The CSO Long Term Control
Plan will be joined with the Duquesne Plan to develop a joint plan for both systems.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include only those of the Authority which is a
component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania. The financial statements are
presented using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. They are designed to provide a broad overview of the Authority's finances,
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the Authority's activities are
reported in the statements except for activities associated with the pension fund because
those funds are not available to support the Authority's own programs.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Authority's assets and
liabilities, with the difference of the two reported as net assets. Net assets are reported as

one of three categories: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; or
unrestricted.

The Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Net Assets presents information
showing how the Authority's net assets changed during the year. All of the changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues are recognized when eamed
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows
until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected rates and earned but unused vacation leave).

These two financial statements report the Authority's net assets and the changes in the net
assets. Net assets, which represent the difference between assets and liabilities, are one
measure of the Authority's financial health, or financialposition. Overtime, increases or
decreases in the Authority's net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information proved in these financial statements. The financial
statements and accompanying notes can be found in the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2011, the Authority maintained the 2010 rate of $6.10/1000 gallons consumed. In
order to balance the budget without raising rates the Authority subsidized the revenue by
transferring 5127,217 from savings. The decision to transfer funds from savings was
made years ago as part of the Authority's multi-year budget plan.

Bids forthe Act 537 Plan Expansion Projectwere opened on March 7,2011 and fifteen
(15) contracts were awarded on May 26,2011. Construction is expected to be completed
by late summer of 201 3.

The Authority was awarded PennVest funding on April 20,201l. The funding consisted
of $18,412,500 in the form of a grant and an equal amount in the form of a one (1.0)
percent thirty (30) year loan. These funds are to apply only to the two contracts pertaining
to the construction relating to the upgrade of the wastewater treatment facility itself. lt
cannot be used for the upgrades to the pump stations or lines. The cost of these other
contracts not covered by Pennvest funds will be funded by the bond revenues.

The Tapping Fee (Capacity fee) remained unchanged in 201| at a rate of $1,750 per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit ("EDU"). An EDU, equivalent dwelling unit, is the average
amount of wastewater that each household in the service area discharges each day. The
AuthoritycalculatesanEDUtobe236 gallonsperday.During20lltherewereone(1)
new residential tap and three (3) new commercial taps purchased within the Authority's
service area. The balance of cash accumulated from tapping fees (The Tapping Fee
Account), reserved by the Board for capital projects, on December 3l,20ll was
$755,807.69.

On December 31, 2011, total assets were $94,159,578 and total liabilities were
$88,319,685 yielding a net asset of $5,839,893. This resulted in an increase in the total
net assets of $1.223.123 over last year's totals.



THE MT]NICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

For the year 2011, 4.35 billion gallons of wastewater were treated at the wastewater
facility. Approximatelyl.l I billion gallons of water were consumed in 201 I by the
Authority's customers and paid for by their user fees. By comparison, 25.5yo of the
wastewater treated was billable significantly down from 31.8% in 2010.The remaining
3.24 billion gallons of wastewater, up 770 million gallons from 2010, entered the sewer
system from rainwater, groundwater, streams and rivers, water line breaks, firefighting
efforts, etc. The 201I annual rainfall greatly increased from the previous year; 32.90
inches in 2010 to 47 .16 inches in 201 I .

On April 20,2011 Govemor Corbett asked the natural gas companies to quit bringing
frac water to wastewater treatment facilities for disposal. As a result the Authority did not
treat any of this water after that date. Coal bed methane wastewater continued to be
treated until the middle of July when the DEP decided that that waste also needed to be
permitted to be accepted for treatment. During the year the facility treated 2,961,560
gallons of frac wastewater and 3,203,020 gallons of coal bed methane wastewater and
received a combined payment of $799,520.80. Due to the changes that the gas companies
have made with the way that they recycle and dispose of this wastewater, along with the
decision of the US EPA and PA DEP that this waste can no longer be treated by
wastewater treatment facilities, this revenue stream will no longer be available.

Revenues generated by Sewage Treatment per 1,000 gallons consumed - $9.61
Operating expenses per I ,000 gallons consumed - $6.1 1

Total Operating Revenues were $11,569,838, an increase of $698,569, or 6.4oh over
2010, primarily caused by the new revenue generated by the Duquesne and Dravosburg
systems that was not there in 2010.

Operating Expenses were $6,81 0,216, an increase of $1,208,597, or 21.6%0 over 2010.
The largest increases came from depreciation, additional personnel and the expenses of
maintaining the Duquesne & Dravosburg systems.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management' s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AIIALYSIS

The following condensed financial statements and other selected information serve as

financial data and indicators to help the Authority manage, monitor, and plan.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets-nel of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

Cunent and other liabilities

Net Assets

Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Operating income

Interest income

Interest expense
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

Change in Net Assets

4,759,622 5.269.6s0 -9.7%

11,569,838 10,871,269
6,810.216 5,601,619

37,254 49,923
(3,501,941) (2,624,504)

(63,679) (30,526)

Dec.31,2011

38,037,056
56,122,522

94,159,578

88,319,685

5,839,893

Dec.31,2010

39,806,046
41,782,004

81,588,050

76,971,820

4.616,770

% Ghange

-4.4%
343%

15.4%

14.7%

26.5%

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Dec.31,2011 Dec.31,2010 ohChange

6.4%
21.6%

-23.9%
33.4%
108.6%

1,231,256 2.663.543 -53.8%

Overall, the Authority's financial condition remained strong in20ll. Most of the ten
service communities are up to date with their payments with the exception of East
McKeesport which continues to lag one quafter behind due to the length of time it takes
to get their consumption numbers from the water authority. The addition of the
McKeesport Collection System in 2009 and the Duquesne Wastewater Treatment Plant
and System in 2010 has greatly expanded the scope of the Authority's influence and
responsibilities.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The purchase of the Borough of Dravosburg's plant and system in 2011, as well as, the
expressed interest of at least three of the Authority's service communities to sell their
systems to the Authority bodes well for the future success of the Authority.

The following table shows the Authority's ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash
provided by operating activities is shown both in total dollars and as a percentage of
operating revenues.

2011
Total operating revenues $l 1,569,838
Net cash provided by operations $5,787,77 |
Operating cash as a percentage of
operating revenues 50.0o/o (18.2)%

CAPITAL ASSET AIID DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

On December 31, 2011, the Authority had 556,122,522 invested in capital assets,
including land, infrastructure, buildings, plant and office machinery and equipment, and
vehicles net of depreciation. This amount represents a net increase (including additions,
deletions and depreciation) of $14,340,518, or approximately 34%o from last year.

The Authority had approximately $15,691 ,023 in capital additions during the 201I year,
mainly comprised of I ) the purchase of the Dravosburg Borough sanitary sewer system
and wastewater treatment plant for $330,000, 2) costs incurred of $15,090,478 for the
Act 537 system improvements and upgrades including WWTP expansion, pump station
construction, sanitary sewer construction and force main construction, and 3) costs for the
construction of a garage at the Walnut Street line maintenance facility totaling 5143,269.

2010 Variance
$ 10,871,269 $699,569
$7,414,2n ($l ,626,440\

68.2%
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

A summary of the Authority's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation for the past
two years is as follows:

Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery & Equipment
Office Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

$ 61,132
33,159,918
9,773,354
7,859,058

103,929
911,870

$ 51,869,261
(13,787,698)

$ 38,081,563
18,040,959

$ 56,332
33,159,918
9,437,354
7,838,U7

86,566
845,670

$ 51,424,187
(12,449,395)

$ 38,974,792
2,807,212

INCREASE
<DECREASE>

$ 4,800

336,000
20,711
17,363
66,200

2011 2010

$ 56,122,522 $ 41,782,004 $ 14,340,518

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31,2011, the Authority had total long-term debt outstanding of
581,371,767. The Authority's debt obligations are comprised of l) five sewer revenue
bonds, 2) one sewer revenue note, 3) one capital lease obligation with PNC Equipment
Finance, and 4) a purchase agreement with the Borough of Dravosburg as follows:

In October of 2006, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006, in the
amount of $6,140,000 for l) the design and construction of capital project acquisition of
facilities required for the proper operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater
conveyance and treatment system and 2) refund an existing bank loan. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 3.6 and 4.5o/o on
June 15 and December 15 each year through maturity. The bonds are scheduled to mature
on December 15, 2036. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December
31,201I is $5,650,000.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADIIINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In October of 2008, The Authority issued Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008, in the
amount of $10,000,000 for the initial stages of an anticipated sixty (60) million dollar
expansion project as required under the Act 537 Plan. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable at rates between 2.5 and 5.45% on June I 5

and December 15 each year through maturity. The bonds are scheduled to mature on
December 15,2039. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 3l ,

201I is $9,660,000.

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2009 in the amount of $ 10,000,000 for the purpose of I ) the design and construction of
capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper operation and maintenance
of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system,3) funding a debt service
reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June l5 and December l5
at rates ranging between 3.0 and 5.75%. The bonds are scheduled to mature December
15,2039. TheremainingprincipalbalanceonthebondissueasofDecember3l,20ll is

$10,000,000.

In December of 2010, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2010 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 28, 2010, by and between
the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the
amount of $25,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) the design and
construction ofcapital projects,2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3) paying the
costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with
interest payable semi-annually June l5 and December l5 at rates ranging between 2.0
and 5.160/o. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15,2040. The remaining
principal balance on the bond issue as of December 3l ,2011is $25,000,000.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In August of 2011, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2011 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated August 31, 2011, by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $26,180,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) prepaying certain outstanding
loans (capital leases) between the City of McKeesport and the Authority, 2) funding a

debt service reserve fund, and 3) pay the costs ofissuance on the bonds. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and
December 15 at rates ranging between 1.25 and 5.00o/o. The bonds are scheduled to
mature December 15, 2030. The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of
December 31,2011 is $26,715,000.

In June of 201 l, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Note - Series of 201 I to PNC Ban
in the amount of $5,000,000. The Note was subsequently amended in December of 201I
to increase the amount to $ 10,000,000. The purpose of the Note was to pay for the costs
of the Authority's Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) expansion costs in advance of
receiving permanent financing from the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
(see Note l5). The Note bears interest at a variable rate (currently 2.4375oh) equal to
75Vo of the Bank's Prime Rate. The Note is scheduled to mature on February 2,2014.
As of December 31,2011, the outstanding balance on this Note obligation is $5,000,000.

ln 1997, the Authority entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport
to finance $3.5 million in capital improvements. Under this Cooperation Agreement, the
Authority leases from the City the improvements and the lease payments made by the
Authority are to be utilized in connection with the debt service on bonds issued by the City
to finance the project. The Cooperation Agreement calls for the quarterly payment of
$86,000 to the City duringthe term of the bond issue. The lease is being amortized overa
25-year period. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of December 31,2010 is
$2,548,895. This lease was paid in full from the proceeds of the Sewer Revenue Bonds -
Series of 201I and as a result terminated the Cooperation Agreement with the City of
McKeesport.
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CAPITAL ASSET At\D DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

1n2009, the Authority entered into a capital lease ageement with the Bank Capital Services
for the purchase of two F-l 50 2009 Ford truck vehicles totaling $45,231. The terms of the
lease call for three annual payments of $ I 5,952.92 at an interest rate of 5.9Yo. The remaining
principal balance on the lease as of December 31,2010 is $15,062. This lease was paid in
full during calendar year 2011.

Eflective January 1,2009, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the
City of McKeespoft for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system for
$30,000,000. The terms of the agreement call for the monthly payment of $163,614.69
(principal and interest) at the annual rate of 4%o for a period of 240 months. The lease is
scheduf ed to expire in March of 2027. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of
December 3l,2010is$23,384,475. This lease was paid in full from the proceeds of the
Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 201l.

In July of 2010, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC
Equipment Finance for the purchase of a Vactor 2100 on a2009 International Cab and
Chassis for $328,368. The terms of the lease call for 5 annual payments of $71 ,578.41 at
an annual interest rate of 4.5Yowith a $l buy-out option at the completion of the lease
term. The lease is scheduled to expire in August of 2014. The remaining principal
balance on the lease as of December 31.2011 is $196.767.

On December 28,2010, the Authority entered into agreement with the Borough of
Dravosburg for the purchase of the Borough's sanitary sewer system and wastewater
treatment plant in the amount of $330,000 effective January 1,2011. The terms of the
agreement call for the advance payment of $180,000 in 201I with two subsequent
payments of $75,000 on January 1,2012 and 2013 respectively. The balance due the
Borough of Dravosburg as of December 31, 201I is S150,000.

The Authority is scheduled to make principal and interest payments on their total debt of
approximately $4,948,416 during the 201 I calendar year.

xll
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GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGI\-IFICAI\T EVENTS

Population in the Authority's service area continues to remain fairly constant, with a
decrease in the population of the City of McKeesport being offset by increases in other
communities such as White Oak Borough, North Versailles Township and Elizabeth
Township. [t has been estimated that the population in the service area will increase at a
rate of 90 persons per year for the next five years.

Throughout the year the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to implement its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined
Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July of
2007. The project design work was completed and submitted to the PA Department of
Environmental Protection for review in July of 2009 and approved in July of 2010.
Fifteen construction projects were put out for bid in February of 201I and awarded in
May. The completion date for these projects is the summer of 2013. The project involves
significant new treatment processes, pumping stations & interceptor lines with an
associated capital cost of approximately fifty-four (54) million dollars. In order to prevent
a huge increase in the sewer rates the Authority has chosen to issue a series of $10
million bonds at a rate of one per year. By doing this the Authority has been able to step
the necessary rate increases over a period of several years. To this end a ten (10) million
dollar bond was issued in 2008 and the rates were increased by $0.7411000 gallons, or
20.5%, a second ten million dollar bond was issued in 2009 which increased the rates
$0.86/1000 gallons, or 19.4o/o, and a finaltwenty-five (25) million dollar bond was issued
in 2010 raising the rates $0.80/1000 gallons, or 15.1%. With the $36,825,000 grant and
loan awarded to the Authority from Pennvest, no further rate increases will be needed to
complete the above mentioned project.

The US Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level
in the Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine
Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall structures. As a result the federal government funded the
relocation of most of the CSO structures. Construction for Phase I of the project was
completed in2007 and phase (II) of the project was completed in 2010. One remaining
outfall, Evans Avenue, remains to be raised to complete the project, however funding was
not available in 2011 and currently still remains unfunded. The Authority's new outfall
structures have greatly reduced the amount of river water that flows back through the
pipes and into the sewer lines. This in return has reduced the costs associated with
treating unnecessary water.
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GENERAL TRENDS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

As was noted earlier in this report, in2009, the Authority acquired the sewage collection
system from the City of McKeesport. The acquisition of the sewer system included more
than 550,000 feet of sewer lines ranging in size from 6" to 42" and two pumping stations.
The acquisition of the Duquesne plant and system in 2010 added an additional 157,880
feet of sewer lines and 557 manholes to the Authority's care. In order to maintain this
vast system, eight new employees were hired in 2010 to complete a 13 man crew
dedicated to maintaining and repairing the lines, manholes, catch basins and pumping
stations. The addition of the Dravosburg system in 20Il along with the Authority's
stepped up efforts to map all of the lines, manholes and catch basins on its Geographic
lnformation System (GIS) software program resulted in an additional eight new
employees.

With the acquisition of the Duquesne & Dravosburg systems, the Authority also assumed
the corresponding sewage billing responsibilities. Two additional employees were hired
in 2010 and another one in 2011 to assist in the efficient runnins of the billins
department.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY FTNANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Board of Directors'
accountability for the money they administer on behalf of the customers of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport. If you have questions about this report or wish to
request additional financial information, please contact the Authority offices at 100
Atlantic Avenue, McKeesport, PA I 5132, (412)-673-8276.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31.

2011

$ 4,189,57'1
1,078,547

207,877
1,077,041

3,000

EXHIBIT A

2010
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Sewage Service Receivable
Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport
Accrued Sewage Service (Unbilled)
Deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
lnvestments

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

$ 61,132
33,159,918
9,773,354
7,859,058

103,929
911,870

4,688,620
957,473
241,161

1,217,631

$ 56,332
33,159,918
9,437,354
7,838,347

86,566
845,670

$ 29,682,542 $ 31,413,728
$ 29,682,542 $ 31,413,728

$ 51,869,261 $ Sr ,424,187
(13,787,698) (12,44e,3s5)

$ 38,081,563 $ 38.974.792
18,040,959

$ 56,122,522 $ 41,782,004

$ 1,798,478 S 1,294,433
$ 94,159,578 $ 81,589,050

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31.
(coNTtNUED)

2011

EXHIBIT A

2010

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Taxes
Sewage Service Deposits
Accrued Interest
Due to Dravosburg Borough - Current Portion
CapitalLease - Current Portion
Current Portion of Bonds Payable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES:
Capital Leases - Long Term Portion
Bonds Payable - Long Term Portion
Premium on Bonds Payable
Discount on Bonds Payable
Sewer Revenue Note 201 1

Due to Dravosburg Borough - Long Term Portion
Compensated Absences

TOTAL LONG.TERM LIABI LITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in CapitalAssets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,325,000 300,000
$ 8,403,828 $ 2,567,101

$ 134,043 $
74,700,000

802,007
(e11,873)

5,000,000
75,000

116,680 103,392
$ 79,915,857 $ 74,404,179
$ 88,319,685 $ 76,971,280

$ (e02,331) $ (6,130,544)
5,445,495 3,435,456
1,296,729 7,311,858

$ 5,839,893 $ 4,616,770
TElTEoF?g.Ts-i;5EE@-

$ 6,722,987
66,049

7,200
144,868
75,000
62,724

$ 854,450
47,704
13,050

102,948

1,248,949

24,956,273
50,310,000

(e65,486)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
2



EXHIBIT B

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES

Sewage Treatment Services
Sludge Hauling
Tap Fees and Permits
WellWater Processing
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Costs
Professional Services
Sewage Plant Costs
Other General and Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE NON-OPERATING
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

Interest Income
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Amortization of Bond lssue Costs

TOTAL NON-OPERATTNG REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

INCREASE <DECREASE> IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1.

Prior Period Adj ustments

NET ASSETS. DECEMBER 31.

$ 10,644,558
93,639

5,350
799,521

26,770

s 11,569,838

3,076,961
253,750

1,817,447
359,686

1,302.372

5,839,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
3

$ 8,939,124
105,115

5,250
1,820,000

1,780

$ 10,871,269

$ 6,810,216

$ 4,759,622

$ 2,404,579
209,567

1,546,237
277,534

1,163,702

$ 5,601,619

$ 5,269,650

$ 37,2il
(3,501,941)

(63,679)

$ (3,528,366)

$ ,1,231,256

4,616,770

(8,133)

$ 48,923
(2,624,504)

(30,526)

$ (2,606,107)

$ 2,663,543

1,929,063

24,164

$ 4,616,770



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3I.

2011

EXHIBIT C

2010

$ 11,642,301 $ 11,201,071
(3,058,616) (2,402,158)
(2,795,e14) (1,384,702)

$ 5,787,77r $ 7,414,211

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Sewage Billings
Cash Paid to Employees for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Gash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(lncrease) Decrease in Restricted Assets
Proceeds from Bond lssues
Proceeds from Sewer Revenue Note
Proceeds - Dravosburg
Proceeds from Capital Lease
Bond Closing Costs
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
Purchase of Property and Equipment (Net of Refund)

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest lncome Received

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31

$ 1 ,731 ,1 86
26,180,000

s,000,000
330,000

$ (17,938,386)
25,000,000

(sr7,72;) ,,r ?3?,3#,
(26,155,145) (3,207,950)
(3,420,729) (2,538,576)
(9,411,662) (4,661,340)

$ (6,324,074) $ (4,155,745)

$ 37.2U $

$ 3,307,389
1,381,231

$ 4,189,571 $ 4,699,620

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Change in Current Assets and Liabilities:

(lncrease) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Sewage Service Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated Compensated Absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 4,759,622 5,269,650

1,302,372

2't,750
(321,756)

18,345
(5,850)
13,288

1,163,702

323,702
632,377

2,421
6,1 00

$ 5,787,771 $ 7,414,21',1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ 37,254 $ 48,923

$ (4ee,04e)
4,688,620



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2011 AND 2O1O

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTITY

DESCRIPTION

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport (the Authority) is a public corporation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, organized and existing under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 (as
amended). The Council of the City of McKeesport (the City) created the Authority on November 29, 1949
under an order from the Sanitary Water Board of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority was
created for a period of 50 years to end December 5, 1999, and was subsequently extended through
December 5,2026 and later to December 5, 2057. The Authority was created for the purpose of acquiring,
holding, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating, owning and leasing (either in capacity as lessor
or lessee) certain projects. These projects include sewers, sewer systems or parts thereof, sewage
treatment works, also including the acquisition of land for sewage treatment works and pumping stations,
and all other necessary facilities and apparatus that the Board of Directors may authorize as necessary for
the project. The Authority provides waste collection and treatment services, under agreement, for the
following municipalities:

City of McKeesport
Port Vue Borough
East McKeesport Borough
Glassport Borough
Versailles Borough
City of Duquesne

White Oak Borough
Liberty Borough
Elizabeth Township
Lincoln Borough
North Versailles Borough
Dravosburg Borough

Per the terms of these agreements, the Authority is the sole and exclusive provider of sewage treatment and
disposal service to the above municipalities, and these municipalities have agreed to construct and maintain
such sewers, interceptors and pumping stations as is necessary to bring the sewage and industrial waste to
a point where it flows into the interceptors of the Authority.

The five-members of the Authority Board of Directors are appointed by the members of Council of the City of
McKeesport. The Authority has no stockholders nor equity holders, and revenue or other cash received
must be disbursed in accordance with provisions of the Trust Indentures dated October 1, 2006, as
amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of October 2, 2008, as
amended and supplemented bythe Second SupplementalTrust Indenture dated as of December 1,2009,
as amended and supplemented by the Third Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of December 28,2010,
and as amended and supplemented by the Fourth Supplementaltrust Indenture date August 31,2011 by
and between the Authority and the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company as trustee, securing the Sewer
Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectivety.

REPORTING ENTITY

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not
legally separate from the Authority.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Authority in that the
Authority approves their budget, approves and/or guarantees the issuance of their debt, or othenrise can
impose its will in a significant manner.



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2011 AND 2O1O

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION AND REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

The management of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport applies the criteria set forth in the
'Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards' for defining the scope of its
reporting entity. Based on the application of these criteria, the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
has no component units, but is considered a component unil of the City of McKeesport. These financial
statements include only the activity of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided
they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The most significant of the Authority's
accounting policies are as follows:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund since its operations are financed and operated in a
manner similar to the private sector. The Authority utilizes the accrual method of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when earned rather than when cash is received, and expenses are
recognized when an obligation is incurred rather than when cash is actually paid.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
deposit accounts, and any other short-term highly liquid assets with original maturity terms of less than three
months.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are made pursuant to Section 7.1 of the MunicipalAuthorities Act and can include the following:

L U.S. Treasury Bills
ll. Obligations of the U.S. Government and Federal Agencies
lll. Certificates of Deposit, Checking and Savings Accounts insured by

the FDIC or National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF)
lV. General obligation bonds of the federal government, Commonwealth

of Pennsylvania or any state agency
V. Shares of Mutual Funds whose investments are restricted to the

aforementioned investments
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In addition, the Board of Directors can invest the Authority's sinking funds as authorized for local
governments in the Local government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. 8224. Investment of the Authority's
restricted assets are made pursuant to and restricted by the aforementioned Trust Indentures securing the
Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 201 1. Invbstments for 2010 and 201 1 (See
Restricted Assets) include Dreyfus Government cash management agency fund shares, certificates of
deposit, corporate notes, fixed income investments with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation,
Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal National Mortgage Association. Investments are stated at fair value.
The Authority is in compliance with these restrictions as of December 31 ,2011 and 2010.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

fn accordance with the provisions of the Trust Indentures, dated October 1, 2006, October 2,2008,
December 1 , 2009, December 28,2010 and August 31 ,2011 by and between the Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company and the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport, which secure the Sewer Revenue
Bonds Series of 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Authority is obligated to restrict certain funds to pay
for construction related expenditures and to meet debt service requirements. The total of these funds is

reflected in Exhibit A as 'restricted assets' and detailed in Note 3.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Receivables are mainly comprised of billed and
unbilled sewage services rendered to the participating municipalities as described in Note 1. The Authority
does not maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts, as management estimates that uncollectible amounts
at year-end, if any, would not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

INVENTORY

The Authority does not maintain a physical inventory of materials, chemicals, and other supplies.
Management estimates that inventory values during the year are minimal for cost control purposes.
Accordingly, management is of the opinion that any value that existed at December 31, 2011 and 2010 would
not materially effect the financial position of the Authority.

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The Authority records property, plant and equipment purchases at cost. Property, plant and equipment
include major betterments that extend the economic useful life of the assets affected. The Authority
maintains a capitalization threshold of $500. Routine repair and maintenance costs are charged to
operations as incurred. Depreciation expense is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of the asset as follows:

lnfrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Software

50 Years
40 Years

7-20 Years
7-10 Years

3 Years
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31,2011 and 2010 was $1,302,372 and 1,163,702
respectively. Construction in progress represents funds paid toward the following Authority p@ects:

12J31t20',11 12t31t2010
Act 537 System lmprovements Project:

Engineering and Other Professional Fees $ 3,186,769
WWTP Expansion Project 9,541,331
Pump Stations Construction 2,158,041
EastMest Shore Sanitary Sewer Construction 2,696,677
River Crossing Force Main 314,872

Garage - Walnut Street Line Maint Facility 143,269
$ 18,040,959

8 2,602,213
204,999

$ 2,807,2't2

NET ASSETS

GASB Statement No. 34 requires equity in the statement of net assets to be reported as 'Net Assets'.
Net assets are classified into four categories according to external donor or legal restrictions or availability
of assets to satisfy Authority obligations. Net assets are classified as follows:

r Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This component of net assets consists of capital
assets net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that is
aftributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement of the capital assets.

. Restricted-Nonexpendable - Net assets subject to externally imposed restrictions which are
required to be maintained in perpetuity.

o Restricted-Expendable - Net assets whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that
can be fulfilled by the actions of the Authority or by the passage of time.

. Unrestricted - Consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of 'restricted' or 'invested in
capital assets, net of related debt'.

The Authority applies restricted resources first, when available, before using unrestricted resources, to
pay expenditures that can be paid from either source.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the Authority's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3l. 2011 AND 2OlO

NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CASH DEPOSITS:

At December 3'1,2011 and 2010, the Authority had the following carrying value on its'cash and cash
equivalent accounts held with PNC Bank:

-- December 31,2011 -- -- December 31,2010 --Bank Garrying Bank
Balance Value Balance

Fair Value 0-1 Years

Carrying
Value

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit
(Shown as part of

Restricted Assets)

$ 4,367,520 $ 4,189,571 $ 4,678,260 $ 4,688,620

3,908,2M 3,908,244 2,792,8't4 2,792,814
$7,471,074 $ 7,481,434$ 8,275,7U $ 8,097,815

The difference between the bank balance and the carrying value represents reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. Effective December 31,2010, all funds in a 'noninterest-
bearing transaction account' are insured in full by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
through December 31, 2012. This temporary unlimited coverage is in addition to, and separate from, the
coverage of at least $250,000 available to depositors under the FDIC's general deposit insurance rules.

Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2011 and
2010, $2,414,045 and $3,426,502 respectively of the Authority's bank balance totals are exposed to
custodial credit risk as these amounts represent uninsured deposits collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority's name. In
accordance with Act Number 72-1971 Session of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the aforementioned
deposits, in excess of $250,000, are collateralized by securities pledged to a pooled public funds account
with the FederalReserve System.

INVESTMENTS:

The fair value and maturity term of the Authority's investments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as
follows:

December 31,2011
No Stated
Maturity

Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds $
Corporate Notes
U.S. Agency Fixed Income

8,398,622 $ 8,398,622 $

$ 25,774,298 $ 8,398,622 $ 17,375,676

6.747,689
10,627,987

- 6,747,699
- 10,627,997
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NOTE 3 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTM ENTS: (Continued)

--- December 31,2010
No Stated

Fair Value Maturity 0-1 Years
Dreyfus Cash Mgt Agency Funds $ 24,708,962 $ 24,708,962 $
Corporate Notes 914,020
U.S. Agency Fixed Income 2,997,932

- 914,020
- 2,997,932

$ 28,620,914 $ 24,708,962 $ 3,911,952

Investments classified as U.S. Agencies are securities of agencies of the U.S. Government that have an
implied but not explicit guarantee. Management does not anticipate any problems with these securities.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Authority has no formal investment policy that limits its investment choices based on credit ratings by
nationafly recognized rating organizations. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, investments in U.S.
Agencies and Corporate Notes have received an 'Aaa' rating from Moodys.

CustodialCredit Risk:

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's investments in Dreyfus Cash Management Agency Funds
are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The Authority does not have a formal investment policy for custodial credit risk.

lnterest Rate Risk:

The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority's
certificate of deposit, corporate note, and U.S. Agency Fixed Income security investments have maturity
terms of less than 1 year.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.
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